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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 1K contains forwardooking statements (“Forward-Looking Statements”) as defined

in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
relating to future business expectations and predictions and financial condition @tslateperations of Suburban
Propane Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”). Some of these statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as “prospects,” “outlook,” “believes,” “estimates,” “intends,” “may,” “will,” “should,”
“anticipates,” “expects” or “plans” or the negative or other variation of these or similar words, or by discussion of

trends and conditions, strategies or risks and uncertainties. These Fbooking Statements involve certain risks

and uncertainties thabuld cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed or implied in such Forward
Looking Statements (statements contained in this Annual Report identifying such risks and uncertainties are referre
to as “Cautionary Statements”). The risks and uncertainties and their impact on the Partnership’s results include, but

are not limited to, the following risks:

1 The impact of weather conditions on the demand for propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels, natural gas ant
electricity;

1 Volatility in the unit cost of propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas, the impact of the
Partnership’s hedging and risk management activities, and the adverse impact of price increases on volumes as a
result of customer conservation;

1 The cost savingsxpected from the Partnership’s acquisition of the retail propane operations formerly owned by
Inergy, L.P. (the “Inergy Propane Acquisition”) may not be fully realized or realized within the expected time
frame;

1 The costs of integrating the business a@qguin the Inergy Propane Acquisition into the Partnership’s existing

operations may be greater than expected;

The ability of the Partnership to compete with other suppliers of propane, fuel oil and other energy sources;

The impact on the price and supplf propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels from the political, military or

economic instability of the oil producing nations, global terrorism and other general economic conditions;

1 The ability of the Partnership to acquisafficient volumes of, and ¢hcosts to the Partnership of acquiring,
transporting and storing, propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels;

1 The ability of the Partnership to acquire and maintain reliable transportation for its propane, fuel oil and other
refined fuels;

1 The ability of he Partnership to retain customers or acquire new customers;

1 The impact of customer conservation, energy efficiency and technology advances on the demand for propane, fu
oil and other refined fuels, natural gas and electricity;

1 The ability of managememd continue to control expenses;

1 The impact of changes in applicable statutes and government regulations, or their interpretations, including thos

relating to the environment and global warming, derivative instruments and other regulatory developritents o
Partnership’s business;
1 Theimpact of changes in tdawsthat could adversely affect the tax treatment of the Partnership for income tax
purposes;
The impact of legal proceedings on the Partnership’s business;
The impact of operating hazards that could adversely affect the Partnership’s operating results to the extent not
covered by insurance;
9 The Partnership’s ability to make strategic acquisitions and successfully integrate them, including but not limited
to Inergy Propange
The impact of current conditions in the global capital and credit markets, and general economic pressures;
The operating, legalnd regulatory risks Suburban may face; and
Other risks referenced from time to time in filings with Seeurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and
those factors listed or incorporated by reference into this Annual Report under “Risk Factors.”
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Some of these Forwadldooking Statements are discussed in more detail in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Annual Report. On different occasions, the Partnership or

its representatives have made or may make Formao#ing Statements in other filings with the SEC, press releases
or oral statements mady or with the approval of one of the Partnership’s authorized executive officers. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on Forviaraking Statements, which reflect management’s view only as of

the date made. The Partnership undertakesbligation to update any Forwateoking Statement or Cautionary
Statement, except as required by law. All subsequent written and oral Fueekidg Statements attributable to the
Partnership or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualifiegiriethirety by the Cautionary Statements in this
Annual Report and in future SEC reports. For a more complete discussion of specific factors which could caus
actual results to differ from those in the Forwambking Statements or Cautionary Statemesees,‘Risk Factors” in

this Annual Report.



PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Development of Business

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”), a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership, is a
nationwide marketer and distributor of a diverse array of products meeting the energy needs of our customers. W
specialize in the distribution of propane, fuel oil and refined fuels, as well as the markei@tgraf gas and electricity
in deregulatd markets. In support of our core marketing and distribution operations, we install and service a variety
of home comfort equipment, particularly in the areas of heating and ventilatdm.believe, based obP/Gas
Magazinedated February 2@]that weare the third largest retail marketer of propane in the United States, measured by
retail gallons sold in the calendar year 201As of Septembel7, 2014 we were serving the energy needs of
approximatelyl.2 million residential commercial, industrial rad agricultural customers througtpproximately710
locations in 41 statewith operationsprincipally concentrated in the east and weststoagions of the United States,
including Alaska. We soldpproximately530.7 million gallons of propane and9.1 million gallons of fuel oiland
refined fuels to retail customers during thear ended Septemli&f, 2014 Together with our predecessor companies,
we have been continuously engaged in the retail propane business since 1928.

We conduct our businessipcipally through Suburban Propane, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, which
operates our propane business and assets (the “Operating Partnership™), and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Our
general partner, and the general partner of our Operganmership, is Suburban Energy Services Group LLC (the
“General Partner”), a Delaware limited liability company whose sole member is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Partnership Since October 19, 2006, the General Partner has no economic intexitseiirthe Partnership or the
Operating Partnershifwhich means that the General Partner is not entitled to any cash distributions of either
partnership, nor to any cash payment upon the liquidation of either partnership, nor any other economic rights it
either partnershipdther than as holder of 784 Common Units of the Partnershisdditionally, under theThird
Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership (the “Partnership Agreemeébtof the Partnership, there are
no incentive distribution ghts for the benefit of the General Partn€he Partnership owns (directly and indirectly)
all of the limited partner interests in the Operating Partnershfpe Common Units represent 100% of the limited
partner interests in the Partnership.

On August 1, 2012 (the “Acquisition Date™), we acquired the sole membership interest in Inergy Propane, LLC,
including certain whollyowned subsidiaries of Inergy Propane LLC, and the assets of Inergy Sales and Service, Inc.
(the “Inergy Propane Acquisition™). The acquired interests and assets are collectively referred to as “Inergy Propane.”

As of the Acquisition Date, Inergy Propane consisted of the former retail propane assets and operations, as well as t
assets and operations of the refined fuels Ipssiof Inergy, L.P. (“Inergy™), a publicly traded limited partnership at

the time of the acquisitionOn the Acquisition Datenergy Propane and itemainingwholly-owned subsidiaries

which we acquired in the Inergy Propane Acquisiti@tame subsidigas of our Operating Partnershiput were
merged into the Operating Partnership on April 30, 2013. The results of operations of Inergy Propane are included i
the Partnership’s results of operations beginning on the Acquisition Date.

With the Inergy Prpane Acquisition, weeffectively doubled the size of our customer base and expanded our
geographic reach into eleven (11) new stateduding establishing a presence in portions of the midwest region of
the United States.He Inergy Propane Acquisitiamasconsistent with key elements of our business strategy to focus on
businesses that complement our existing business segments and that can extend our presence in strategically attrac
markets. Thisacquisition has provided, amdll continue toprovide us with an opportunity tapply our operational
expertise and customeriented initiatves to a much largegnterprise in order to enhance our growth prospects and
cash flow profile. The total cost of the Inergy Propane Acquisitianmeasured bthe fair value of the total
consideration was approximately $1.9 billion.

Direct and indirectbsidiaries of the Operating Partnership incl@idurban Heating Oil Partners, LLC, which
owns and operates the assets of our fuel oil and refined fuels bugigess; Energy Services, LLC, which owns
and operates the assets of our natural gas and electricity busineyamtdan Sales and Service, Jnehich
corducts a portion of ouservice work ad appliance and parts busines3ur fuel oil and refined fus| natural gas
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and electricity and services businesses @ractured aseither limited liability companiesthat are treated as
corporationsor corporateentities (collectively referred to as “Corporate Entities”) and, as such, are subject to
corporate level income tax.

Suburban Energy Finance Cqarp directl00%owned subsidiary of the Partnership, was formed on November
26, 2003 to serve as-isster, jointly and severally with the Partnership, of the Partnership’s senior notes. Suburban
Energy Finance Corfhas nominal assets and conducts no business operations.

In this Annual Report, unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Partnership,” “Suburban,” “we,” “us,” and “our” are
used to refer to Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. and its consolidated subsidiaries, including the Operatir
Partnership. The Partnerskipdthe Operating Partnership commenced operations in March 1996 in connection with
thePartnership’s initial public offering of Common Units.

We currently file Annual Reports on Form-KQ Quarterly Reports on Form 4D and current reports on Form 8
K with the SEC. You may read and receive copies of any materials that we file with tGeatSthe SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of th:
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC -@&0D-SECG0330. Any information filed by us is also available on the
SEC’s EDGAR database atww.sec.gov

Upon written request or througim anformation requedink from our website atvww.suburbanpropane.cowe
will provide, without charge, copies of our Annual Report on ForiK I6r the year ended Septemtaat, 2014 each
of the Quarterly Reports on Form-8f) current reports filed or furnished on ForaK&nd all amendments to such
reports as soon as is reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC
Requests should be dited to: Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor Relations, P.O. Box 206, Whippany, New
Jersey 07980206 The information contained on our website is not included as part of, or incorporated by reference
into, this Annual Report on Form 4Q

Our Strategy

Our business strategy is to deliver increasing value to our Unitholders through initiatives, both internal and external
that are geared toward achieving sustainable profitable growtteanly oincreased quarterly distribution$he
following are key elements of our strategy:

Internal Focus on Driving Operating Efficiencies, RigkhBizing Our Cost Structure and Enhancing Our
Customer Mix. We focus internally on improving the efficiency of our existing operations, managing our cost structure
and improving our customer mix. Througivestments in ouiechnology infrastructure, we continue to seek to improve
operating efficiencies and thetuen on assets employed. We have developed a streamlined operating footprint and
management structure to facilitate effective resource planning and decision making. Our internal efforts are particularl
focused in the areas of route optimization, foréegscustomer usage, inventory control, cash management and
customer trackingln connection th the Inergy Propane Acquisition, we have developged are implementing
detailed integration plan toaombine the best practices of the two companikie, at the same timegontinuingto
pursue efficiencies and operational excellence. Our strategy will inclhutiinuing to executen our integration
plans and staying focusesh providing exceptional service to the combined customer base.willVpursue
opportunities to drive operational efficiencies across a broader geography. Our systems platform is advanced an
scalable and we will seek to leverage that technology for enhanced routing, forecasting and customer relationshi
management, as well asntrdizing certain back office functionsithin theformerInergy Propane operatians

Growing Our Customer Base by Improving Customer Retention and Acquiring New Customéfs.set clear
objectives to focus our employees on seeking new customers and retaining existing customers by pigiiging
responsivecustomer service. We believe that customer satisfaction is a critical factor in the growth and success of ou
operatons.fi Ou r Busi ness i s @unsetobonecore Garatingsphilasophiéso MVé measure and
reward our customer service centers based on a combination of profitability of the individual customer service cente
and net customer growtiiVe have rade investments in training our peoplah ontechniquedo provideexceptional
customer service to our existing customer base, as well as advanced sales training focused on growing our custon
base.



Selective Acquisitions of Complementary Businesse Assets. Externally, we seek to extend our presence or
diversify our product offerings through selective acquisitions. Our acquisition strategy is to focus on businesses with ¢
relatively steady cash flow that will extend our presence in stratggattlctive markets, complement our existing
business segments or provide an opportunity to diversify our operatfesare very patient and deliberate in
evaluating acquisition candidate€onsistent with this strategyhe Inergy Propane Acquisitionpmpleted on August
1, 2012, was a transformative event for Suburban by expanding our geographic reach, doubling the size of our custom
base and providingis with opportunities to achieve operational synerdigscombining operations in overlapping
terntories and implementing our operating model and systems platform on a much larger business.

Selective Disposition of Noltrategic Assets. We continuously evaluate our existing facilities to identify
opportunities to optimize our return on assetsdlgctively divesting operations in slower growing markets, generating
proceeds that can be reinvested in markets that present greater opportunities for growth. Our objectarenszi
the growth and profit potential of all of our assets.

BusinessSegments

We manage and evaluate our operation$ivia operating segments, three of which are reportable segments:
Propane, Fuel Oil and Refined Fuels and Natural Gas and Electricity. These business segments are described bel
See the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for financial information abou
our business segments.

Propane

Propane is a bgroduct of natural gas processing and petroleum refining. It is a clean bamdrgy source
recognized for its transportability and ease of use relative to alternative forms elstam@nergy sources. Propane
use falls into three broad categories:

1 residential and commercial applications;
9 industrial applications; and
9 agriculural uses.

In the residential and commercial markets, propane is used primarily for space heating, water heating, clothes dryin
and cooking. Industrial customers use propane generally as a motor fuel to powkeovad vehicles, forklifts and
statonary engines, to fire furnaces, as a cutting gas and in other process applications. In the agricultural market, propal
is primarily used for tobacco curing, crop drying, poultry brooding and weed control.

Propane is extracted from natural gas onellhead gas at processing plants or separated from crude oil during the
refining process. It is normally transported and stored in a liquid state under moderate pressure or refrigeration for ea
of handling in shipping and distribution. When the puesss released or the temperature is increased, propane
becomes a flammable gas that is colorless and odorless, although an odorant is added to allow its detection. Propan
clean burning and, when consumed, produces only negligible amounts of p&llutan

Product Distribution and Marketing

We distribute propane through a nationwide retail distribution network consistappiximately700locations in
41 statesas ¢ Septembel7, 2014 Our operations argrincipally concentrated in the east andst coastagions of
the United States, including Alaska. As of Septentbér 2014 we servicedapproximately1,027000 propane
customers. Typically, our customer service centers are located in suburbarueaichreas where natural gas is not
readily available. Generally, these customer service centers consist of an office, appliance showroom, warehouse ar
service facilities, with one amore 18,000 to 30,000 gallstorage tanks on the premiseMost of our residential
customers receive their propasigoply through an automatic delivery system. These deliveries are scheduled through
proprietarycomputer technology, based upon each customer’s historical consumption patterns and prevailing weather
conditions. Additionally, we offer our customers a budget payment plan whereby the customer’s estimated annual
propane purchases and service contracts are paid for in a series of estimated equal monthly payments over a twel
month period. From our cusher service centers, we also sell, install and service equipment to customers who
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purchase propane from us including heating and cooking appliandest some locations, propane fuel systems for
motor vehicles.

We sell propangorimarily to six custome markets: residential, commercial, industrial (including engine fuel),
agricultural, other retail users and wholesa@proximately97% of the propane gallons sold by us in fise@ll4were
to retail customers49% to residential customer26% to commecial customersy7% to industrial customer$% to
agricultural customers ariB% to other retail users. The balance of approxima#yof the propane gallons sold by
us in fiscal2014was for risk management activities and wholesale customers. Ne siibmer accounted for 10%
or more of our propane revenues during figdl4

Retail deliveries of propane are usually made to customers by means of bobtail and rack trucks. Propane is pump
from bobtail trucks, which have capacities ranging frofi?2,gallons to 2,975 gallons of propane, into a stationary
storage tank on the customers’ premises. The capacity of these storage tanks ranges from approximately 100 gallons to
approximately 1,200 gallons, with a typical tank having a capacity of 3a@tgallons. As is common in the propane
industry, we own a significant portion of the storage tanks located on our customers’ premises. We also deliver propane
to retail customers in portable cylinders, which typically have a capacity of 5 to 35 galves these cylinders are
delivered to customers, empty cylinders are refilled in place or transported for replenishment at our distribution
locations. We also deliver propane to certain other bulk end users in larger trucks known as transports/endaich ha
average capacity of approximately 9,000 gallons. End users receiving transport deliveries include industrial customer:
largescale heating accounts, such as local gas utilities that use propane as a supplemental fuel to meet peak lo
delivery reqirements, and large agricultural accounts that use propane for crop drying.

Supply

Our propane supply is purchased frapproximately63 oil companies and natural gas processors at approximately
190 supply points located in the United States @athada. We make purchases primarily underyeae agreements
that are subject to annual renewal, and also purchase papé#mespomarket. Supply contracts generally provide for
pricing in accordance with posted prices at the time of delivery atient prices established at major storage points,
and some contracts include a pricing formula that typically is based on prevailing market prices. Some of these
agreements provide maximum and minimum seasonal purchase guidelines. Propane is gamsg@iiyed from
refineries, pipeline terminals, storage facilities (including our storage facility in Elk Grove, California) and coastal
terminals to our customer service centers by a combination of common carriersppenaors and railroad tank cars.
See Item 2 of this Annual Report.

Historically, supplies of propane have been readily available from our supply soti@esver, during theigcal
2014 heating season, we were adversely affected by supply constraints resulting fromnividassyply shortages
and logistics issues involving propane transportation sourcing and &stsrthelessthrough relationships with our
suppliers and extraordinary efforts by our supply and logistics personnel, we were able to effectively manage the
challenghg environment in fiscal 2014 without a material disruption in supgithough we make no assurance
regarding the availability of supplies of propane in the futnesgurrently expect to be able to secure adequate supplies
during fiscal2015 During fiscal 2014, Crestwood Midstream Partners L(PCrestwood”), Targa Liguids Marketing
and Trade (“Targa”) and Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (“Enterprise™) provided approximatelg9%, 13%and 13%
of our total propane purchases, respectivélyp other single supplier accounted for more than 10%uopropane
purchases in fisc&l014 The availability of our propane supply is dependent on several factors, including the severity
of winter weather the magnitude of competing demands for avalahlpply (e.g., crop drying and exports), the
availability of transpdation and storage infrastructuaad the pricend availability of competing fuels, such as natural
gas and fuel oil. We believe that if suppliesn Crestwood, Targa or Enterprigere interrupted, we would be able to
secure adequate propane supplies from other sources without a material disruption of our operations. Nevertheless, |
cost of acquiringand transportinguch propane might be higher and, at least on a-t&hnortbass, our margins coulde
affected. Approximately94% of our total propane purchases were from domestic suppliers inZxbal

We seek to reduce the effect of propane price volatility on our product costs and to help ensure the availability o
propaneduring periods of short supply. We are currently a party to forward and option contracts with various third
parties to purchase and sell propane at fixed prices in the future. These activities are monitored by our senic
management through enforcemenibaf Hedging and Risk Management Policy. See Iltems 7 and 7A of this Annual
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Report.

We own and operate a large propane storage facility in California. We also operate smaller storage facilities in othe
locations and have rights to use storage fadlitieadditional locations. These storage facilities enable us to buy and
store large quantities of propane particularly during periods of low demand, which generally occur during the summe
months. This practice helps ensure a more secure supply of @rdpang periods of intense demand or price
instability. As of Septembe27, 2014 the majority of our storage capacity in California was leased to third parties

Competition

According to theUS Census Bureau’s 2013 American Community Surveypropaneranks as the fourth most
important source of residential energy in the nation, with about 5% of all households using propane as their priman
space heating fuel. This level has not changed materially over the previous two decades. As an energgsangce, p
competes primarily with natural gas, electricity and fuel oil, principally on the basis of price, availability and portabilit

Propane is more expensive than natural gas on an equivalent British Thermal Unit (*BTU”) basis in locations
serviced by natural gas, but it is an alternadiveupplemento natural gas in rural and suburban areas where natural gas
is unavailable or portability of product is required. Historically, the expansion of natural gas into traditional propane
marketshas been inhibited by the capital costs required to expand pipeline and retail distribution systems. Although the
recentextension of natural gas pipelines to previously unserved geographic areas tends to displace propane distributic
in those areas, wbelieve new opportunities for propane satesy ariseas new neighborhoods are developed in
geographically remote areablowever, @er the lastew years fewer new housing developments have been started in
our service areas as a result of recent econonsiemstancesThe increasing availability of natural gas extracted from
shale deposits in the United States may accelerate the extension of natural gas pipelines in the future.

Propane has some relative advantages over other energy sources. For @xaamdén geographic aregsppane
is generally less expensive to use than electricity for space heating, water heating, clothes drying and cooking
Utilization of fuel oil is geographically limited (primarily in the northeasthdeven in that regiorpropane and fuel oil
are not significant competitors because of the cost of converting from one to the other.

In addition to competing with suppliers of other energy soum#&spropane operations compete with other retall
propane distributors. The retail propane industry is highly fragmented and competition generally occurs on a local bas
with other large fullservice multistate propane marketers, thousands of smaller ilmbependent marketers and farm
cooperativesBased on industry statistics contained2{il2 Sales of Natural Gas Liquids and Liguefied Refinery
Gases as published by the American Petroleum Institut®écember2013, andLP/Gas Magazinelated February
2014, the ten largest retailers, including us, account for approximédétyof the total retail sales of propane in the
United StatesEach of our customer service centers operates in its own competitive environment because retail
marketers tend to locata close proximity to customers in order to lower the cost of providing service. Our typical
customer service center has an effective marketing radius of approximately 50 miles, although in certain areas tt
marketing radius may be extended by one or reatellite offices. Most of our customer service centers compete with
five or more marketers or distributors.

Fuel Oil and Refined Fuels
Product Distribution and Marketing

We market and distribute fuel oil, kerosene, diesel fuel and gasoliappt@ximately57,000residential and
commercial customengrimarily in the northeast region of the United States. Sales of fuel oil and refined fuels for
fiscal 2014amounted t@9.1 million gallons. Approximately66% of the fuel oi and refined fuels gallons sold by us
in fiscal 2014were to residential customers, principally for home hea8¥%gyere to commercial customers, artd
to other users. Sales of diesel and gasoline accounted for the reni®ftirgf total volumes soldni this segment
during fiscal2014 Fuel oil has a more limited use, compared to propane, and is used almost exclusively for space
and water heating in residential and commercial buildings. We sell diesel fuel and gasoline to commercial anc
industrial cutomers for use primarily to operate motor vehicles.



Approximately41% of our fuel oil customers receive their fuel oil under an automatic delivery systbese
deliveries are scheduled througbroprietary computer technology, based upon each customer’s historical
consumption patterns and prevailing weather conditions. Additionally, we offer our customers a budget payment pla
whereby the customer’s estimated annual fuel oil purchases are paid for in a series of estimated equal monthly
payments over a ®Wwe-month period. From our customer service centers, we also sell, install and service equipment
to customers who purchase fuel oil from us including heating appliances.

Deliveries of fuel oil are usually made to customers by means of tankwagon twhakts have capacities ranging
from 2,500 gallons to 3,000 gallons. Fuel oil is pumped from the tankwagon truck into a stationary storage tank that i
located on the customer’s premises, which is owned by the customer. The capacity of customer storagkstamnges
from approximately 275 gallons to approximately 1,000 galldossingle customer accounted for 10% or more of our
fuel oil revenues during fisc2014

Supply

We obtain fuel oil and other refined fuels in pipeline, truckload or tankweggantities, and have contracts with
certain pipeline and terminal operators for the right to temporarily store fuel oil at 14 terminal facilities we do not
own. Wehave arrangements with certain suppliers of fuel oil, which provide open access td atesmécific
terminals throughout the northeast. Additionally, a portion of our purchases of fuel oil are made at local wholesale
terminal racks. In most cases, the supply contracts do not establish the price of fuel oil in advance; rather, prices a
typically established based upon market prices atitte of delivery plus or minus a differential for transportation
and volume discounts We purchase fuel oil from approximatei suppliers at approximatel§0 supply points
While fuel oil supply is rore susceptible to longer periods safpply constraint than propane, we believe that our
supply arrangements will provide us with sufficient supply sourcdthodgh we make no assurance regarding the
availability of supplies of fuel oil in the future, vegirrently expect to be able to secure adequate supplies during fiscal
2015

Competition

The fuel oil industry is a mature industry with total demand expected to remain relatively flat to moderately
declining. The fuel oil industry is highlfragmented, characterized by a large number of relatively small,
independently owned and operated local distributors. We compete with other fuel oil distributors offering a broad
range of services and prices, from full service distributors to thosedledy sffer the delivery service. We have
developed a wide range of sales programs and service offerings for our fuel oil customer base in an attempt to k
viewed as a full service energy provider and to build customer loyalty. For instance, like moahiesnip the fuel
oil business, we provide home heating equipment repair service to our fuel oil customers-looua 24lay basis.

The fuel oil business unit also competes for retail customers with suppliers of alternative energy sources, principall
naural gas, propane and electricity.

Natural Gas and Electricity

We market natural gas and electricity through @00%owned subsidiaryAgway Energy Services, LLC
(*AES”), in the deregulated markets of New York and Pennsylvania primarily to resiceemtdiaimall commercial
customers. Historically, local utility companies provided their customers with all three aspects of electric and natural
gas service: generation, transmission and distribution. However, under deregulation, public utility commissions
several states are licensing energy service companies, such as AES, to act as alternative suppliers of the commaodity
end consumers. In essence, we make arrangements for the supply of electricity or natural gas to specific delivel
points. The lodautility companies continue to distribute electricity and natural gas on their distribution systems.
The business strategy of this segment is to expand its market share by concentrating on growth in the customer ba
and expansion into other deregulatearkets that are considered strategic markets.

We serveover 80,000natural gas and electricity customers in New York and Pennsylvania. During2fideal
we sold approximately¢.3 million dekatherms of natural gas a#d6.2million kilowatt hours of electricity through
the natural gas and electricity segment. Approximad& of our customers were residential households and the
remainder were small commercial and industrial customers. New accounts are obtained througisnuanketing
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and advertising programs, including telemarketing and direct mail initiatives. Most local utility companies have
established billing seice arrangements whereby customers receive a single bill from the local utility company which
includesdistribution charges from the local utility company, as well as product charges for the amount of natural gas
or electricity provided by AES and utilized by the customer. We have arrangements with several local utility
companies that provide billing andltection services for a fee. Under these arrangements, we are paid by the local
utility company for all or a portion of customer billings after a specified number of days following the customer
billing with no further recourse to AES.

Supply of naturabas is arranged through annual supply agreements with major national wholesale suppliers.
Pricing under the annual natural gas supply contracts is bagedta market prices at the time of delivery, and some
contracts include a pricing formula thapitgally is based on prevailing market priceBhe majority of our electricity
requirementsrepurchased through the New York Independent System Operator (“NYISO”) under an annual supply
agreement, as well as purchase arrangements through other national wholesale suppliers on the open mark
Electricity pricing under the NYISO agreement is bagedocal market indices at the time of delivery. Competition
is primarily with local utility companies, as well as other marketers of natural gas and electricity providing similar
alternatives as AES.

All Other

We sell, install and service variotiges of wholehouse heating products, air cleaners, humidifiers and space
heaters to the customers of our propane, fuel oil, natural gas atiti®yebusinesses.Our supply needs are filled
through supply arrangements with several large regional mguip manufacturers and distribution quamies.
Competition in this business segment is primarily with small, local heating and ventilation providers and contractors,
as well as, to a lesser extent, other regional service providers. The focus of omgmeguice offerings are in
support of the service needs of our existing customer base within our propane, refined fuels and natural gas ar
electricity business segments. Additionally, we have entered into arrangements wiglattyirdervice provider®
complement and, in certain instances, supplement our existing service capabilities.

Seasonality

The retail propane and fuel oil distribution businesses, as well as the natural gas marketing business, are seaso
because the primary use of theseelduis for heating residential and commercial buildingslistorically,
approximately twethirds of our retail propane volume is sold during thensonth peak heating season from October
through March. The fuel oil business tends to experience greatsonsdity given its more limited use for space
heating, and approximately thrémurths of our fuel oil volumes are sold between October and MarchseQaently,
sales and operating profits are concentrated in our first and second fiscal quarters.lowadiom operations,
therefore, are greatest during the second and third fiscal quarters when customers pay for product purchased duri
the winter heating seasoiWe expect lower operating profits and either net losses or lower net income during the
petiod from April through September (our third and fourth fiscal quarters).

Weather conditions have a significant impact on the demand for our products, in particular propane, fuel oil anc
natural gas, for both heating and agricultural purposes. Many of our customers rely on propane, fuel oil or natural ge
primarily as a heatingource. Accordingly, the volume sold is directly affected by the severity of the winter weather
in our service areas, which can vary substantially from yegedn In any given area, sustained warmer than normal
temperaturesvill tend to result in redced propane, fuel oil and natural gas consumption, while sustained colder than
normal temperatures will tend to result in greater consumption.

Trademarks and Tradenames

We utilize a variety of trademarks and tradenames owned by us, including “Suburban Propane” and“Suburban
Cylinder Expres$ As part ofthe Inergy Propane Acquisitiowe acquirech number of different tradenameasichas
“YatesGas” under which Inergy ®pane conducted its business as of the Acquisition Dadlelitionally, we hold
rights to certain trademarks and tradenames, including “Agway” in connection with the distribution of petroleum-
based fuel and sales and service of heating and ventifatidocts We regard our trademarks, tradenames and other
proprietary rights as valuable assets and believe that they have significant value in the marketing of our products ar
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services.
Government Regulation; Environmental and Safety Matters

We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental, health and safety laws and regulations
Generally, these laws impose limitations on the dischargbhaafrdous materials ambllutants and establish
standards for the handlingransportatin, treatment, storage and disposalsolid and hazardous wastes and can
require the investigation and cleanup of envirental contamination. These laws include the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Catigreasd Liability Act (“CERCLA”), the
Clean Air Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act,
the Clean Water Act and comparable state statutes. CERCLA, also known as the “Superfund” law, imposes joint and
several liability without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct on certain classes of persons that are
considered to have contributed to the release or threatened release of a “hazardous substance” into the environment.
Propanes not a hazardous substance within the meaning of CERCLA, whereas some constituents contained in fue
oil are considered hazardous substances. We own real property at locations where such hazardous substances ma
present as a result of prior activities

We expect that we will be required to expend funds to participate in the remediation of certain sites, including
sites where we have been designated as a potentially responsible party under GERGIarable state statutes
and at sites with abovegrod and underground fuel storage tanks. We will also incur other expenses associated with
environmental compliance. We continually monitor our operations with respect to potential environmental issues,
including changes in legal requirements and remiedi&chnologies.

Through an acquisition in fiscal 2004, and in the IndPgypaneAcquisition, we acquired certain properties with
either known or probable environmental exposure, some of which are currently in varying stages of investigation,
remediatim or monitoring. Additionally, certaif the active sites acquired contained environmental conditions
which required further investigation, future remediation or ongoing monitoring activities. The environmental
exposures included instances of soil andfimundwater contamination associated with the handling and storage of
fuel oil, gasoline and diesel fuel. With respect to certain of the properties acquired in thePhogrgyeAcquisition,

Inergy is contractually obligated tmdemnify us forthe coss associated with the investigation, monitoring,
remediation and/or resolution of identified conditions. As of Septer@he2014 we had accrued environmental
liabilities of $0.6 million representing the total estimated future liability for remediagiod monitoringof all of our
properties

Estimating the extent of our responsibility at a particular site, and the method and ultimate cost of remediation o
that site, requires making numerous assumptions. As a result, the ultimate cost to remgditgengay differ from
current estimates, and will depend, in part, on whether there is additional contamination, not currently knoatn to us,
that site. However, we believe that our past experience provides a reasonable basis for estimating itiese Aabil
additional information becomes available, estimates are adjusted as necessary. While we do not anticipate that a
such adjustment would be material to our financial statements, the result of ongoing or future environmental studie
or other fators could alter this expectation and require recording additional liabilities. We currently cannot
determine whether we will incur additional liabilities or the extent or amount of any such lighditidge extent to
which such additional liabilitiesould be subject to the contractual indemnification of Inergy

National Fire Protection Association (“NFPA”) Pamphlet Nos. 54 and 58, which establish rules and procedures
governing the safe handling of propane, or comparable regulations, havaedogésd, in whole, in part or with state
addenda, as the industry standard for propane storage, distribution and equipment installation and operation in all |
the states in which we operate. In some states these laws are administered by state agkircigtheas they are
administered on a municipal level.

NFPA Pamphlet Nos. 30, 30A, 31, 385 and 395, which establish rules and procedurengalrersafe handling
of distillates (fuel oil, kerosene and diesel fuel) and gasoline, or comparable regulations, have been adopted, in whol
in part or with state addenda, as the industry standard for fuel oil, kerosene, diesel fuel and gasoline storag
distribution and equipment installation/operation in all of the states in which we sell those products. In some state
these laws are administered by state agencies and in others they are administered on a municipal level.
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With respect to the transpation of propane, distillates and gasoline by truck, we are subject to regulations
promulgated under the Federal Motor CarlieprovementSafety Act. These regulations cover the transportation of
hazardous materials and are administered by the UnitessSapartment of Transportation or similar state agencies.
We conduct ongoing training programs to help ensure that our operations are in compliance with applicable safet
regulations. We maintain various permits that are necessary to operate digdasime of which may be material
to our operations. We believe that the procedures currently in effect at all of our facilities for the handling, storage
transportatiorand distribution of propane, distillates and gasoline are consistent with indtastdards and are in
compliance, in all material respects, with applicable laws and regulations.

The Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) has published regulations under 6 CFR Part 27 Chemical Facility
Anti-Terrorism Standards.We havea number offacilities registered with the DH®ecause our facilities are
currently operating under the security programs developed under guidelines issued by the Department o
Transportation, Department of Labor and Environmental Protection Agency, we do notasatibgs we will incur
significant costs irtonnectiorwith our ongoing efforts to comply witthese DHS regulations.

In December 2009, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) issued an “Endangerment Finding” under
the Clean Air Act,determiningthat emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other greenhouse gases (“GHGs”)
present an endangerment to public health and the environment because emissions of such gases may be contribu
to warming of the earth’s atmosphere and other climatic changes. Based on these findings, the EPA has begun
adopting and implementing regulations to restrict emissions of GHGgegpite reporting by certain regulated
facilities on an annual basi3.he EPA’s authority to regulate GHGs was recently upheld by the U.S. Supreme Court.

Both Houses of the United States Congress also have considered adopting legislation to reduce emissions
GHGs. AlthoughCongress has not yet enacted federal climate change legistatiorrous states and municipalities
have adopted lawand policies on climate change

The adoption of federal or state climate change legislation or regulatory programs to reduce emissions of GHG
could require us to incur increased capital and operating costs, with resulting impact on product price athd deman
We cannot predict whether or in what fogiimate change legislatioprovisions and renewable energy standards
may be enacted. In addition, a possible consequence of climate change is increased volatility in season
temperatures. It is difficult to predict how the market for our fuels would be affected by increasechtieraper
volatility, although if there is an overall trend of warmer temperatures, it could adversely affect our business.

Future developments, such as stricter environmental, health or safety laws and regulations thereunder, coul
affect our operations. Wio not anticipate that the cost of our compliance with environmental, health and safety laws
and regulations, including CERCLA, as currently in effect and applicable to known sites will have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or resulté @perations. To the extent we discover any environmental liabilities
presently unknown to us or environmental, health or safety laws or regulations are made more stringent, howeve
there can be no assurance that our financial condition or results ratiops will not be materially and adversely
affected.

On July 21, 2010, the Doeferank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was
signed into law. The DodBrank Act regulates derivative transactions, which include cerntsiruments used by the
Partnership for risk management activities.

The DoddFrank Act requires the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”) and the SEC to
promulgate rules and regulations relating to, among other things, swaps, participtdrgsderivatives markets,
clearing of swaps and reporting of swap transactions. In general, theFbaddAct subjects swap transactions and
participants to greater regulation and supervision by the CFTC and the SEC and will require many swaps to b
cleaed through a registered CFT©r SEGclearing facility and executed on a designated exchange or swap
execution facility.

Required transactional margins, capital, recordkeeping, reporting, clearing and settlement as a result of legislatio
(such as the Ddd-Frank Act) and related existing and proposed administrative rulemaking may increase our
operational and transactional cost of entering and maintaining derivatives contracts and adversely affect the numbe
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and/or creditworthiness of derivatives countetipa available to uslf we reduce our use of derivatives as a result of
legislation and regulations, our results of operations may become more volatile and our cash flow may be les
predictable

Many of the states in which we do busind&ase passed laws prohibiting “unfair or deceptive practices” in
transactions between consumers and sellers of products used for residential purposes, which give the Attorne
General or other officials of that state the authority to investigate allegediams of those laws. From time to time,
we receive inquiries or requests for additional information under these laws from the offices of Attorneys General or
other government officials in connection with the sale of our products to residential cust@asesl on information
to date, ve do notbelievethat the costor liabilities associated with such inquiries or requesiisresult ina material
adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operatibowever, there can be no assurance tha
financial condition or results of operationgy not be materially and adversely affectasl a result of current or
future government investigations or civil litigation derived therefrom

Employees

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 we had3,796 full time employees, of whon7T08 were engaged in general and
administrative activities (including fleet maintenan@Y)were engaged in transportation and product supply activities
and3,051were customer service center employees. As of Septé@vip2@l4, 121 of our employees were represented
by 16 different local chapters of labor unions. We believe that our relations with both our union andioron
employees are satisfactory. From time to time, we hire temporary workers to meet peak seasotsl deman

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common units involves a high degree of risk. The most significant risks include those describec
below; however, additional risks that we currently do not know about may also impair our business operations. Yo
should carefully consider the following risk factors, as well as the other information in this Annual Report. If any of the
following risks actually occurs, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely
affectel. In this case, the trading price of our common units would likely decline and you might lose part or all of the
value in our common units. You should carefully consider the specific risk factors set forth below as well as the othe
information containedr incorporated by reference in this Annual Report. Some factors in this section are Forward
Looking Statements. S e el ofiblkii sncgl oSst uart ee nReengt asrod ianbgo vFeo. r wa

Risks Related toOur Businessand Industry

Since weather conditions magdversely affect demand for propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural
gas, our results of operations and financial condition are vulnerable to warm winters.

Weather conditions have a significant impact on the demand for propane, fuetl aithen refined fuels and
natural gas for both heating and agricultural purposes. Many of our customers rely on propane, fuel oil or natural ge
primarily as a heating source. The volume of propane, fuel oil and natural gas sold is at its highe#talsiing
month peak heating season of October through March and is directly affected by the severity of the winter. Typically
we sell approximately twthirds of our retail propane volume and approximately tfoaeths of our retail fuel olil
volume duringhe peak heating season.

Actual weather conditions can vary substantially from year to year, significantly affecting our financial
performance. For example, average temperatures in our service tervi@rg?d colder than normal, arndbo and
14% warmer than normal for fisc&014 fiscal 2013 and fiscal2012 respectively, as measured by the number of
heating degree days reported by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Adminigtist®A”™”). Furthermore,
variations in weather in one or morgions in which we operate can significantly affect the total volume of propane,
fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas we sell and, consequently, our results of operations. Variations in th
weather in thewortheast, where we have a greatercemtration of propane accounts and substantially all of our fuel
oil and natural gas operations, generally have a greater impact on our operations than variations in the weather
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other markets. We can give no assurance that the weather conditionsgumasiey or year will not have a material
adverse effect on our operations, or that our available cash will be sufficient to pay principal and interest on oul
indebtedness and distributionsUaitholdess.

Sudden increases iour costs to acquire and traport propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas
due to, among other things, our inability to obtain adequate supplies from our usual suppbersur inability to
obtain adequate supplies of such products from alternative suppli|mesy adrersely affect our operating results.

Our profitability in the retail propane, fuel oil and refined fuels and natural gas businesses is largely dependent ol
the difference between oupsts to acquire and transpproduct and retail sales price. Propafuel oil and other
refined fuels and natural gas are commodities, an@vh#ability of those products, and the unit prices we need to
pay to acquire and transport those productssabgect to volatile changes in response to changes in supply or other
market conditions over which we have no control, including the severity of winter wahtherice and availability
of competing alternative energy sourcesmpeting demands for tipgoducts and infrastructure (including highway,
rail, pipeline and refineryonstraints Our supplyof these productsom our usual sources may be interrupted due to
these and otheeasons that are beyond our contna@cessitating the transportatidnpooduct, if it is available at all
by truck, rail car or other means from other suppliers in other areas, with resulting delay in receipt and delivery tc
customers and increased expense. a resultour costs of acquiring and transporting alternatiupplies of these
products to our facilitiemight be materially higher at least on a sHertn basis. Since we may not be able to pass
on to our customers immediately, or in full, all increases in our wholesdl¢ransportation costé propane, fuebil
and other refined fuels and natural gas, these increases could reduce our profitibditiglition, our inability to
obtain sufficient supplies of propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas in order for us to fully meet our
customer dmand for these products on a timely basis could adversely affect our revenues, and consequently oL
profitability.

In general, product supply contracts permit suppliers to charge posted prices at the time of delivery or the currer
prices established ahajor supply points, including Mont Belvie Texas, and Conway, Kansa®Ve engage in
transactions to manage the price risk associated with certain of our product costs from time to time in an attempt t
reduce cost volatility and to help ensure avaiigbdf product. We can give no assurance that futwweeasesn our
costs to acquire and transpgmopane, fuel oil and natural gas will not have a material adverse effect on our
profitability and cash flow, or that our available cash will be sufficien pay principal and interest on our
indebtedness and distributions to alnitholders.

High prices for propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas can lead to customer conservation,
resulting in reduced demand for our product.

Pricesfor propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas are subject to fluctuations in response to
changes in wholesale prices and other market conditions beyond our control. Therefore, our average retail sal
prices can vary significantly withia heating season or from year to year as wholesale prices fluctuate with propane,
fuel oil and natural gas commodity market conditions. During periods of high propane, fuel oil and other refined
fuels and natural gas product costs our selling prices ginencrease. High prices can lead to customer
conservation, resulting in reduced demand for our product.

Because of the highly competitive nature of the retail propane and fuel oil businesses, we may not be able to retain
existing customers or acquireew customers, which could have an adverse impact on our operating results and
financial condition.

The retail propane and fuel oil industries are mature and highly competitive. We expect overall demand for
propaneandfuel oil to be relatively flat tanoderately decliningver the next several year¥earto-year industry
volumes of propane and fuel oil are expected to be primarily affected by weather patterns and from competitior
intensifying during warmer than normal winters, as well as from thedirgfaa sustained higher commodity price
environment on customer conservation and the impact of continued weakness in the economy on customer buyir
habits.

11



Propane and fuel oil compete with electricity, natural gas and other existing and future sbanszgy, some of
which are, or may in the future be, less costly for equivalent energy value. For example, natcuategdly is a
significantly less expensive source of energy than propane and fuel oil on an equivalent BTU basis. As a resul
excep for some industrial and commercial applications, propane and fuel oil are generally not economically
competitive with natural gas in areas where natural gas pipelines already exist. The gradual expansion of the nation’s
natural gas distribution systemashmade natural gas available in many areas that previously depended upon propane
or fuel oil. We expect this trend to continuend, with the increasingly abundant supply of natural gas from domestic
sources, perhaps acceleratBropane and fuel oil corefe to a lesser extent with each other due to the cost of
converting from one to the other.

In addition to competing with other sources of energy, our propane and fuel oil businesses compete with othe
distributors of those respective products principalt the basis of price, service and availability. Competition in the
retail propane business is highly fragmented and generally occurs on a local basis with other {segadalmulti
state propane marketers, thousands of smaller local independddtermrand farm cooperatives. Our fuel oil
business competes with fuel oil distributors offering a broad range of services and prices, from full service distributor:
to those offering delivery only. In addition, our existing fuel oil customers, unlikeexigting propane customers,
generally own their own tanks, which can result in intensified competition for these customers.

As a result of the highly competitive nature of the retail propane and fuel oil businesses, our growth within these
industries depnds on our ability to acquire other retail distributors, open new customer service centers, add new
customers and retain existing customers. We can give no assurance that we will be able to acquire other rets
distributors, add new customers and re&isting customers.

Energy efficiency, general economic conditions and technological advances have affected and may continue to
affect demand for propane and fuel oil by our retail customers.

The national trend toward increased conservation anddkagioal advances, including installation of improved
insulation and the development of more efficient furnaces and other heating devices, has adversely affected tt
demand for propane and fuel oil by our retail customers which, in turn, has resulteeirsédes volumes to our
customers. In addition, continued weakness in the economy may lead to additional conservation by retail customel
seeking to further reduce their heating costs, particularly during periods of sustained higher commodity pniees. Futu
technological advances in heating, conservation and energy generation and continued economic weakness m
adversely affect our volumes sold, which, in turn, may adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

Current conditions inthe global capital and credit markets, and general economic pressures, may adversely affect
our financial position and results of operations.

Our business and operating results are materially affected by worldwide economic conditions.condignns
in the global capital and credit markets and general economic pressures have led to declining consumer and busine
confidence, increased market volatility and reduction of business activity generally. As a result of this turmoil,
coupled with ncreasing energy prices, our customers may experience cash flow shortages which may lead to delaye
or cancelled plans to purchase our products, and affect the ability of our customers to pay for our products. Ir
addition, disruptions in the U.&sidental mortgage markeand the rate omortgage foreclosusemay adversely
affect retail customer demand for our products (in particular, products used for home heating and home comfor
equipment) and our business and results of operations.

Our operating reslts and ability to generate sufficient cash flow to pay principal and interest on our indebtedness,
and to pay distributions t&Jnitholders, may be affected by our ability to continue to control expenses.

The propane and fuel oil industries are maturd highly fragmented with competition from other mgliate
marketers and thousands of smaller local independent marketers. Demand for propane and fuel oil is expected to
affected by many factors beyond our control, including, but not limited toethezity of weather conditions during
the peak heating season, customer conservation driven by high energy costs and other economic factors, as well
technological advances impacting energy efficiency. Accordingly, our propane and fuel oil sales vollimested
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gross margins may be negatively affected by these factors beyond our control. Qur operating profits and ability tc
generate sufficient cash flow may depend on our ability to continue to control expenses in line with sales volumes
We can give nassurance that we will be able to continue to control expenses to the extent necessary to reduce th
effect on our profitability and cash flow from these factors.

The risk of terrorism political unrest and the current hostilities in the Middle East other energy producing
regions may adversely affect the economy and the price and availability of propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels
and natural gas.

Terrorist attackspolitical unrest and the current hostilities in the Middle East or other ypeoglucing regions
may adversely impact the price and availability of propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas, as well a
our results of operations, our ability to raise capital and our future growth. The impact that the foregoingenoay ha
our industry in general, and on us in particular, is not known at this time. An act of terror could result in disruptions of
crude oil or natural gas supplies and markets (the sources of propane and fuel oil), and our infrastructure facilitie
couldbe direct or indirect targets. Terrorist activity may also hinder our ability to transport propane, fuel oil and other
refined fuels if our means of supply transportation, such as rail or pipeline, become damaged as a result of an attac
A lower level ofeconomic activity could result in a decline in energy consumption, which could adversely affect our
revenues or restrict our future growth. Instability in the financial markets as a result of terrorism could also affect our
ability to raise capital. Terrist activity, political unrest and hostilities in the Middle East or other energy producing
regions could likely lead to increased volatility in prices for propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels and natural gas.
We have opted to purchase insurance @y for terrorist acts within our property and casualty insurance programs,
but we can give no assurance that our insurance coverage will be adequate to fully compensate us for any losses
our business or property resulting from terrorist acts.

Our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by governmental regulation and
associated environmental and health and safety costs.

Our business is subject to a wide and ever increasing range of federal, state and local lagudetiothserelated
to environmental and health and safety matters including those concerning, among other things, the investigation ar
remediation of contaminated sogroundwaterand other environmental medind the transportation of hazardous
materials. These requirements are complex, changing and tend to become more stringent over time. In addition, v
are required to maintain various permits that are necessary to operate our facilities, some of which artoroaterial
operations. There can be no assurance that we have been, or will be, at all times in complete compliance with &
legal, regulatory and permitting requirements or that we will not incur significant costs in the future relating to such
requirementsViolations could result in penalties, or the curtailment or cessation of operations.

Moreover, currently unknown environmental issues, such as the discovery of additional contamination, may resul
in significant additional expenditures, and potentiaiynificant expenditures also could be required to comply with
future changes to environmental laws and regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof. Such expenditure
if required, could have a material adverse effect on our business, finaaiition or results of operations.

We are subject to operating hazards and litigation risks that could adversely affect our operating results to the
extent not covered by insurance.

Our operations are subject to all operating hazards and risksalprassociated with handling, storing and
delivering combustible liquids such as propane, fuel oil and other refined fuels. We have been, and are likely tc
continue to be, a defendant in various legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordimseyatdusiness, both
as a result of these operating hazards and risks and as a result of other aspects of our business -Wierd &elf
general and product, workers’ compensation and automobile liabilities up to predetermined amounts above which
third-party insurance applies. We cannot guarantee that our insurance will be adequate to protect us from all materi
expenses related to potential future claims for personal injury and property damage or that these levels of insurant
will be available aeconomical prices, or that all legal matters that arise will be covered by our insurance programs.
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If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms or effectively integrate such acquisitions
into our operations, our financiaperformance may be adversely affected.

The retail propane and fuel oil industries are matiiée expect overall demand for propane and fuel oil to be
relatively flat to moderately declining over the next several yeafish respect to our retail propa business, it may
be difficult for us to increase our aggregate number of retail propane customers except through acquisitions. As
result, we expect the success of our financial performance to depend, in part, upon our ability to acquire other reta
propane and fuel oil distributors or other energlated businesses and to successfully integrate them into our existing
operations and to make cost saving changes. The competition for acquisitions is intense and we can make r
assurance that we will belalto acquire other propane and fuel oil distributors or other emelgied businesses on
economically acceptable terms or, if we do, to integrate the acquired operations effectively.

The adoption of climate change legislation could result in increasgmbrating costs and reduced demand for the
products and services we provide.

In December 2009, the EPAsued an “Endangerment Finding” under the Clean Air Act, determining that
emissions of GHGgresent an endangerment to public health and the environment because emissions of such gase
may be contributing to warming of the earth’s atmosphere and other climatic changes. Based on these findings, the
EPA has begun adopting and implementing regulatio restrict emissions @HGsandrequire reporting by certain
regulated facilities on an annual basi$he EPA’s authority to regulate GHGs was recently upheld by the U.S.
Supreme Court.

Both Houses of the United States Congress also have consatbwpting legislation to reduce emissions of
GHGs AlthoughCongress has not yet enacted federal climate change legistatiorrous states and municipalities
have adopted laws and policies on climate change

The adoption of federal or state climate ajahegislation or regulatory programs to reduce emissio@&His
could require us to incur increased capital and operating costs, with resulting impact on product price and demant
We cannot predict whether or in what foalimate change legislatioprovisions and renewable energy standards
may be enacted. In addition, a possible consequence of climate change is increased volatility in season
temperatures. It is difficult to predict how the market for our fuels would be affected by increased temperature
volatility, although if there is an overall trend of warmer temperatures, it could adversely affect our business.

Our use of derivative contracts involves credit and regulatory risk and may expose us to financial loss.

From time to time, we enter intoedging transactions to reduce our business risks arising from fluctuations in
commodity pricesand interest rates. Hedging transactions expose us to risk of financial loss in some circumstances
including if the other party to the contract defaults oroltigations to us or if there is a change in the expected
differential between the price of the underlying commaodity or financial metric provided in the hedging agreement and
the actuahmountreceived.

Required transactional margins, capital, recordkegpeporting, clearing and settlement as a result of legislation
(such as theDoddFrank Ac) and related existing and proposed administrative rulemaking may increase our
operational and transactional cost of entering and maintaining derivatives catrdcadversely affect the number
and/or creditworthiness of derivatives counterparties available to us. If we reduce our use of derivatives as a result
legislation and regulations, our results of operations may become more volatile and our cashyfloe less
predictable.

Because wedepend on particular management information systems to effectively manage all aspects of our
delivery of propase, a failure in our operational systems or cyber security attacks on any of our facilities, or those
of third parties, may adversely affect our financial results.

We depend on our management information systems to process orders, manage inventory and accounts receiva
collections, maintain distributor and customer information, maintainefbstent operatios and assist in delivering
our products on a timely basis. In addition, our staff of management information systems professionals relies heavil

14



on the support of several key personnel and vendors. Any disruption in the operation of those managemer
information systems, loss of employees knowledgeable about such systems, termination of our relationship with on
or more of these key vendors or failure to continue to modify such systems effectively as our business expands coul
negatively affect our business.

If any of our financial, operational, or other data processing systems fail or have other significant shortcomings,
our financial results could be adversely affected. Our financial results also could be adversely affected if an
employee or third partgauses our operational systems to fail, either as a result of inadvertent error or by deliberately
tampering with or manipulating our operational systems. In addition, dependence upon automated systems ma
further increase the risk that operational sysflws, employee tampering or manipulation of those systems will
result in losses that are difficult to detect or reganpluding damage to our reputatiofio the extent customer data
is hacked or misappropriated, we could be subject to liability exi@ffl persons.

Risks Related to the Inergy Propane Acquisition and the Related Transactions

We may not be able to successfullgmplete the integratonof ner gy Pr opaneds operatio
which could cause our business to suffer.

In order to obtain all of the anticipated benefits of the Inergy Propane Acquisition, we riakyl tombine and
integrate the businesses and operations of Inergy Propane withAdtlneugh we have developed, arhve
substantially implementec detailedntegration plan, theomplete integrationf two large businesses is a complex
and costly procesdVe continue todevote significant management attention and resources to integritiofgthe
business practices and operations of Suburban and Inerggnerdfthough we believe that it has not yet done so,
theintegration process main the futuredivert the attention of our executive officers and management frortoday
day operations and disrupt the business of Suburban arat,dbmpletedffectively, maypreclude realization of the
full expected benefits of the transaction.

Our failure to meet the challenges involved in successtdippleting thefull integration ofinergy Propane’s
operations with our operations or otherwise to realize any efattticipated benefits of the Inergy Propane
Acquisition could adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, the overall integration of Suburban and
Inergy Propane mayet result in unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities and competgponsesilthough
not yet experienced to any significant degree, postiilfficulties that may yet arise from our continuing efforts to
fully combineour two operationscouldinclude, among others:

» operating a significantly larger combined company with operations in more geographic areas;
* maintaining employee morale and retaining key employees;

» developing and implementing employment polices to facilitate workforce integration, and, where ag
labor and union relations;

e preserving important strategic and customer relationsaiys;

fully integrating the cultures of Suburban and Inergy Propane.

In addition, even if we are able to successfaliynplete thdull integration ofour businesses and operations, we
may not fully realize the expected benefits of the Inergy Propane Acquisitilsim tie intended time frame, or at all.
Further, our posacquisition results of operations may be affected by factors different from those existing prior to the
Inergy Propane Acquisition and may suffer as a result of the Inergy Propane Acquisitioreséif,avecan give no
assurancghat the combination of our business and operations with Inergy Propane will result in the realization of the
full benefits anticipated from the Inergy Propane Acquisition.
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We haveincurred and continue to incur substgtial expenses related to thietegration of Inergy Propane.

We have incurred and expect to continue to incur substantial expenses in connection with the Inergy Propan
Acquisition and integrating the business, operations, networks, systems, technglotisgss and procedures of
Suburban and Inergy Propanélthough Suburban has assumed that a certain level of transaction and integration
expenses would be incurred, there are a number of factors beyond our control that could affect the total amount or t
timing of these integration expensddthough integrdon expenses have been, to date, within the expected range,
manyof the expenseget tobe incurredare by their nature, difficult to accuratedstimateat the present time. Due to
these factors, théotal transaction and integration expenses associatitthe Inergy Propane Acquisition could
exceed the savings that we expect to achieve from the elimination of duplicative expenses and the realization c
economies of scale and cost savings related to the integration of the businesses. As a reseltexpémses,
Suburban has taken, and expects to continue to take, charges against its earnings relatiagqtosttien and
integrationof Inergy Propane. The charges relating toabguisition and integration ¢fiergy Propane have been and
expect tocontinue to be significant, although the aggregate amount and timing of all such charges are uncertain a
present.

Risks Inherent in the Ownership of Our Common Units
Cash distributions are not guaranteed and may fluctuate with our performance athér external factors.

Cash distributions on o@ommonUnits are not guaranteed, and depend primarily on our cash flow and our cash
on hand. Because they are not dependent on profitability, which is affected-bgstoitems, our cash distributions
might be made during periods when we record losses and might not be made during periods when we record profits.

The amount of cash we generate may fluctuate based on our performance and other factors, including:

1 the impact of the risks inherent in dursiness operations, as described above;

9 required principal and interest payments on our debt and restrictions contained in our debt instruments;

9 issuances of debt and equity securities;

9 our ability to control expenses;

9 fluctuations in working capital;

9 capital expenditures; and

9 financial, business and other factors, a number which will be beyond our control.

Our Partnership Agreement gives our Board of Supervisors broad discretion in establishing cash reserves fo
among other things, the proper conduct of our business. These cash reserves will affect the amount of cash availal

for distributions.

We have gbstantial indebtedness. Our debt agreements may limit our ability to make distributiobsitholders,
as well as our financial flexibility.

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 our longterm debt borrowings consisted of $25@n@dlion in aggregate principal
amouwnt of 7.375% senior notes due March 15, 2020 (excluding unamortized disc&1r2 ofillion), $346.2million
in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes due August 1, 2021 (excluding unamortized pf&2®ur
million), $525.0 million in aggreate principal amount of 5.5% senior notes due June 1, 2884,$100.0 million
under our senior secured revolving credit facililihe payment of principal and interest on our debt will reduce the
cash available to make distributions on our common unitaddition, we will not be able to make any distributions
to holders of our common units if there is, or after giving effect to such distribution, there would be, an event of
default under the indentures governing $aaior notes. The amount of distribans that we may make to holders of
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our common units is limited by theenior notes, and the amount of distributions that the Operating Partnership may
make to us is limited by our revolving credit facility.

The revolving credit facility and the seniootes both contain various restrictive and affirmative covenants
applicable to us and the Operating Partnership, respectively, including (i) restrictions on the incurrence of additiona
indebtedness, and (iigstrictions on certain liens, investments, rgnéees, loans, advances, payments, mergers,
consolidations, distributions, sales of assets and other transactions. The revolving credit facility contains certail
financial covenants: (agquiring our consolidated interest coverage ratio, as defineé, notdess than @to 1.0 as
of the end of any fiscal quartéand commencing with the third quarter of fiscal 2014, such minimumisa®i® to
1.0); (b) prohibiting our total consolidated leverage ratio, as defined, from being greater than 4.7®t&10o 1.0
during an acquisition period, as defined in the credit agreement governing the credit facility) as of the end of any
fiscal quarter; and (c) prohibiting the senior secured consolidated leverage ratio, as defined, of the Operatin
Partnershigrom being greater than 3.0 to 1.0 as of the end of any fiscal quahteler theindentures governing the
senior note, we are generally permitted to make cash distributions equal to available cash, as defined, as of the end «
the immediately precedinguarter, if no event of default exists or would exist upon making such distributions, and
our consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined, is greater than 1.75 to 1. We and the Operating Partners!
were in compliance with all covenants and teroisthe senior notes and the revolving credit facility as of
SeptembeR7, 2014

The amount and terms of our debt may also adversely affect our ability to finance future operations and capita
needs, limit our ability to pursue acquisitions and othernmssi opportunities and make our results of operations
more susceptible to adverse economic and industry conditions. In addition to our outstanding indebtedness, we may
the future require additional debt to finance acquisitions or for general busirressgs) however, credit market
conditions may impact our ability to access such financing. If we are unable to access needed financing or to genere
sufficient cash from operations, we may be required to abandon certain projects or curtail capitatuexpend
Additional debt, where it is available, could result in an increase in our leverage. Our ability to make principal and
interest payments depends on our future performance, which is subject to many factors, some of which are beyond ¢
control. As interest expense increases (whether due to an increase in interest rates and/or the size of aggreg:
outstanding debt), our ability to fund distributiaos our Common Unitenay be impacted, depending on the level of
revenue generation, which is not assd.

Unitholders have limited voting rights.

A Board of Supervisorgovernsour operations.Unitholders have only limited voting rights on matters affecting
our business, including the right to elect the members of our Board of Supervisors every three years and the right 1
vote on the removal of the general partner.

It may be difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to bmitholders.

Some provisions of our Partnership Agreement may discourage, delay or prevent third parties from acquiring us
even if doing so would be beneficial to ounitholders. Fo example, our Partnership Agreement contains a
provision, based on Secti@®3 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, that generally prohibits the Partnership
from engaging in a business combination with a 15% or greatigholder for a period of thregears following the
date that person or entity acquired at least 15% of our outsta@dimgnonUnits, unless certain exceptions apply.
Additionally, our Partnership Agreement sets forth advance notice proceduresUoithalder to nominate a
Supervisorto stand for election, which procedures may discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a
solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of Supervisors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of the
Partnership. These nominatipnocedures may not be revised or repealed, and inconsistent provisions may not be
adopted, without the approval of the holders of at lea®/8% of the outstandinGommonUnits. These provisions
may have an antakeover effect with respect to transan8 not approved in advance by our Board of Supervisors,
including discouraging attempts that might result in a premium over the market priceGuntimonUnits held by
our Unitholders.
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Unitholdersmay not have limited liability in some circumstances.

A number of states have not clearly established limitations on the liabilities of limited partners for the obligations
of a limited partnership. OWwnitholdersmight be held liable for our obligations as if they were general partners if:

9 a court orgovernment agency determined that we were conducting business in the state but had not compliec
with the state’s limited partnership statute; or

9 Unitholders’ rights to act together to remove or replace the General Partner or take other actions under our
Partnership Agreement are deemed to constitute “participation in the control” of our business for purposes of
the state’s limited partnership statute.

Unitholders may have liability to repay distributions.

Unitholders will not be liable for assessmemtsddition to their initial capital investment in ti@mmonuUnits.
Under specific circumstances, howevemitholders may have to repay to us amounts wrongfully returned or
distributed to them. Under Delaware law, we may not make a distributldnitioolders if the distribution causes our
liabilities to exceed the fair value of our assets. Liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests an
nonrecourse liabilities are not counted for purposes of determining whether a distributionii;edeDelaware law
provides that a limited partner who receives a distribution of this kind and knew at the time of the distribution that the
distribution violated Delaware law will be liable to the limited partnership for the distribution amountderytars
from the distribution date. Under Delaware law, an assignee who becomes a substituted limited partner of a limite
partnership is liable for the obligations of the assignor to make contributions to the partnership. However, such al
assignee is nmbligated for liabilities unknown to him at the time he or she became a limited partner if the liabilities
could not be determined from the partnership agreement.

If we issue additional limited partner interests or other equity securities as considerdor acquisitions or for
other purposes, the relative voting strength of eddhitholder will be diminished over time due to the dilution of
eachUni t hol der6s interests and addit iUnitheder. t axabl e i nco

Our Partnership Agreement generally allows us to issue additional limited partner interests and other equity
securities without the approval of ounitholders. Therefore, when we issue additicbainmonuUnits or securities
ranking on a parity with th€ommon Units, eachUnitholder’s proportionate partnership interest will decrease, and
the amount of cash distributed on ed@dmmonUnit and the market price &@ommonUnits could decrease. The
issuance of addition&LommonUnits will also diminish the relate voting strength of each previously outstanding
Common Unit. In addition, the issuance of additio@mmon Units will, over time, result in the allocation of
additional taxable income, representing binlgains at the time of the new issuance, todtdstholders that existed
prior to the new issuance.

Tax Risks to Unitholders

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership 8. federal income tax purposes. The Internal
Revenue Service (Al RS0) could treat wus as a corpor a
distribution to Unitholders.

The anticipated afteiax economic benefit of an investment in @ammonUnits depends largely on our being
treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If less than 90% of the gross income of a publicly trad
partnership, such as Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., for any taxable year is “qualifying income” within the meaning
of Section7704 of the Internal Revenue Code, that partnership will be taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal
income tax purposes for that taxable year and all subsequent years.

If we were treated as a corporation for U.S. feldex@me tax purposes, then we would pay U.S. federal income

tax on our income at the corporate tax rate, which is currently a maximum of 35%, and would likely pay additional
state income tax at varying rates. Because a tax would be imposed upon uspasadi@o, our cash available for
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distribution toUnitholderswould be substantially reduced. Treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material
reduction in the anticipated cash flow and afger return toUnitholdersand thus would likely resuin a substantial
reduction in the value of o@ommon Whits.

The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships or an investment in @ommon ULhits could be subject to
potential legislative, judicial or administrative changes and differing interpretations thereof, possibly on a
retroactive basis.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including Sulvapzare P
Partners, L.P., or an investment in d@ommon Uhits may be modified by legislative, judicial or administrative
changes and differing interpretations thereof at any time. Any modification to the U.S. federal income tax laws or
interpretations theréanay or may not be applied retroactivelyloreover, any such modification could make it more
difficult or impossible for us to meet the exceptibiat allows publicly traded partnerships that generate qualifying
income to be treated as partnerships émathan as corporations) for U.S. federal income tax purposes, affect or cause
us to change our business activities, or affect the tax consequences of an investmer@omroan Units. For
example, legislation proposed by members of Congress and thdelptdsas considered substantive changes to the
definition of qualifying income. One of the requirements for such classification is that at least 90% of our gross
income for each taxable year has been and will be “qualifying income” within the meaning of Section7704 of the
Internal Revenue Code. Whether we will continue to be classified as a partnership in part depends on our ability t
meet this qualifying income test in the future. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from th
IRS on this or any other tax matter affecting u&le are unable to predict whether any of these changes, or other
proposals, will ultimately be enacted. Any such changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in ou
units.

In addition, because afidespread state budget deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways t
subject partnerships to entigvel taxation through the imposition of state income, franchise and other forms of
taxation.

A successful IRS contest of tHd.S.federal income tax positions we take may adversely affect the market for our
CommonUnits, and the cost of any IRS contest will reduce our cash available for distribution tounitholders.

We have not requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a partnersh fieateral
income tax purposes or any other matter affecting us. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from the positions w
take. It may be necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of the positions w
take. A courtmay not agree with the positions we take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely
impact the market for olCommonuUnits and the price at which they trade. In addition, our costs of any contest with
the IRS will be borne indirectly by olunitholders because the costs will reduce our cash available for distribution.

AUni t hol derés tax |l iabil ity CommornUdits.exceed cash distri

Because oulnitholders are treated as partnexdJnitholder is required to pay.S. federalincome taxes and
state and local income taxes on its allocable share of our inceitteut regard to whether we make cash
distributions tothe Unitholder We cannot guarantee thatUmitholder will receive cash distributions equal to its
allocable sharef our taxable income or even the tax liability to it resulting from that income.

Ownership of Common Units may have adverse tax consequences for-éagmpt organizations and foreign
investors.

Investment inCommonUnits by certain tasexempt entities and foreign persons raises issues specific to them.
For example, virtually all of our taxable income allocated to organizations exemptJi®nfiederal income tax,
including individual retirement accounts and otherreatient plans, will be unrelated business taxable income and
thus will be taxable to thenitholder. Distributions to foreign persons will be reduced by withholding taxes at the
highest applicable effective tax rate, and foreign persons will be requiféel thS. federalincometax returns and
pay tax on their share of our taxable income.-&aemptorganizationsand foreign persons should consuhd
should depend ortheir own tax advisors1 analyzing the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign incaxand other
tax consequences of the acquisitionnevship or disposition of @nmonUnits.
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The ability of aUnitholder to deduct its share of our losses may be limited.

Various limitations may apply to the ability ofunitholderto deduct its share of our losses. For example, in the
case of taxpayers subject to the passive activity loss rules (generally, individuals and closely held corporations), an
losses generated by us will only be available to offset our future incomeaandtde used to offset income from
other activities, including other passive activities or investments. Such unused losses may be deducted when it
Unitholderdisposes of its entire investment in us in a fully taxable transaction with an unrelatedymrtgs a sale
by a Unitholder of all of its Common Units in the open markeUnitholder’s share of any net passive income may
be offset by unused losses from us carried over from prior years, but not by losses from other passive activitie:
including lesses from other publicliraded partnerships.

The tax gain or loss on the disposition @bmmonUnits could be different than expected.

A Unitholder who sell&CommonUnits will recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount
realized and its adjusted tax basis in t@emmon Units. Prior distributions in excess of cumulative net taxable
income allocated to @ommonUnit which decreased @nitholder’s tax basis in that CommonUnit will, in effect,
become taxable income if tl@dmmonUnit is sold at a price greater than theitholder’s tax basis in that Common
Unit, even if the price is less than the original cost ofGenmonUnit. A portion of the amount realized, if the
amount realized exceeds theitholder’s adjusted basis in that CommonUnit, will likely be characterized as ordinary
income. Furthermore, should the IRS successfully contest some conventions usedUnyithelder could recognize
more gain on the sale @ommonUnits than would be the case under those conventigitisout the benefit of
decreased income in prior yeardn addition, because the amount realized will include a holder’s share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, if &nitholder sells itsCommon Uhits, suchUnitholder may incur a tax liability in excess of
the amount of cash it receives from the sale.

Reporting of partnership tax information is complicated and subject to audits.

We intend to furnish to each Unitholder, within 90 days after the close of each calendar year, specific tax
information, includinga Schedul&-1 that sets forth its allocable share of income, gains, losses and dedtartions
our preceding taxable yeain preparing these schedules, we uséouaraccounting and reporting conventions and
adopt various depreciation and amortization methMise. cannot guarantee that these conventions will yield a result
that conforms to statutory or regulatory requirements or to administrative pronouncenmtietdRE. Further, our
income tax return may be audited, which could result in an audilUniitaolder’s income tax return and increased
liabilities for taxes because of adjustments resulting from the audit.

We treat each purchaser of ou€ommon Units as having the same tax benefits without regard to the actual
Common Units purchased. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of the
CommonUnits.

Because we cannot match transferors and transfer€égmmhonUnits and because of other reasons, uniformity
of the economic and tax characteristics of@loenmonUnits to a purchaser @ommonUnits of the same class must
be maintained. To maintain uniformity and for other reasons, we have adopted certain depesuiatiomrtization
conventionghatmay be inconsistent with Treasury Regulations. A successful IRS challenge to those positions could
adversely affect the amount of tax benefits available tigholder. It also could affect the timing of these tax
benefts or the amount of gain from the saleGafmmonUnits, and could have a negative impact on the value of our
CommonUnits or result in audit adjustments t&Jaitholder’s income tax return.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction betweansferors and transferees of outommon
Units each month based upon the ownership of diommon Uhits on the first day of each month, instead of on
the basis of the date a particuld@@ommon Uit is transferred. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could
change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss and deduction amondJmitholders.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and traofsfare€ommon
Units each month based upon the ownership ofGmmmon Uits on the first day of each month, instead of on the
basis of the date a particul@ommon Uit is transferredThe U.S. Treasury Department has issued proposed
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Treasury Regulationshat provide a safe harbor pursuant to which publicly traded partnerships may use a similar
monthly simplifying convention to allocate tax items among transferors and transferees of our common units.
However, f the IRS were to challengmur proratiormettod, we may be required to change the allocation of items of
income, gain, loss and deduction amongduitholders.

Unitholders may have negative tax consequences if we default on our debt or sell assets.

If we default on any of our debt obligatiormar lenders will have the right to sue us for qp@yment. This could
cause an investment loss and negative tax consequenddsitfuslders through the realization of taxable income by
Unitholders without a corresponding cash distribution. Likewise, ifwanee to dispose of assets and realize a taxable
gain while there is substantial debt outstanding and proceeds of the sale were applied to thétkieloers could
have increased taxable income without a corresponding cash distribution.

The sale or eghange of 50% or more of oucapital and profits interestgluring any twelvemonth period will
result inthe termination of our partnership for federal income tax purpose

We will be considered to have terminated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes if there is a sale
exchange of 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a -mehth period. Our
termination would, among oth#rings, result in the closing of our taxable year fothitholdersand could result in
a deferral of depreciation deductions allowable in computing our taxable income. In the chisdttodlder reporting
on a taxable year other than the calendar yharclosing of our taxable year may also result in more than twelve
months of our taxable income or loss being includable in his taxable income for the year of termination. Our
termination currently would not affect our treatment as a partnership forfétl&al income tax purposes, but
instead, after our termination we would be treated as a new partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
treated as a new partnership, we must make new tax elections and could be subject to penalties if we #ye unab
determine that a termination occurred.

There are state, local and other tax considerations for &mitholders.

In addition toU.S. federal income taxe&Jnitholders will likely be subject to other taxes, such as state and local
taxes, unincorp@ted business taxes and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the variou
jurisdictions in which we do business or own property, even iflh#holder does not reside in any of those
jurisdictions. AUnitholder will likely be requied to file state and local income tax returns and pay state and local
income taxes in some or all of the various jurisdictions in which we do business or own property and may be subjec
to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. It ig¢lponsibility of eactunitholder to file all US.
federal, state and local income tax returns that may be requiesdtiddnitholder.

A Unitholder whoseCommon lthi t s are | oaned to a fsh@ammondsatd mhaglbed t o
considered as having disposed of thdSemmon Units. If so, that Unitholder would no longer be treated for tax
purposes as a partner with respect to th@emmon Uhits during the period of the loan and may recognize gain or

loss from the dispsition.

Because there is no tax concept of loaning a partnership interest, a Unitholder whose Common Units #&oe loaned
a “short seller” to cover a short sale @ommon Unitanay be considered as having disposed of the lo@oetmon
Units. In that cases Unitholdemrmay no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect tGdhasen
Units during the period of the loato the short selleend may recognize gain or loss from such disposition.
Moreover, diring the period of the loato theshort sellerany of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect to
thoseCommon Unitamay not be reportabley the Unitholdeand any cash distribution receily the Unitholdeias
to thoseCommon Unitscould be fully taxable as ordinary incomélnitholders desiring to ensure their stahs
partnes and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short s&lleuld consult their own tax advisors to
discuss whether it is advisalite modify any applicable brokerage account agreements kabgrtheir brokets from
borrowingtheir Common Units
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 we ownedapproximately73% of our customer service center and satellite locations and
leased the balance olr retail locations from third partiesWe own andoperate a 22 million gallon refrigerated
aboveground propane storage facility in EIk Grove, California. Additionally, we own our principal executive offices
located in Whippany, New Jersey.

The transportation of propane requires specialized equipment. The trucks and railroad tank cars utilized for thi
purpose carry specialized steel tanks that maintain the propane in a liquefied state. As of S2ptetihémve had a
fleet of 12 transpotr truck tractors, of which we ownéeg] and 23 railroad tank cars, of which we owned none. In
addition, as of Septemb@7, 2014we had1,347 bobtail and rack trucks, of which we own&d%, 139 fuel olil
tankwagons, of which we owndiB%, and1,360 other déivery and service vehicles, of which we owrgie. We
lease the vehicles we do not owfs of Septembe27, 2014 we also owne®50,257customer propane storage tanks
with typical capacities of 100 to 500 gallos9,294customer propane storage tankthwypical capacities of over 500
gallons andl03,967portable propane cylinders with typical capacities of five to ten gallons.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Litigation

Our operations are subject to operating hazards and risks normally incideméaldling, storing and delivering
combustible liquids such as propane. We have been, and will continue to be, a defendant in various legal proceedin
and litigation as a result of these operating hazards and risks, and as a result of other aspedisiiness.
Although any litigation is inherently uncertain, based on past experience, the information currently available to us,
and the amount of our accrued insurance liabilities, we do not believe that currently pending or threatened litigatior

matters, or known claims or known contingent claims, will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
financial condition or cash flow.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.
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PART II

ITEM5. MARKET FOR THE REGI STRANT 6 RELETEMWUNDINOLDER MASTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF UNITS

(a) Our Common Units, representing limited partner interests in the Partnership, are listed and traded on the Nev
York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol SPH. As of November 2 2014, there weré70 Unitholders

of record (based on the number of record holders and nominees for those Common Units held in street name
The following table presents, for the periods indicated, the highlamdsales prices per Common Unit, as
reported on the NYSE, and the amount of quarterly cash distributions declared and paid per Common Unit in
respect of each quarter.

Cash Distribution

Common Unit Price Range Declared per
High Low Common Unit
Fiscal 2014
First Quarter $ 48.90 $ 44.21 $ 0.8750
Second Quarter 47.16 39.91 0.8750
Third Quarter 48.61 40.94 0.8750
Fourth Quarter 46.21 41.13 0.8750
Fiscal 2013
First Quarter $ 44.82 $ 36.69 $ 0.8750
Second Quarter 44.80 38.09 0.8750
Third Quarter 50.25 41.93 0.8750
Fourth Quarter 49.50 44.21 0.8750

We make quarterly distributions to our partners in an aggregate amount equataitalrle Cash (as defined in

our Partnership Agreement) with respect to such quarter. Available Cash generally means all cash on hand at tt
end of the fiscal quarter plus all additional cash on hand as a result of borrowings subsequent to thelend of su
guarter less cash reserves established by the Board of Supervisors in its reasonable discretion for future ca
requirements.The amount of distributions thate may make to holders of our Commonitd is limited by the

senior notes, and the amountdi$tributions that the Operating Partnership may make to us is limited by our
revolving credit facility.See “Risk Factors—We have substantial indebtedne&3ur debt agreements may limit

our ability to make distributions to Unitholders, as well as ouanfiial flexibility” and “Management’s
Discussion and AnalysisLiquidity and Capital Resources.”

We are a publicly traded limited partnership and, other than certain corporate subsid&riase taxed as
corporationswe are not subject tworporate levelederal income tax. Instead, Unitholders are required to report
their allocable share of our earnings or loss, regardless of whether we make distributions.

(b) Not applicable.

(c) None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table pesents our selected consolidated historical financial data as derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements, certain of which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report. All amounts in the

table below, except per unit data, are in thousands

Year Ended
September  September  September  September  September
27,2014 28, 2013 29, 2012 (a) 24,2011 25, 2010

Statement of Operations Data
Revenues $ 1,938,257 $ 1,703,606 $ 1,063,458 $ 1,190,552 $ 1,136,694
Costs and expenses 1,748,131 1,526,630 1,003,885 1,047,324 980,508
Acquisition-related costs (b) - - 17,916 - -
Pension settlement charge (c) - - - - 2,818
Operating income 190,126 176,976 41,657 143,228 153,368
Interest expense, net 83,261 95,427 38,633 27,378 27,397
Loss on debt extinguishment (d) 11,589 2,144 2,249 - 9,473
Provision for income taxes 767 607 137 884 1,182
Net income 94,509 78,798 638 114,966 115,316
Net income per Common Unit - basic (e) 1.56 1.35 0.02 3.24 3.26
Net income per Common Unit - diluted (e) 1.56 1.34 0.02 3.22 3.24
Cash distributions declared per unit $ 350 % 350 $ 341 $ 341 % 3.35
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92639 $ 107,232 $ 134,317 $ 149553 $ 156,908
Current assets 294,865 293,322 337,515 297,822 296,427
Total assets 2,609,363 2,727,987 2,883,850 956,459 970,914
Current liabilities 222,266 233,894 253,715 151,514 164,514
Total debt 1,242,685 1,245,237 1,422,078 348,169 347,953
Total liabilities 1,587,910 1,598,861 1,793,351 598,241 608,258
Partners' capital - Common Unitholders $ 1,067,358 $ 1,176,479 $ 1,151,606 $ 418,134 $ 419,882
Statement of Cash Flows Data
Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities $ 225551 $ 214,306 $ 110,973 $ 132,786 $ 155,797

Investing activities (16,532) (14,663) (239,758) (19,505) (30,111)

Financing activities $ (223,612) $ (226,728) $ 113,549 $ (120,636) $ (131,951
Other Data
Depreciation and amortization $ 136,399 $ 130,384 $ 47,034 $ 35628 $ 30,834
EBITDA (f) 314,936 305,216 86,442 178,856 174,729
Adjusted EBITDA (f) 338,502 329,253 108,536 179,425 192,420
Capital expenditures - maintenance and growth (g) $ 30052 $ 27823 $ 17476 $ 22,284 $ 19,131
Retail gallons sold

Propane 530,743 534,621 283,841 298,902 317,906

Fuel oil and refined fuels 49,071 53,710 28,491 37,241 43,196

(@) Fiscal 2012 includes 53 weeks of operations compared to 52 weeks in each 20fig¢a013,2011and2010. In
addition, on August 1, 2012, we acquired Inergy Propane. The results of operations of Inergy Propane have bee
included in the consolidated results from Aauisition Datethrough September 29, 2042d all of fiscal 2013
and fiscal 2014and the assets and liabilities of Inergy Propane have been included in the consolidated balance she
since September 29, 2012. Refer to Note Acquisition of Inergy Propane included within the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements section elsewhere in this Annual Report.

(b) Due to the Inergy Proparfecquisition on August 1, 2012 we recordachjuisitionrelated cost®f $17.9 million

during fiscal 2012 These costs were primarily attributable to investment banker, legal, accounting and other
consulting fees.
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(d)

(e)

®

We incurred nortash pension settlement charges of $2.8 million during fiscal 204€celerate the recognition
of actuarial losses in our defined benefit pension plan as a result of theflduelp sum retirement benefit
payments made.

On May 27, 2014,we repurchased and satisfied and discharged all of our 2018 Senior Notes witbceetls

from the issuance of the 2024 Senior Notes and cash on hand pursuant to a tender offer and redamption.
connection with thigender offer and redemptipwe recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of6$11
million consisting of $35 nillion for the redemption premium and related fees, as well as theoffriod $5.3

million and ($253) million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized premium, respect®aly.
August 2, 2013we repurchased pursuant to optional redem&ik88.4 million of our7.375% Senior Notes due
August 1, 2021sing net proceeds from our May 2013 public offering and net proceeds from the underwriters’

exercise of their oveallotment option to purchase additional Common Units. In addition, on AGgast3, we
repurchased $23.9 million of our 2021 Senior Notes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In connectio
with these repurchases, which totaled $157.3 million in aggregate principal amount, we recognized a loss on th
extinguishment of delof $2.1 million consisting of $11.7 million for the repurchase premium and related fees, as
well as the writeoff of $2.1 million and ($11.7) million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized
premium, respectively. During fiscal 2012 weamenled the Credit Agreement (the “Amended Credit
Agreement”) to increase the fivgear $250 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) to

$40Q0 million, of which, $100 million was outstanding as of Septembét 2014, and also toextend the
maturity date from June 22013 to January 5, 2017n connection with the execution of the Amended Credit
Agreement, we recognized a noash charge of 35 million for the writeoff of previously incurred debt
origination costs associatedtkvlenders who did not participate, or whose lending capacity decreased, in the
amended facility On August 1, 2012, we amended the Amended Credit Agreement to provide for.@ $250
million senior secured 36day incremental term loan facility (the “364-Day Facility”). On August 1, 2012, in
connection with the Inergy Propane Acquisition, we drew $225.0 million on th®&g4acility and on August

14, 2012, using the proceeds of our secondéfering of common units, we repaid the $225.0 million term loan
facility, and wrote off $1.7 million of unamortized commitment fees associated with tAB&86&acility. During

fiscal 2010 we completed the issuance of $250.0 million of 7.375% sertes n@turing in March 2020 to
replace the previously existing 6.875% senior notes that were set to mature in December 2013. In connectio
with the refinancing, we recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $9.5 million in the second quarter of fiscal
2010, consisting of $7.2 million for the repurchase premium and related fees, as well as thdf vofit$2.2

million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized discount.

Computationsof basic earnings per Commdinit were performedby dividing net income by the weighted
average number of outstanding Common Units, and restricted units granted un2@@®and 2009 Restricted

Unit Plans (which we collectively refer to as the “Restricted Unit Plans” or the “RUP”) to retiremenieligible

grantes. Computations of diluted earnings per Common Unit were performed by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of outstanding Common Units and unvested restricted units granted under ou
Restricted Unit PlansOn May 17, 2013, we sold 2.7 mitlh Common Units in a public offering. nQMay 22,

2013, following the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option,we sold an additionab.4 million
Common Units.On August 1, 202, in connection with the Inergy Propane Acquisition, we issue? mlion
Common Units, and on August 14, 2012, we soltl fillion Common Units in a secondary offering. Those
Common Units have been included in basic and diluted earnings per common unit from the respective dates c
issuance.

EBITDA represents net income before deducting interest expense, income taxes, depreciatioartration.
Adjusted EBITDArepresents EBITDA excluding the unrealized net gain or loss from-toariarket activity for
derivative instrumentandother cerdin items as provided in the table bel@wur management usé8ITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA as measures of liquidity and we are including them because we believe that they provide our
investors and industry analysts with additional information to evaluateallity to meet our debt service
obligations and to pay our quarterly distributions to holders of our Common Units. EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA are not recognized terms under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“US GAAP”) and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or net cash provided by
operating activities determined in accordance with GISAP. Because EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as
determined by us excludes some, but not all, items that affedhewmne, they may not be comparable to
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled measures used by other companies.

The following table sets forth (i) our calculations of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA and (ii) a reconcili@tion
EBITDA and Adjusted EBIDA, as so calculated, to our neish provided by operatiragtivities (amounts in

thousands):
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 94509 $ 78,798 $ 638 $ 114966 $ 115,316
Add:
Provision for income taxes 767 607 137 884 1,182
Interest expense, net 83,261 95,427 38,633 27,378 27,397
Depreciation and amortization 136,399 130,384 47,034 35,628 30,834
EBITDA 314,936 305,216 86,442 178,856 174,729
Unrealized (non-cash) (gains) losses on
changes in fair value of derivatives (306) 4,318 (4,649) (1,431) 5,400
Integration-related costs 12,283 10,575 - - -
Loss on debt extinguishment 11,589 2,144 2,249 - 9,473
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - 7,000 - - -
Acquisition-related costs - - 17,916 - -
Loss on legal settlement - - 4,500 - -
Loss on asset disposal - - 2,078 - -
Severance charges - - - 2,000 -
Pension settlement charge - - - - 2,818
Adjusted EBITDA 338,502 329,253 108,536 179,425 192,420
Add (subtract):
Provision for income taxes (767) (607) (137) (884) (1,182)
Interest expense, net (83,261) (95,427) (38,633) (27,378) (27,397)
Unrealized (non-cash) gains (losses) on
changes in fair value of derivatives 306 (4,318) 4,649 1,431 (5,400)
Integration-related costs (12,283) (10,575) - - -
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - (7,000) - - -
Acquisition-related costs - - (17,916) - -
Loss on legal settlement - - (4,500) - -
Severance charges - - - (2,000) -
Compensation cost recognized under
Restricted Unit Plans 7,390 3,888 4,059 3,922 4,005
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net (521) (3,543) (727) (2,772) 38
Changes in working capital and other
assets and liabilities (23,815) 2,635 55,642 (18,958) (6,687)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 225551 $ 214,306 $ 110,973 $ 132,786 $ 155,797

(9 Our capital expenditures fall generally into two categories: (i) maintenance expenditures, which include
expenditures for repair angplacement of property, plant and equipment; and (ii) growth capital expenditures
which include new propane tanks and other equipment to facilitate expansion of our customer base and operatir
capacity.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENTOS DI SCUSSI| ONOFANANCIRNCGAONYITONSAND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion of our financial condition and results of operations, which should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Executive Overview

The following are factors that regularly affect our operating results and financial condition. In addition, our
business is subject to the risks and uncertainties described in Item 1A of this Annual Report.

Product Costs and Supply

The level of profitability in the retail propane, fuel oil, natural gas and electricity businesses is largely dependent
on the difference between retail sales price andcoss to acquire and transport product$he unit cost of our
products, particuldy propane, fuel oil and natural gas, is subject to volatility as a result of supply and demand
dynamics or other market conditions, including, but not limited to, economic and political factors impacting crude oil
and natural gas supply or pricing. Weterninto product supply contracts that are generallyy@ma® agreements
subject to annual renewal, and also purchase product on the open market. We attempt to reduce price risk by pricil
product on a shotterm basis. Our propane supply contracts sifyigorovide for pricing based upon index formulas
using the posted prices established at major supply points such as Mont Belvieu, Texas, or Conway, Kansas (pl
transportation costs) at the time of delivery.

To supplement our annual purchase requirdmewe may utilize forward fixed price purchase contracts to
acquire a portion of the propane that we resell to our customers, which allows us to manage our exposure t
unfavorable changes in commodity prices and to assure adequate physical supplyercEnegage of contract
purchases, and the amount of supply contracted for under forward contracts at fixed prices, will vary from year tc
year based on market conditions.

Changesin our costs to acquire and transport prodwets occur rapidly over a shgperiod of time and can
impact profitability. There is no assurance that we will be able to pass on pacdudition and transportati@ost
increases fully or immediately, particularly wheachcosts increase rapidly. Therefore, average retais gaiees
can vary significantly from year to year aar costs fluctuate witlihe propane, fuel oil, crude oil and natural gas
commodity markes and infrastructureonditions. In addition, periods of sustained higher commaoadaiitgl/or
transportatiorpricescan lead to customer conservation, resulting in reduced demand for our product

Seasonality

The retail propane and fuel oil distribution businesses, as well as the natural gas marketing business, are seaso
because these fuels are primarily used for heating in residential and commercial buildifigigrically,
approximately twethirds of ourretail propane volume is sold during the-siwnth peak heating season from October
through March. The fuel oil business tends to experience greater seasonality given its more limited use for spac
heating and approximately thrésurths of our fuel oil viumes are sold between October and Mar€Consequently,
sales and operating profits are concentrated in our first and second fiscal quarters. Cash flows from operation
therefore, are greatest during the secand third fiscal quarters when customeay ffor product purchased during
the winter heating season. We expect lower operating profits and either net losses or lower net income during th
period from April through September (our third and fourth fiscal quarters). To the extent necessary resemwd
cash from the second and third quarters for distribution to holders of our Common Units in the fourth quénter and
following fiscal year first quarter.

Weather
Weather conditions have a significant impact on the demand for our productsticalpr propane, fuel oil and
natural gas, for both heating and agricultural purposes. Many of our customers rely heavily on propane, fuel oil o

natural gas as a heating source. Accordingly, the volume sold is directly affected by the severitwintethe
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weather in our service areas, which can vary substantially from year to yeany given area, sustained warmer
than normal temperatures will tend to result in reduced propane, fuel oil and natural gas consumption, while sustaine
colder than nonal temperatures will tend to result in greater consumption.

Hedging and Risk Management Activities

We engage in hedging and risk management activities to reduce the effect of price volatility on our product cost:
and to ensure the availability of produturing periods of short supply. We enter into propane forveguiibrs and
swap agreements with third parties, and use futures and a@ptiontracts traded on the New York Mercantile
Exchange (“NYMEX”) to purchase and sell propane, fuel oil and crude oil at fixed prices in the future The majority
of the futures, forwarcnd optiors agreements are used to hedge price risk associated with propane and fuel oil
physical inventory, as well as, in certain instances, forecasted purchases of propaneilor fueldulition, we sell
propane and fuel oil to customers at fixed prices, and entedarigative instrumentso hedge a portion of our
exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices as a result of selling the fixed price corfmatard contracts ar
generally settled physically at the expiration of the contract whereas fuiptiEss and swagontracts are generally
settled at the expiration of the contréfutough a net settlement mechanisAlthough we use derivative instruments
to reduce the effect of price volatility associated with priced physical inventory and forecasted transactions, we do nc
use derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes. Risk management activitiesitoeed by an internal
Commodity Risk Management Committee, made up of five members of management and reporting to our Audit
Committee, through enforcement of our Hedging and Risk Management Policy.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our sigificant accounting policies are summarized in Note Qummary of Significant Accounting Policies
included within the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements section elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Certain amounts included in or affecting aansolidated financial statements and related disclosures must be
estimated, requiring management to make certain assumptions with respect to values or conditions that cannot |
known with certainty at the time the financial statements are prepared. rdargiion of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities &
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We are also subject to risks and uncertainties that may cat
actual results to differ im estimated results. Estimates are used when accounting for depreciation and amortization
of longlived assets, employee benefit plans, -s&firance and litigation reserves, environmental reserves,
allowances for doubtful accounts, asset valuation sssggs and valuation of derivative instruments. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments abaa#rtyiag values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Any effects on our business, financial position or results o
operations resulting from revisions to these estimates are recorded in the period in which thatfgists rise to the
revision become known to us. Management has reviewed these critical accounting estimates and related disclosul
with the Audit Committee of our Board of Supervisors. We believe that the following are our critical accounting
estimaes:

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts.We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of our customers to make required payments. We estimate our allowances for doubtful accounts
using a specific reserverf@nown or anticipated uncollectible accounts, as well as an estimated reserve for potential
future uncollectible accounts taking into consideration our historical-offise If the financial condition of one or

more of our customers were to deterionasulting in an impairment in their ability to make payments, additional
allowances could be required. As a result of our large customer base, which is compapedogimatelyl.2

million customers no individual customer account is materialherefoe, while some variation to actual results
occurs, historically such variability has not been material. Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, provides
a summary of the changes in our allowances for doubtful accounts during the period.
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Pensionand Other Postretirement BenefitsWe estimate the rate of return on plan assets, the discount rate used to
estimate the present value of future benefit obligations and the expected cost of future health care benefits i
determining our annual pension aather postretirement benefit costs. While we believe that our assumptions are
appropriate, significant differences in our actual experience or significant changes in market conditions may
materially affect our pension and other postretirement benefigailiins and our future expensadith other
assumptions held constant, an increase or decrease badi8(points in the discount rate would have an immaterial
impact on net pension and postretirement benefit cBats:Liquidity and Capital Resources - Pension Plan Assets

and Obligations” below for additional disclosure regarding pension benefits.

SelfInsurance ReservesOur accrued sefihsurance reserves represent the estimated costs of known and anticipated
or unasserted claims under our general product, workers’ compensation and automobile insurance policies.

Accrued insurance provisions for unasserted claims arising from unreported incidents are based on an analysis
historical claims data. For each unasserted claim, we recordiasse#fince provision up to the estimated amount of

the probable claim utilizing actuarially determined loss development factors applied to actual claims data.- Our self
insurance provisions are susceptible to change to the extent that actual claims develdfarefftoch historical

claims development. We maintain insurance coverage wherein our net exposure for insured claims is limited to the
insurance deductible, claims above which are paid by our insurance carriers. For the portion of our estimated sel
insurance liability that exceeds our deductibles, we record an asset related to the amount of the liability expected to k
paid by the insurance companies. Historically, we have not experienced significant variability in our actuarial
estimates for claims durred but not reported. Accrued insurance provisions for reported claims are reviewed at least
guarterly, and our assessment of whether a loss is probable and/or reasonably estimable is updated as necessary.
to the inherently uncertain nature of, particular, product liability claims, the ultimate loss may differ materially
from our estimates. However, because of the nature of our insurance arrangements, those material variatior
historically have not, nor are they expected in the future to hangterial impact on our results of operations or
financial position.

Loss Contingencies.In the normal course of business, we are involved in various claims and legal proceedings. We
record a liability for such matters when it is probable that a las$éen incurred and the amounts can be reasonably
estimated. The liability includes probable and estimable legal costs to the point in the legal matter where we believe
conclusion to the matter will be reached. When only a range of possible loss estalidished, the most probable
amount in the range is accrued. If no amount within this range is a better estimate than any other amount within th
range, the minimuramount in the range is accrued.

Fair Values of Acquired Assets and LiabilitiesFromtime to time, we enter into material business combinations. In
accordance with accounting guidance associated with business combinations, the assets acquired and liabilities assun
are recorded at their estimated fair value as of the acquisition dat@albas of assets acquired and liabilities assumed

are based upon available information and may involve us engaging an independent third party to perform an apprais:
Estimating fair values can be complex and subject to significant business judgstiemitds most commonly impact
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including goodwill. Generally, we have, if necessary, up to on
year from the acquisition date to finalize our estimates of acquisition date fair values.

Results of Operatons and Financial Condition

Net income for fiscaR014amountedo $94.5million, or $1.56per Common Unjtcompared to #3.8million, or
$1.35per Common Unit, in fisca2013 Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”)
for fiscal2014amounted t&314.9million, compared to $05.2million for fiscal 2013

Net income and EBITDA for fisc&lO14included (i) $12.3million in expenses related toglongoing integration
of Inergy Propane and (ii) a loss on debt extinguishmenfLbfe$nillion. Net income and EBITDA for fisc&2013
included: (i) $10.6 million in expenses related to the ongoing integration of Inergy Propane; (ii) $7.0 million in
charges related t@ur voluntary withdrawal from mulkemployer pension plans covering certain employees acquired
in the Inergy PropanAcquisition; and (iii) a loss on debt extinguishment of $2.1 milli&xcluding the effects of
these charges, as well as tlmarealized (nortash) marko-market adjustments on derivative instruments in both
years, Adjusted EBITDA (as defined and reconciled below) amountg83&5million for fiscal 2014 an increase
of $9.2 million, or 2.8%¢compared to Adjusted EBITDA of329.3million in fiscal 2013
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Retail propane gallons sold for fisc014decreased 3.Million gallons, or0.7%, to530.7million gallons from
534.6 million gallons in fiscal2013 Sales of fuel oil and other refined fuels atlerreased 8%, to 49.1 million
gallons from53.7 million gallons in the prior yearAccording to the NOAA, average temperatures (as measured by
heating degree days) across albaf service territories during fiscal 2014 were 3% colthain normal and 7% colder
than the prioryear period. However, the weather pattern during the winter heating season (October 2013 through
March 2014) was characterized by considerably colder than normal temperatueservice territories in the east
and midwest regions, whereasir service territories in the west experienced unseasonably warm temperatures
throughout the period Average temperatures in the western territories during this past winter heating season were
11% warmer than normal and 6% warmer than the comparable periloe prior year, which negatively impacted
volumes sold in those territories. Additionally, volumes sold during fiscal 2014 were adversely affected by supply
corstraints resulting from industiwide supply shortages and logistics issues, as well asmgestconservation
attributable taa significant rise in wholesale propane prices.

During fiscal 2014, we made significant progress, not only in our integration efforts with regards to Inergy
Propane, but also in executing our strategic financing iniéativio highlight a few key accomplishments for fiscal

2014:
T

T

We completed our system conversions and much of the physical blending activities associated with the
integration of Inergy Propane;

We have installed our operating model across the entire platioid have migrated to one common
brand;

We successfully refinardour previous 7.5% Senior Notes due 2018 with new 5.5% Senior Notes due in
2024, which effectively extended maturities on this portion of our debt by six years and reduced our cash
interestrequirement by more than $8 million annually; and

We have successfully transitionamlir senior leadershipteam in accordance with Boardpproved
succession plans.

As we look ahead to fisc&l015 our anticipated cash requirements include: (i) mainte:amo growth capital
expenditures of approximatel4.0 million; (ii) approximately $9.4million of interest and income tax payments; and
(iii) approximately £11.6 million of distributions to Unitholders, assuming distributioresnain at the current
annualized ratef $3.50 per Common UnitBased on our current cash positmin$92.6 million as of September 27,
2014 andhavailability under the Revolving Credit Facility (unused borrowing capacit2®5 3 million at September
27, 2012 and expected sa flow from operating activities, we expect to have sufficient funds to meet our current and
future obligations.

Fiscal Year2014Compared to Fiscal Yea2013

Revenues
(Dollars in thousands)
Percent
Fiscal Fiscal Increase / Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease)  (Decrease)
Revenues
Propane $ 1,606,840 $ 1,357,102 $ 249,738 18.4%
Fuel oil and refined fuels 194,684 208,957 (14,273) (6.8%)
Natural gas and electricity 87,093 79,432 7,661 9.6%
All other 49,640 58,115 (8,475) (14.6%)
Total revenues $ 1,938,257 $ 1,703,606 $ 234,651 13.8%

Total revenues increase@d3.7 million, or 13.8%, to $,938.3million for fiscal 2014compared to $,703.6million
for the prior year due thigheraverage propane, fuel oil and refined fuels and natural gas selling, jpffses to an
extent by lower volumes soldAs discussed above, average temperataeméasured in heating degree days) across all
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of our service territories for fisc&014were 3% colderthan normal, compared &6 warmer than normah the prior

year. However, the weather pattern during the fiscal 2014 heating season was chardoyewaecher than normal
temperatures for the first two months of the period, followed by significantly colder than normal temperatures for the
remainder of the heating season. In addition, during the peak of our heating season, we experienced consideral
colder than normal temperatures in our east and midwest service territories, but sustained unseasonably war
temperatures in our western territorigsverage temperatures in our western territories during the fiscal 2014 heating
season were 11% warntdan normal and 6% warmer than the comparable prior year period.

Revenues from the distribution of propane and related activitiel @& 8million for fiscal 2014increased $49.7
million, or 18.446, compared to %357.1million for the prior year, prirarily due to higheaverage retail selling prices
associated with higher wholesale propane costs, partially offset by a decrease in retail propane voludvesragkl
propane selling prices for fiscal 2014 increased 20.0% compared to the prias yeesult of higher wholesale propane
costs resulting in a $254.6 million increase in revenues -gearyear. Retail propane gallons sold in fiscz2D14
decreased 3.8illion gallons, or0.7%, to530.7million gallons from534.6million gallons in the por year. Volumes
sold during fiscal 2014 were adversely affected by supply constraints resulting from kvddstisupply shortages and
logistics issues adversely affecting propane transportation sourcing andhebstsrsisted throughout much of our
heating season.Customer conservation attributable to the significant rise in propane prices also adversely affected
volumes sold. Lower retail propane volumes sold resulted idlecreasén revenues of $3 million for fiscal 2014
compared to the prior year. Included within the propane segment are revenues from other propane actidtiies of $
million for fiscal 2014 which increased44 million compared to the prigrear.

Revenues from the distribution of fuel oil and refirfeels of $94.7 million for fiscal 2014 decrease14.3
million, or 6.8%, from $09.0million for the prior year, primarily due tower volumes sold, partially offset dyigher
average selling priced-uel oil and refined fuels gallons sold in fis@@iL4 decreased 4.Gillion gallons, or8.6%, to
49.1million gallons from53.7million gallons in the prior year, primariljue toa decline inower margin gasoline and
diesel volumes. Lowefuel oil and refined fuels volumes sold resulted ideareasén revenues of $8.0million for
fiscal 2014 compared to the prior year. Average selling prices in our fuel oil and refined fuels segment 20figdcal
increased 2% compared to the prior year, resulting irBa7$nillion increasen revenues yeaoveryear.

Revenues in our natural gas and electricity segment increaseaiion, or 9.6%, to 87.1million in fiscal 2014
compared to 3.4 million in the prior year as a result bigher average selling prices for natural gas and electricity as a
realt of higher average wholesale costs, partially offset by lower electricity.usage

Cost of Products Sold

(Dollars in thousands)
Percent
Fiscal Fiscal Increase / Increase /
2014 2013 (Decrease)  (Decrease)
Cost of products sold
Propane $ 844855 $ 612,240 $ 232,615 38.0%
Fuel oil and refined fuels 155,773 172,022 (16,249) (9.4%)
Natural gas and electricity 64,448 55,995 8,453 15.1%
All other 15,674 21,648 (5,974) (27.6%)
Total cost of products sold $1,080,750 $ 861,905 $ 218,845 25.4%
As a percent of total revenues 55.8% 50.6%

The cost of products sold reported in the consolidated statements of operations represents the weighted avere
unit cost of propane, fuel oil and refined fuels, natural gas and electricity sold, including transportation costs to
deliver product from ourupply points to storage or to our customer service centers. Cost of products sold also
includes the cost of appliances and related parts sold or installed by our customer service centers computed on a be
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that approximates the average cost of the prisdubtinrealized (nowash) gains or losses from changes in the fair
value of derivative instruments that are not designated as cash flow hedges are recorded within cost of products so
Cost of products sold excludes depreciation and amortization; #meants are reported separately within the
consolidated statements of operations.

In the commodities markets, propane prices were extremely volatile during fiscal 2014 as a tfessitpgly and
logistics issues that started late in the first fisparter and continued throughout most of the second quarter. Overall,
average posted prices for propane for fizi@l4were24.8% higherthan the prior yeawhile fuel oil prices were.1%
lower than the prior year The net change in the fair value d@ridative instruments during the period resulted in
unrealized (nortash)gainsof $0.3 million and unrealized (neoash)lossesof $4.3million reported in cost of products
sold in fiscal2014and2013 respectively, resulting in @ecreasef $4.6 million in cost of products sold in fiscaD14
compared to the prior ye&4.4 millionof whichwasreported in the propane segment.

Cost of products sold associated with the distribution of propane and related activitdgl.8dillion for fiscal
2014increased $32.6million, or 38.0%, compared to the prior yearimarily due to higher wholesat®stsand higher
transportation costs associated with the extraordinary measures we took to ensure adequate propane supplies w
delivered to our custoer service centers to meet customer demand during the heating de&gwr. average propane
costs resulted in an increase o8%3 million, partially offset by a decrease of $4.3 million related to lower propane
volumes soldduring fiscal 2014 compared tbe prior year Cost of products sold from other propane activities
increaseds8.0million.

Cost of products sold associated with our fuel oil and refined fuels segmefab®B #illion for fiscal 2014
decrease®16.2 million, or 9.4%, compared to the prior yeatower fuel oil and refined fuels volumes sadupled
with lower wholesale costs resulted in decreases of $14.8 million and $1.4 million, respectively, in costs of products sol
during fiscal 2014 compared tcetiprior year.

Cost of products sold in our natural gas and electricity segmer@4of fillion for fiscal 2014 increased &.5
million, or 15.1%, compared to the prior year, primarily due to highatural gas anelectricity wholesalecosts
partially offset by lowewrolumes sold

Total cost of products sold as a percent of total reveimgesaseb.2 percentage points t65.8% in fiscal2014
from 50.8% in the prior year, primarily due to thise in wholesale propane costs outpacimgrite in propane average
selling prices during fiscal 2014.

Operating Expenses

(Dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Fiscal Percent
2014 2013 Decrease Decrease
Operating expenses $ 466,389 $ 469,496 $ (3,107) (0.7%)
As a percent of total revenues 24.1% 27.6%

All costs of operating our retail distribution and appliance sales and service operations are reported within
operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. These operating expenses include the compense
and benefits of field and dice operating support personnel, costs of operating and maintaining our vehicle fleet,
overhead and other costs of our purchasing, training and safety departments and other direct and indirect costs
operating our customer service centers.

Operatingexpenses of466.4million for fiscal 2014decrease®3.1 million, or 0.7%, compared to469.5million in
the prior year, primarily dugo synergiegealizedas a result ofhe continuing integration of Inergy Propane operations,
which was offset to amxtent byhigher overtime and vehicle expenses attributable to harsh weather conditions during
our fiscal 2014 heating seasas, well aigherprovisions for potential uncollectible accoun@perating expenses for
fiscal 2014 includedintegrationrelaied expensesf $8.1 million associated with the integration of the Inergy Propane
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operationscompared to $4.6 million in the prior yedn addition, fscal 2013 included a $7.0 million charge related to
our voluntary partial withdrawal from a mukemployer pension plan and full withdrawal from four mdtnployer
pension plangor certain employees acquired in the Inergy Propane Acquisilibase charges weexcluded from our

calculation of Adjusted EBITDA below.

General and Administrative Expenses

(Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative expenses
As a percent of total revenues

$

Fiscal

2014
64,593
3.3%

$

Fiscal Percent
2013 Decrease Decrease
64,845 $ (252) (0.4%)
3.8%

All costs of our back office support functions, including compensation and benefits for executives and other
support functions, as well as other costs and expenses to maintain finance and accounting, treasury, legal, hum
resources, corporate development and the information systems functions are reported within general anc
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

General and administrative expenses@f.6million for fiscal 2014wasrelatively flatcompared to the prior year
General and administrative expens$esfiscal 2014 and 201Bicluded $42 million and $6.0 million, respectivelyf
professional services and other expenses associated with the integration of the Inergy dpre@dions.These items

were excluded from our calculation of Adjusted EBITDA below.

Depreciation and Amortization

(Dollars in thousands)

Depreciation and amortization
As a percent of total revenues

$

Fiscal
2014
136,399

7.0%

$

Fiscal Percent
2013 Increase Increase
130,384 $ 6,015 4.6%

7.7%

Depreciation and amortization expense &B8&4 million in fiscal 2014 increased 6.0 million, primarily as a
result ofdepreciation expense on buildings, vehicles and equipment taken out of service as athesotegfationof

Inergy Propane operatians

Interest Expense, net

(Dollars in thousands)

Interest expense, net
As a percent of total revenues

$

Fiscal

2014
83,261
4.3%

$

Fiscal Percent
2013 Decrease Decrease
95,427 $ (12,166) (12.7%)
5.6%

Net interest expense 08%.3million for fiscal 2014decrease®12.2million compared to $5.4million in the prior
year, primarily due to theeduction of $157.3 million in lonterm borrowings during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013
and, to a lesser extetihe impact of theefinancing of our 7.5% Senior Notes due 2018 with 5.5% Senior Notes due
2024 completed during the third quarter of fiscal 2018ee Liquidity and Capital Resources below for additional

discussion.
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Loss on Debt Extinguishment

On May 27, 2014,we repurchasednd satisfied and discharged all of our 2018 Senior Notes with net proceeds
from the issuance of the 2024 Senior Notes and cash on hand pursuant to a tender offer and redemption.
connection with thisender offer and redemptipwe recognized a loss ahe extinguishment of debt of $B1million
consisting of $356 million for the redemption premium and related fees, as well as theaoffrieé $5.3 million and
($25.3) million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized premium, respectively.

On August 2, 2013we repurchasegursuant toan optional redemption$133.4 million of our7.375% senior
notes due August 1, 2021sing net proceeds from our May 2013 public offering and net proceeds from the
underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option to purchase additional Common Units. In addition, on August 6,
2013, we repurchased $23.9 million of our 20#hior notes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In
connection with these repurchases, which totaled $157.3 million ingeggrprincipal amount, we recognized a loss
on the extinguishment of debt of $2.1 million consisting of $11.7 million for the repurchase premium and related fees
as well as the writeff of $2.1 million and ($11.7) million in unamortized debt originatmosts and unamortized
premium, respectively.

Net Income and Adjusted EBITDA

Net income for fiscaR014amounted to $4.5million, or $1.56 per Common Unit, compared t@&8million, or
$1.35per Common Unit, in fisca2013 Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”)
for fiscal2014amounted to $14.9million, compared to $05.2million for fiscal 2013

Net income and EBITDA for fiscél014included: (i) §2.3million in expenses related thd ongoing integration
of Inergy Propanand(ii) a loss on debt extinguishment af %6 million. Net income and EBITDA for fisc&2013
included: (i) $10.6 million in expenses related to the ongoing integration of Inergy Propane; (ii) $7.0 million in
chages related tour voluntary withdrawal from mulemployer pension plans covering certain employees acquired
in the Inergy PropanAcquisition; and (iii) a loss on debt extinguishment of $2.1 milli&xcluding the effects of
these charges, as well agthnrealized (nowash) marko-market adjustments on derivative instruments in both
years, Adjusted EBITDA amounted t@38.5million for fiscal 2014 compared to Adjusted EBITDA 0f389.3
million in fiscal 2013

Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDé&xcluding the unrealized net gain or loss from marknarket activity for
derivative instruments and other certain items as provided in the table below. Our management uses EBITDA an
Adjusted EBITDA as measures of liquidity and we are including therausecwe believe that they provide our
investors and industry analysts with additional information to evaluate our ability to meet our debt service obligations
and to pay our quarterly distributions to holders of our Common Units. EBITDA and Adjusted ERifeDnot
recognized terms under US GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or net cash provid
by operating activities determined in accordance with US GAAP. Because EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as
determined by us excludes sorbet not all, items that affect net income, they may not be comparable to EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titted measures used by other companies.
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The following table sets forth (i) our calculations of EBITRAd adjusted EBITDAand (ii) a reconciliation of
bothEBITDA and adjusted EBITDAas so calculated, to our net cash provided by operating activities

(Dollars in thousands) Year Ended
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
Net income $ 94,509 $ 78,798
Add:
Provision for income taxes 767 607
Interest expense, net 83,261 95,427
Depreciation and amortization 136,399 130,384
EBITDA 314,936 305,216
Unrealized (non-cash) (gains) losses on changes
in fair value of derivatives (306) 4,318
Integration-related costs 12,283 10,575
Loss on debt extinguishment 11,589 2,144
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - 7,000
Adjusted EBITDA 338,502 329,253
Add (subtract):
Provision for income taxes (767) (607)
Interest expense, net (83,261) (95,427)
Unrealized (non-cash) gains (losses) on changes
in fair value of derivatives 306 (4,318)
Integration-related costs (12,283) (10,575)
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - (7,000)
Compensation cost recognized under Restricted Unit Plans 7,390 3,888
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (521) (3,543)
Changes in working capital and other assets and liabilities (23,815) 2,635
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 225,551 $ 214,306
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Fiscal Year 203 Compared to Fiscal Year 2@

Revenues
(Dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Fiscal Percent
2013 2012 Increase Increase
Revenues
Propane $ 1,357,102 $ 843,648 $ 513,454 60.9%
Fuel oil and refined fuels 208,957 114,288 94,669 82.8%
Natural gas and electricity 79,432 67,419 12,013 17.8%
All other 58,115 38,103 20,012 52.5%
Total revenues $ 1,703,606 $ 1,063,458 $ 640,148 60.2%

Total revenues increased4®Gl million, or 60.2%, to $17036 million for fiscal 2013 compared tdl635 million
for the prior year due to higher volumes sold, offset to an extent by lower average propane, fuel oil arfdeisfiaed
natural gas selling prices. The increase in sales volumes was primarily due to the addition of the Inergy Propar
business, as well as increases in our legacy operations resulting from colder average tempssatis@sssed above,
average tenperatures (as measured in heating degree days) across all of our service territories for fiscal 2013 were 4
warmer than normal, compared @4 warmer than normal for the prior year.

Revenues from the distribution of propane and related activitles387.1 million for fiscal 2013 increased$35
million, or 60.9%, compared to 836 million for the prior year, primarily due to higher volumes sold, partially offset
by lower average selling prices associated with lower product costs. Retail propane gallons sold in fiscal 2013 increas
250.8 million gallons, or88.4%, to 534.6 million gallons from 83.8 million gallons in the prior year, primarily as a
result of the addition of Inergy Propane, as well as increases in our legacy operations resulting from colder averac
temperatures. Higheetail propane volumes sold resulted in an @se in revenues 06%9.8 million for fiscal 2013
compared to the prior year. Average propane selling prices for fiscal 2013 decte&&eddinpared to the prior year
due to lowemwholesaleproduct costs, resulting in 4@..9 million decrease in revees yeaioveryear. Included within
the propane segment are revenues frizk management activities amther propane activities of74.7 million for
fiscal 2013, whichincreased @6 million compared to the prior yeas higher volumes from other propaativities
were substantially offset by lower volumes from wholesale and risk management activities

Revenues from the distribution of fuel oil and refined fuels200® million for fiscal 2013 increased 49 million,
or 82.8%, from $.14.3 million for the prior year, primarily due to higher volumes sold, partially offset by lower average
selling prices. Fuel oil and refined fuels gallons solfisnal 2013 increasedb2 million gallons, 0r88.4%, to 53.7
million gallons from 8.5 million gallons inthe prior year, primarily as a result of the addition of Inergy Propane, as well
as increases in our legacy operations resulting from colder average temperatures. Higher fuel oil and refined fue
volumes sold resulted in an increase in revenues d@.Sflllion for fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year. Average
selling prices in our fuel oil and refined fuels segment in fiscal 2013 decr2#&@édcompared to the prior year,
resulting in a $.8 million decrease in revenues yeaeryear.

Revenues irour natural gas and electricity segment increased$tlion, or 17.8%, to 9.4 million in fiscal
2013 compared to6%.4 million in the prior year as a result of higher natural gas volumes sold, and higher electricity
average selling prices. The irase in volumes sold was primarily attributable to the more favorable weather pattern in
fiscal 2013, compared to the unseasonably warm weather in the prior year.
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Cost of Products Sold

(Dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Fiscal Percent
2013 2012 Increase Increase
Cost of products sold
Propane $ 612,240 $ 448,120 $ 164,120 36.6%
Fuel oil and refined fuels 172,022 91,239 80,783 88.5%
Natural gas and electricity 55,995 46,915 9,080 19.4%
All other 21,648 12,785 8,863 69.3%
Total cost of products sold $ 861,905 $ 599,059 $ 262,846 43.9%
As a percent of total revenues 50.6% 56.3%

Average posted prices for propane for fiscal 2013 W82% lower than the prior yeaand fuel oil prices were
essentially flat yeaoveryear Total cost of products sold increased®#2 million, or 43.9%, to 8619 million in
fiscal 2013 compared 86991 million in the prior year due to higher volumes sold, partially offset by lower average
propane product costs. The net change in the fair value of derivative instruments during the period resulted in unrealiz
(noncash)lossesof $4.3 million andunrealized (noftash)gainsof $4.6 million reported in cost of products sold in
fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively, resulting in an increase3.8frillion in cost of products sold in fiscal 2013
compared to the prior year, all of which was reportatiérpropane segment.

Cost of products sold associated with the distribution of propane and related activigd2 2fndillion for fiscal
2013 increased $461 million, or36.6%, compared to the prior year. Highetail propane volumes sold resultiedan
increase of $33.4 million in cost of products sold during fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year. The impact of the
increase in volumes sold was partially offset by lower average propane costs, which resulte®@® aniflion
decrease in cost @iroducts sold/earoveryear Cost of products sold from other propane activities decred®d $
million in fiscal 2013 compared to the prior yegrimarily due to lower sales from wholesale and risk management
activities

Cost of products sold assated with our fuel oil and refined fuels segment o7 2K million for fiscal 2013
increased $88.million, or 885%, compared to the prior yegrimarily due to fgher fuel oil and refined fuels volumes
sold.

Cost of products sold in our natuigds and electricity segment o560 million for fiscal 2013 increased $9.
million, or 19.4%, compared to the prior year, primarily due to higher natural gas volumes sold, and higher electricity
product costs.

Total cost of products sold as a percent of total revenues decEagmtcentage points to 5% in fiscal 2013
from 56.3% in the prior yearprimarily due tothe decline in propane wholesale product costs outpacing the decline in
propane average sellipgices. In addition, colder average temperatures and the inclusion of Inergy Propane operations
resulted in a higher concentration of residential volumes sold in fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year, which had
favorable impact on overall gross masgin
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Operating Expenses

(Dollars in thousands)

Operating expenses
As a percent of total revenues

Fiscal
2013
$ 469,496
27.6%

$

Fiscal
2012
298,772

28.1%

$

Increase
170,724

Percent
Increase
57.1%

Operating expenses o#A&.5 million for fiscal 2013 increased $0.7 million, or 57.1%, compared to $B.8
million in the prior year, primarily due to the addition of Inergy Propane, offsehtextent by lower payroll and benefit
related expenses in our legacy operations resulting from operating efficiencies. In addition, operating expenses for fisc
2013 included a®0 million charge related to our voluntary partial withdrawal from a reatiployer pension plan and
full withdrawal fromfour multi-employer pension plans, and a chasf$§4.6 millionprimarily for severance costs, both
chargesvere associated with the integration of the Inergy Propane operafibesechargesvere excludedrom our

calculation of Adjusted EBITDA below.

As a result of the progress on our efforts to integrate the operations of Inergy Propane, including the initial proces
of blending geographic territories and systems, which commenced at the beginnintpicd ipearter of fiscal 2013, we
have realized certain synergies in the combined operating expenses of Inergy Propane and our legacy operations.

General and Administrative Expenses

(Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative expenses
As a percent of total revenues

Fiscal
2013
$ 64,845
3.8%

$

Fiscal

2012
59,020
5.5%

$

Increase
5,825

Percent
Increase
9.9%

General and administrative expenses 4.8 million for fiscal 2013 increased58 million compared to 59.0
million for the prior year, primarily due to higher variable compensation associated with higher earnings, offset to an
extent by a $2 million gain onthe sale of an asset in fiscal 2018 addition, general and administrative expenses for
fiscal 2013 included &0 million of professional services and other expenses associated with the integration of the

Inergy Propane operations.

General and administrative expenses for fiscal 20d2dire$4.5 million charge

associated with a legal settlement andal million noncash charge from a loss on disposal of an asset used in our
natural gas and electricity busine3hese items were excluded from our calculation of Adjusted EBITDA below

Acquisitionrrelated Costs

During fiscal 2012 we recorded acquisitidiated costs of $17.9 million related to the Inergy Propane Acquisition.
These costs were primarily attributable to investment banker, legal, accounting and other consulting fees.

Depreciation and Amortization

(Dollars in thousands)

Depreciation and amortization
As a percent of total revenues

Fiscal
2013
$ 130,384
7.7%

$

Fiscal

2012
47,034
4.4%

$

Increase
83,350

Percent
Increase
177.2%
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Depreciation and amortization expense ©8®4 million in fiscal 2013 increased 3.4 million, primarily as a
result of the acquired tangible and identifiable intangible assets of Inergy €ropan

Interest Expense, net

(Dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Fiscal Percent

2013 2012 Increase Increase
Interest expense, net $ 95427 $ 38633 $ 56,794 147.0%
As a percent of total revenues 5.6% 3.6%

Net interest expense 09%4 million for fiscal 2013 increased 68 million compared to $3.6 million in the prior
year, primarily due to the issuance of $496.6 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.5% senior notes due October
2018 and $503.4 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes due August 1, 2021 in connection witt
the Inergy PropaneAcquisition on August 1, 2012. See Liquidity and Capital Resources below for additional
discussion.

Loss on Debt Extinguishment

On August 2, 2013we repurchasegursuant taan optional redemption$133.4 million of our7.375%senior
notes due August 1, 2021sing net proceeds from our May 2013 public offering and net proceeds from the
underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option to purchase additional Common Units. In addition, on August 6,
2013, we repurchased $238illion of our 2021 senior notes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In
connection with these repurchases, which totaled $157.3 million in aggregate principal amount, we recognized a los
on the extinguishment of debt of $2.1 million consisting of $11.7 million for theckase premium and related fees,
as well as the writeff of $2.1 million and ($11.7) million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized
premium, respectively.

During fiscal 2012, connection with the execution of the amendment of ourtagotement on January 5, 2012,
we recognized a necash charge of $0.5 million to writéf a portion of unamortized debt origination costs associated
with the credit agreement during the first quarter of fiscal 2012. In addition, in connection wigpdyenent, on
August 14, 2012, of borrowings under our 384y Facility (defined below)which was used as shdetrm financing to
fund a portion of the Inergy Propane Acquisition, we recognized ecamim charge of $1.7 million to write off
unamortized deborigination costs associated with the d&dy Facility during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012. See
Liquidity and Capital Resources below for additional discussion on the amendment to the credit agneeroger
financing activities

Net Income anddjusted EBITDA

Net income for fiscal 2013 amounted to $78.8 million, or $1.35 per Common Unit, compared to $0.6 million, or
$0.02 per Common Unit, in fiscal 2012. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”)
for fiscal 2A.3 amounted to $305.2 million, compared to $86.4 million for fiscal 2012.

Net income and EBITDA for fiscal 2013 included: (i) $10.6 million in expenses related to the ongoing integration
of Inergy Propane; (ii) $7.0 million in charges relatedtovoluntary withdrawal from multemployer pension plans
covering certain employees acquired in the Inergy Propamgiisition; and (iii) a loss on debt extinguishment of
$2.1 million. Net income and EBITDA for fiscal 2012 included: (i) $17.9 million in actjpisielated costs
associated with the Inergy Propahequisition; (ii) a charge of $4.5 million associated with a legal settlement; (iii) a
$2.1 million noncash charge from a loss on disposal of an assmirinatural gas and electricity business; anjl §
loss on debt extinguishment of $2.2 million. Excluding the effects of these charges, as well as the unrealized (nor
cash) marko-market adjustments on derivative instruments in both years, Adjusted EBITDA amounted ® $329.
million for fiscal 2013,compared to Adjusted EBITDA of $108.5 million in fiscal 2012.
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The following table sets forth (i) our calculations of EBITRAd adjusted EBITDAand (ii) a reconciliation of
bothEBITDA and adjusted EBITDAas so calculated, to our net cash providedgeyating activities

(Dollars in thousands) Year Ended
September 28, September 29,
2013 2012
Net income $ 78,798 638
Add:
Provision for income taxes 607 137
Interest expense, net 95,427 38,633
Depreciation and amortization 130,384 47,034
EBITDA 305,216 86,442
Unrealized (non-cash) losses (gains) on changes
in fair value of derivatives 4,318 (4,649)
Integration-related costs 10,575 -
Loss on debt extinguishment 2,144 2,249
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge 7,000 -
Acquisition-related costs - 17,916
Loss on legal settlement - 4,500
Loss on asset disposal - 2,078
Adjusted EBITDA 329,253 108,536
Add (subtract):
Provision for income taxes (607) (137)
Interest expense, net (95,427) (38,633)
Unrealized (non-cash) (losses) gains on changes
in fair value of derivatives (4,318) 4,649
Integration-related costs (10,575) -
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge (7,000) -
Acquisition-related costs - (17,916)
Loss on legal settlement - (4,500)
Compensation cost recognized under Restricted Unit Plans 3,888 4,059
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (3,543) (727)
Changes in working capital and other assets and liabilities 2,635 55,642
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 214,306 110,973

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Analysis of Cash Flows

Operating ActivitiesNet cash provided by operating activities for fis2@ll4 amounted to #25.5 million, an
increase of $1.2 million compared to the prior yearThe increase was primarily attributable to an increase in
earnings, after adjusting for na@ash items in botlperiods. In addition, average posted prices for propane during
fiscal 2014 increase@4.8% compared to therior year, which resulted in a substantiedreasein working capital
requirements yeawveryear. Cash flows from operating activities for fiscal 20b8nefited to an extent by the
realization of working capital acquired in the Inergy Propaoguisiion.

Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in investing activities af6%6 million for fiscal 2014 consisted of capital
expenditures of 30.1million (including $18.2million for maintenance expenditures andl® million to support the
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growth of operations), partially offset by the net proceeds B8.8 million from the sale of property, plant and
equipment.Net cash used in investing activities of $14.7 million for fiscal 2013 consisted of capital expenditures of
$27.8 million (including $8.3 ition for maintenance expenditures and $19.5 million to support the growth of
operations), partially offset by the net proceeds of $7.3 million from the sale of property, plant and equipment, and ne
proceeds of $5.8 million from Inergy as a result ouechase price adjustment attributable to the working capital of
Inergy Propane.

Financing ActivitiesNet cash used in financing activities for fis@all4 of $223.6 million reflects the quarterly
distribution toCommon Unitholders at a rate of 8850per Common Unit paid in respect of the fourth quarter of fiscal
2013 and the first, second and thighiartersof fiscal 2014 In addition, cash used in financing activities included
proceeds of $525.0 million from the issuance of the 2024 Senior NdWesyi2014. The net proceeds from the 2024
Senior Notes offering were used, along with cash on hand, to repurchase and satisfy and discharge all of tr
outstanding 2018 Senior Notes, as well as to pay tender premiums and other related fees of $31ahandidn
issuance costs of $9.5 million, pursuant to a tender offer and redemption.

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscal 2013 of $226.7 million reflects the quarterly distribu@iomioon
Unitholders at a rate of $0.8525 per Common Unitl i@ respect of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 and at a rate of
$0.8750 per Common Unit paid in respect of the first, second and third quarters of fiscal 2013. In addition, net cas
used in financing activities for fiscal 2013 includes proceeds d3.81mhillion from the issuance of 3,105,000 of our
Common Units in May 2013. The net proceeds from the equity offering, along with cash on hand, were used to redee!
$157.3 million of our 2021 Senior Notes in August 2013.

Equity Offering

On May 17, 203, we sold 2,700,000 Common Units in a public offering at a price of $48.16 per Common Unit
realizing proceedsf $124.7 million, net of underwriting commissions and other offering expensa&s.May 22,
2013, following the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment optionwe sold an additional 405,000 Common
Units at $8.16 per Common Unit, generating additional proceeds of Ba@llion, net of underwriting commissions.
The net proceeds from tldfering, including the net proceeds from the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment
option, were used to redeem $18illion of our 2021seniornotes in August 201,3ncluding prepayment premiums
and other expenses

Summary of LongTerm Debt Oligations and Revolving Credit Lines

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 our longterm debt consisted of $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount of
7.375% senior notes due March 15, 2020, $346.2 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes du
August 1, 2021$525.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.5% senior notes due June 1arRD3$400.0
million outstandinginder our senior secured Revolving Credit Facility.

Senior Notes
2018 Senior Notes and 2021 Senior Notes

On August 1, 2012, the Partnership and its 1@@%ed subsidiary, Suburban Energy Finance Corp., issued
$496.6 million in aggregate principal amount of unregistered 7.5% senior notes due October 1, 2018 (the “2018
Senior Notes”) and $503.4 million in aggregate principal amount of unregistered 7.375% senior notes due August 1,
2021 (the “2021 Senior Notes”) in a private placement in connection with the Inergy Propane Acquisition. Based on
market rates for similar issues, the 2018 Senior Notes and 2021r $éotes were valued at 106.875% and
108.125%, respectively, of the principal amount, onAtbguisition Dateas they were issued in exchange for Inergy’s
outstanding notes, not for cash.

On May 27, 2014,we repurchased and satisfied and dischargedfaluio 2018 Senior Notes with net proceeds
from the issuance of the 2024 Senior Npw@s defined belowand cash on hand, pursuant to a tender offer and
redemption during the third quarter of fiscal 2014n connection with thistender offer and redemptip we
recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of@bidillion consisting of $35 million for the redemption
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premium and related fees, as well as the voffeof $5.3 million and ($253) million in unamortized debt origination
costs and unamortzl premium, respectivelyThe 2018 Senior Notesquiredsemtannual interest payments in
April and October, and the 2021 Senior Notes require-semiial interest payments in February and August.

The 2021 Senior Notes are redeemable, at our optiorhdtever in part, at any timen orafter August 1, 2016,
in each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, together with any accrued and unpaid interest
date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2006, . 103.688%
2007 e 102.459%
2008, . 101.229%
2019 and thereafter...........c.ccooiviiinn. 100.000%

On December 19, 2012, we coleied an offer to exchangrir thenoutstandingunregistered 7.5% senior notes
due 2018 and 7.375% senior notes due 2@2lectively, the “Old Notes”) for an equal principal amount of 7.5%
senior notes due 2018 and 7.375% senior notes due @aiEc(ively,the “Exchange Notes”), respectively, that have
been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The terms of the Exchange Notes are identical in
material respects (including principamount interest rate, maturity and radption rights) to the Old Notes for
which they were exchangeelxcept that the Exchange Notes generally will not be subject to transfer restrictions.

On August 2, 2013, we repurchasedrsuant to optional redemptio$133.4 million of our 2021 Senidtotes
using net proceeds from our May 2013 public offering and reeegas from the underwriters’ exercise of their over-
allotment option to purchase additional Common Units. In addition, on August 6, 2013, we repurchased $23.¢
million of our 2021 SenioNotes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In connection with these repurchases,
which totaled $157.3 million in aggregate principal amount, we recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt o
$2.1 million consisting of $11.7 million for theperchase premium and related fees, as well as the-offitd $2.1
million and ($11.7) million in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized premium, respectively.

2020 Senior Notes

On March 23, 2010, the Partnership and its 1@¥ed subsidigr, Suburban Energy Finance Corp., completed
a public offering of $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes due March 15, 2020 (the
“2020 Senior Notes”). The 2020 Senior Notes were issued at 99.136% of the principal amount and require semi
annual interest payments in March and September.

The 2020 Senior Notes are redeemable, at our option, in whole or in part, at aog tnadter March 15, 2015,
in each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, togethamywaitcrued and unpaid interest to
the date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2005, 103.688%
2016, .. 102.458%
2007 . e 101.229%
2018 and thereafter...........c.ccooiiannn. 100.000%

2024 Senior Notes

As previously discussed, dviay 27, 2014 the Partnership and its 1088wned subsidiary, Suburban Energy
Finance Corp.conpleted a publioffering of $525.0 millionin aggregate principal amount 55% senior notes due
June 1, 2024the “2024 Senior Notes”). The 2024 Senior Notes were issued H1(0% of the principal amourdnd
require semannual interest payments doneand December, bagning in December 2014The net proceeds from
the issuance of the 2024 Senior Notes, along with cash on hand, were used to repurchase and satisfy and discharge
of the 2018 Senior Notes.
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The 2024Senior Notes are redeemable, at our option, in whole part, at any timen orafterJunel, 20D, in
each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, together with any accrued and unpaid interest to
date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2009, 102.750%
2020, e 101.833%
2020 100.917%
2022 and thereafter...........ccovvviiiiiiinnnn, 100.000%

Our obligations under the 20&8&nior Notes2021 Senior Noteand 2024 Senior Notésollectively, the “Senior
Notes”) are unsecured and rank senior in right of payment to any future subordinated indebtedness and equally in
right of payment with any future senior indebtedness. ThaSHotes are structurally subordinated to, which means
they rank effectively behind, any debt and other liabilities of the Operating Partnership. The Senieabldiase
a change of control provision that would require us to offer to repurchasetéseatd01% of the principal amount
repurchased, if a change of control, as defined in the indenture, occurs and is followed by a rating decline (a decrea
in the rating of the notes by either Moody’s Investors Service or Standard and Poor’s Rating Group by oneor more
gradations) within 90 days of the consummation of the change of control.

Credit Agreement

Our Operating Partnership has amended and restatecedit agreemengntered intoon January 5, 2012as
amended orAugust 1, 2012and May 9, 2014collectively, the “Amended Credit Agreement”) that provides for a
five-year $400.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), of which $100.0 million was
outstandingas of Septembe7, 2014and Septembet8, 2013 Borrowings uder the Revolving Credit Facility may
be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions. Ou
Operating Partnership has the right to prepay any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, iorniwhphat,
without penalty at any time prior to maturity.

During thesecond quartesf fiscal 2014 we eperienced a significant increase in working capiguirements as
a result of the impact ofhe significant increase in wholesale paoecosts. Tis increase in working capital
requirementsesulted in thenet borrowing of $1.7 million underour Revolving Credit Facility during fiscal 2014.
The borrowings were repaid in fulliring fiscal2014 with internally generated cash.

The amendmenand restatement othe credit agreement on January 5, 2012 amended the previous credit
agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity date from29u2013 to Januafy, 2017, reduce the
borrowing rate and commitment fees, and amend certain affirenatiet negative covenants.

On August 1, 2012, our Operating Partnership executed an amendment to the Amended Credit Agreement t
among other things, provide for (i) a $250.0 million ses@mured 364Day Facility and (ii) an increase in our revolving
credit facility under the Amended Credit Agreement from $250.0 million to $400.0 million. On the Acquisition Date,
our Operating Partnershigirew $225.0 million on the 3é@ay Facility, which was used to fund a portion of the
Inergy Propane Acquisition, inalling costs and expenses related to the acquisition. We repaid the $225.0 million of
borrowings under the 3é@ay Facility on August 14, 2012 with the net proceeds from the public issuance of
Common Units on August 14, 2012.

The amendment to th&mendedCredit Agreement on August 1, 2012 also amended certain restrictive and
affirmative covenants applicable to our Operating Partnershijoarg] as well as certain financial covenants, including
(a) requiring our consolidated imést coverage ratio, asfthed in the amendment, to be not less than 2.0 to 1.0 as of the
end of any fiscal quarter; (b) prohibiting the total consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the amendment, of th
Partnership from being greater than 7.0 to 1.0 as of the end of amlygiiscter The minimum consolidated interest
coverage ratio increases over time, and commencing witettendquarter of fiscal 2014, such minimum rais®.5
to 1.0. Themaximum consolidated leverage ratio decreases over time, as well as upmtuhence of certain
events and commencing with the second quarter of fiscal 2013, such maximumisati@5 to 1.0 (or 5.0 to 1.0
during an acquisition period as defined in the amendnang result of the issuance of Common Units in August
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2012.

The second amendment to the Amended Credit Agreenmelay 9, 2014 mde certain technical amendments
with respect to agreements relating to debt refinancing.

We act as a guarantor with respect to the obligations of our Operating Partnership urkteetided Credit
Agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth therein. The obligations under the Amended Credi
Agreement are secured by liens on substantially all of the personal property of the Partnership, the Operatin
Partnership and their sub&ries, as well as mortgages on certain real property.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility the Amended Credit Agreemebear interest at prevailing
interest rates based upon, at the Operating Partnership’s option, LIBOR plus the applicable margin or the base rate,
defined as the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus ¥ of 1%, the agent bank’s prime rate, or LIBOR plus 1%, plus in
each case the applicable margin. The applicable margin is dependerdunpatio of Consolidated Total Delib
ConsolidatecEBITDA, as defined in the Revolving Credit Facility. As of Septen#t¥r2014 the interest rate for
the Revolving Credit Facility was approximat@y%. The interest rate and the applicable margin will be reset at the
end of each calendquarter.

In connection with the Amended Credit Agreement, our Operating Partnership entered into an interest rate swa,
agreement with a June 25, 2013 effective date and a maturity date of January 5, 2017. Under this interest rate sw
agreement, our Opating Partnership will pay a fixed interest rate of 1.63% to the issuing lender on the notional
principal amount outstanding, and the issuing lender will pay our Operating Partnership a floating rate, namely
LIBOR, on the same notional principal amounteTnterest rate swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge.

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 our Operating Partnership had standby letters of credit issued under the Revolving
Credit Facility in the aggregate amount @4 million which expire periodically throughpril 3, 2015 Therefore,
as of SeptembeR7, 2014 after giving effect to $100.0 million in outstanding borrowing® had available
borrowing capacity of #55.1million under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Amenad Credit Agreement and the Senior Notes both contain various restrictive and affirmative covenants
applicable to the Operating Partnership and the Partnership, respectively, including (i) restrictions on the incurrenc
of additional indebtedness, and (i@strictions on certain liens, investments, guarantees, loans, advances, payments,
mergers, consolidations, distributions, sales of assets and other transactions. Under the Amended Credit Agreems
and theindentures governing the Senior Notes, @erding Partnership and tHeartnershiregenerally permitted
to make cash distributions equal to available cash, as defined, as of the end of the immediately preceding quarter,
no event of default exists or would exist upon making such distributiodsyitnrespect to the indentures governing
the Senior Notes, owonsolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined, is greater than 1.75Me and our
Operating Partnership were in compliance with all covenants and terms of the Senior NotesAamehttied Credit
Agreement as of Septemli&gr, 2014

Debt origination costs representing the costs incurred in connection with the placement of, and the subsequel
amendment to, lonterm borrowings are capitalized within other assets and amortized on a diredbasis over
the term of the respective dedigreements.During fiscal2014 we recognized charges db.8 million to write-off
unamortized debt origination costs associated thightender offer and redemption of our 2018 Senior Nddesing
fiscal 2013, we recognized charges of $2.1 milliowtide-off unamortized debt origination costs associated with the
repurchase of our 2021 Senior Note®ther assets at Septemi®&f, 2014and Septembe28, 2013include debt
origination costs with a net carrying amowofit21.0million and £1.3million, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of leteym debt maturities subsequent to Septer@isgeR014are as follows: fisca2015

throughfiscal 2016: $0-; fiscal 2017: $100.0 million; fisca2018: $0-; fiscal 2019: $0-; and thereafter: §121.2
million.
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Partnership Distributions

We are required to make distributions in an amount equal to all of our Available Cash, as defined in our Third
Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement, as amended (the “Partnership Agreement”), no more than 45 days
after the end of each fiscal quarterhtolders of record on the applicable record dates. Available Cash, as defined in
the Partnership Agreement, generally means all cash on hand at the end of the respective fiscal quarter less t
amount of cash reserves established by the Board of Supseniis its reasonable discretion for future cash
requirements. These reserves are retained for the proper conduct of our business, the payment of debt principal &
interest and for distributions during the next four quarters. The Board of Supervisevesréwe level of Available
Cash on a quarterly basis based upon information provided by management.

On October23, 2014 we announced thabur Board of Supervisors had declared a quarterly distribution of
$0.8750 per Common Unit for the three monthdeehSeptembe27, 2014 This quarterly distribution rate equates to
an annualized rate of $3.50 per Common Unit. The distribution was paid on NovéMmb2014to Common
Unitholders of record as of Novemi&r2014

Pension Plan Assets and Obligations

We have a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan which was originally designed to coveuedligible
employees who met certain requirements as to age and length of service. Effective January 1, 1998, we amended
defined benefit pension plato provide benefits under a cash balance formula as compared to avérade pay
formula which was in effect prior to January 1, 1998r defined benefit pension plan was frozen to new patrticipants
effective January 1, 2000 and, in furtherance of eftort to minimize future increases in our benefit obligations,
effective January 1, 2003, all future service credits were eliminated. Therefore, eligible participants will receive
interest credits only toward their ultimate defined benefit under the defined benefit pensionTb&e. were no
minimum funding requirements for the defined benefit pension plan during #6dal, 2013 or 2012. As of
Septembel7, 2014and Septembe28, 2013the plan’s projected benefit obligation exceeded the fair value of plan
assets by32.1 million and 7.9 million, respectively. As a result, the net liability recognized in the consolidated
financial statements for the defined benefit pensiom plareased by $2.million during fiscal2014 which was
primarily attributable tan increase in the present value of the benefit obligation due to a gdeenedse in market
interest rates.

Our investment policies and strategies, as set forthdnlrtlestment Management Policy and Guidelines, are
monitored by a Benefits Committee comprised of five members of management. The Benefits Committee employs
liability driven investment strategy, which seeks to increase the correlation of the plan’s assets and liabilities to reduce
the volatility of the plan’s funded status. The execution of this strategy has resulted in an asset allocation that is
largely comprised ofixed income securities. A liability driven investment strategy is intended to reduce investment
risk and, over the lonterm, generate returns on plan assets that largely fund the annual interest on the accumulate
benefitobligation. However, as we egpenced imecent fiscal yearssignificant declines in interest rates relevant to
our benefit obligationsandbr poor performance in the broader capital markets in which our plan assets are invested,
could have an adverse impact on the funded statiine afefined benefit pension plakor purposes of measuring the
projected benefit obligation as of SeptemB@&r 2014and Septembe28, 2013 we used a discount rabé 3.875%
and 4.37%%, respectively, reflecting current market rates for debt obligatibres similar duration to our pension
obligations.

During fiscal 2014 fiscal 2013andfiscal 2012, the amount of the pension benefit obligation settled through lump
sum payments did not exceed the settlement threshold (combined service and interedtraisperiodic pension
cost); therefore, a settlement charge was not required to be recogrargairihose fiscal years.

We also provide postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees. Partnersh
employees who were hired prior to July 1993 and retired prior to March 1998 are eligible for health care benefits if they
reached a specifia@tirement age while working for the Partnership. Partnership employees hired prior to July 1993 are
eligible for postretirement life insurance benefits if they reach a specified retirement age while working for the
Partnership. Effective January 1, ROQve terminated our postretirement health care benefit plan for all eligible
employees retiring after March 1, 1998. All active and eligible employees who were to receive health care benefit
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under the postretirement plan subsequent to March 1, 1998pwmiided an increase to their accumulated benefits
under the defined benefit pension plan. Our postretirement health care and life insurance benefit plans are unfunde
Effective January 1, 2006, we changed our postretirement health care plan frérimsussdl program to one that is

fully insured under which we pay a portion of the insurance premium on behalf of the eligible participants.

Long-Term Debt Obligations and Operating Lease Obligations
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes payments due under our known contractual obligations as of Sepiember
2014

Fiscal

(Dollars in thousands) Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2020 and

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 thereafter
Long-term debt obligations $ - $ - $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ 1,121,180
Interest payments 77,999 77,999 75,493 72,843 72,843 204,655
Operating lease obligations (a) 25,266 17,781 12,199 9,224 6,131 7,469
Self-insurance obligations (b) 14,356 12,236 9,232 5,374 3,369 17,883
Other contractual obligations (c) 4,308 4,156 4,054 2,201 1,282 16,592
Total $ 121,929 $ 112,172 $ 200978 $ 89642 $ 83625 $ 1,367,779

(a) Payments exclude costs associated with insurance, taxes and maintenance, which are not material to tl
operating leasebligations.

(b) The timing of when payments are due for our-s&firance obligations is based on estimates that may differ
from when actual payments are made. In addition, the payments do not reflect amounts to be recovered fror
our insurance providers,hich amount to $.9 million, $3.5 million, $2.7 million, $1.5 million, $0.9 million
and %.8 million for each of the next five fiscal years and thereafter, respectively, and are included in other
assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

(c) These amounts arencluded in our consolidated balance sheet andhagpily include payments for
postretirement and loAgrm incentive benefits

Additionally, we have standby letters of credit in the aggregate amouddd illion, in support of retention
levels undepur casualty insurance programs and certain lease obligations, which expire periodically Amoiugh
2015

Operating Leases

We lease certain property, plant and equipment for various periods under noncancelable operating lease
including 47% of our vehicle fleet, approximatel®7% of our customer service centers and portions of our
information systems equipmenRental expense under operating leases 8as8$nillion, $33.0 million and $£3.6
million for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respect®ly. Future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable
operating lease agreements as of Septe@het0l14are presented in the table above.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Guarantees

Certain of our operating leases, primarily those for transportation equipment with remaining lease periods
scheduled to expire periodically through fis@21 contain residual value guarantee provisions. Under those
provisions, we guarantee that ther faalue of the equipment will equal or exceed the guaranteed amount upon

completion of the lease period, or we will pay the lessor the difference between fair value and the guaranteed amour
Although the fair value of equipment at the end of its lease i@s historically exceeded the guaranteed amounts, the
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maximum potential amount of aggregate future payments we could be required to make under these leasin
arrangements, assuming the equipment is deemed worthless at the end of the leagzsegpprocimately $4.1

million. The fair value of residual value guarantees for outstanding operating leases was de minimis as of Septemb:
27, 2014and Septembez8, 2013

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements.

In May 2014, the Financial Accountingtandards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (*ASU 2014-09”). This update provides a principles-
based approach to revenue recognition, requiring revenue recognition to depict tiee tfageods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for tho:
goods or servicesThe ASU provides a fivstep model to be applied to all contracts with customers. Vhesteps
are to identify the contract(s) with the customer, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the
transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract and recognize reven
when eaclperformance obligation is satisfied. The revenue standard is effective for the first interim period within
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, which will be our first quarter of fiscal year 2018. ASU
201409 can be applied eitheetrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at the date of the initial application along with additional
disclosures. We are evaluating the impacts, ahy, the adoption of ASU 20420 will have on our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding disclosures about offsetting assets and (f&Slilies
201211"). The new guidance requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to
enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. Tl
amendment, furthreclarified with ASU 201301, enhances disclosures by requiring improved information about
financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either offset in accordance with other US GAAP or subject t
an enforceable master netting arrangementnoitas agreement, irrespective of whether or not they are offset in the
balance sheet. We adopted ASU 2011and ASU 20181 on September 29, 2013 and included further disclosure
regarding offsetting assets and liabilities for derivative instrumentsiata for under ASC 815. As this guidance
affects disclosures only, its adoption had no impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an ASU to establish the effective date for the requiemesgent
components of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income either parenthetically on the face
the financial statements or in the notes to the financial statements (“ASU 2013-02™). We adopted ASU 2013-02 on
September 29, 2@land its adoption did not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income
nor did it have an impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Commaodity Price Risk

We enter into product supply contracts that are generalhyeaeagreements subject to annual renewal, and also
purchase product on the open market. Our propane supply contracts typically provide for pricing based upon inde
formulas using the posted prices establishieshajor supply points such as Mont Belvieu, Texas, or Conway, Kansas
(plus transportation costs) at the time of delivery. In addition, to supplement our annual purchase requirements, w
may utilize forward fixel price purchase contracts to acquire a portion of the propane that we resell to our customers,
which allows us to manage our exposure to unfavorable changes in commaodity prices and to ensure adequate physi
supply. The percentage of contract purchaaad, the amount of supply contracted for under forward contracts at
fixed prices, will vary from year to year based on market conditions. In certain instances, and when market
conditions are favorable, we are able to purchase product under our supgg@ents at a discount to the market.
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Product cost changes can occur rapidly over a short period of time and can impact profitability. We attempt to
reduce commodity price risk by pricing product on a stewh basis. The level of priced, physical prod
maintained in storage facilities and atracustomer service centers for immediate sale to our customers will vary
depending on several factors, including, but not limited to, price, supply and demand dynamics for a given time of the
year. Typically,our on hand priced position does not exceed more than four to eight weeks of our supply needs,
depending on the time of the year. In the course of normal operations, we routinely enter into contracts such &
forward priced physical contracts for the puash or sale of propane and fuel oil that, under accounting rules for
derivative instruments and hedging activities, qualify for and are designated as normal purchase or normal sal
contracts. Such contracts are exempted from fair value accounting andcaumtad for at the time product is
purchasear sold under the related contract.

Under our hedging and risk management strategies, we enter into a combination of ekel@agkitures and
options contracts and, in certain instances, -tivecounteroptions and swap contracts (collectively, “derivative
instruments”) to manage the price risk associated with physical product and with future purchases of the commodities
used in our operations, principally propane and fuel oil, as well as to ensurailabikty of product during periods
of high demand. In addition, the Partnership sells propane and fuel oil to customers at fixed prices, and enters int
derivative instrument® hedge a portion of its exposure to fluctuations in commaodity pricesessiia of selling the
fixed price contractsWe do not use derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes. Futures and swap
contracts require that we sell or acquire propane or fuel oil at a fixed price for delivery at fixed future dates. An
option contract allows, but does not require, itsdeolto buy or sell propane or fuel oil at a specified price during a
specified time period. However, the writer of an option contract must fulfill the obligation of the option contract,
should the holder close to exercise the option. At expiration, the contracts are settled by the delivery of the product
to the respective party or are settled by the payment of a net amount equal to the difference between the then marl
price and the fixed contract price option exercise price. To the extent that wdiadtiderivative instruments to
manage exposure to commodity price risk and commodity prices move adversely in relation to the contracts, we coul
suffer losses on those derivative instruments when setehversely, if prices move favorably, we could realize
gains. Under our hedging and risk management strategy, realized gains or losses on derivative instruments wi
typically offset losses or gains on the physical inventory once the product is soldamerssat market prices, or
delivered to customers as it pertains to fixed price contracts.

Futures are traded with brokers of the NYMEX and require daily cash settlements in margin accounts. Forwarc
contracts are generally settled at the expiratbrthe contract term by physical delivery, and swap and options
contracts are generally settled at expiration through a net settlement mechanism. Market risks associated with o
derivative instruments are monitored daily for compliance with our HedgidgRisk Management Policy which
includes volume limits for open positions. Open inventory positions are reviewed and managed daily as to exposure
to changing market prices.

Credit Risk

Exchangeraded futures and options contracts are guaranteed bNYMEX and, as a result, have minimal
credit risk. We are subject to credit risk with otlee-counter forward, swap and options contracts to the extent the
counterparties do not perform. We evaluate the financial condition of each counterparty whhwehoonduct
business and establish crdditits to reduce exposure to the risk of eerformance by our counterparties.

Interest Rate Risk

A portion of our borrowings bear interest at prevailing interest rates based upon, at the OPertagrapip’s
option, LIBOR, plus an applicable margin the base rate, defined as the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus ¥ of
1% or the agent bank’s prime rate, or LIBOR plus 1%, plus the applicable margin. The applicable margin is
dependent on thevel of the Partnership’s total consolidatedeverageratio (the ratio ofconsolidated totatlebt to
consolidatecEBITDA). Therefore, we are subject to interest rate risk on the variable component of the interest rate.
We manage our interest rate risk dmytering into interest rate swap agreements. The interest rate swaps have been
designated as a cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are recognized in otf
comprehensive income (“OCI”) until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. At September27, 2014 the fair
value of the interest rate swaps was a net liabilitylds fillion, which is included within other current liabilities and
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other liabilities, as applicable, with a corresponding unrealized loss reflectatumulated other comprehensive
income.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

All of our derivative instruments are reported on the balance sheet at their fair values. On the detrakiae
instrumentsare entered into, we make a ewination as to whether the derivative instrument qualifies for
designation as a hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recorded each period in current peri
earnings or OCI, depending on whether a derivative instrument is desiges a hedge and, if so, the type of hedge.

For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, we formally assess, both at the hedge contract’s inception

and on an ongoing basis, whether the hedge contract is highly effective in offsettiggschrnash flows of hedged
items. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are reported in OCI to tl
extent effective and reclassified irgarningsduring the same period in which the hedged item affects egrnifihe
markto-market gains or losses on ineffective portions of cash flow hedges are immediately recogaa®ihiys
Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated as cash flow hedges, and that do not me
the normal ptchase and normal sale exemption, are recordedrningsas they occur. Cash flows associated with
derivative instruments are reported as operating activities within the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Sensitivity Analysis

In an effort to estim& our exposure to unfavorable market price changes in commodities related to our open
positions under derivative instruments, we developed a model that incorporates the following data and assumptions:

A. The fair value of open positions as of Septendyep014

B. The market prices for the underlying commodities used to determine A. above were adjusted adversely
by a hypothetical 0% changand compared to the fair value amounts in A. above to project the potential
negative impact on earnings that would be recognized for the respective scenario.

Based on the sensitivity analysis described abovehypethetical 10% adversghange in markeprices foropen
derivative instruments as of SeptemBeér 2014indicatesan increasé potentialfuture net losses of &7 million. The
above hypothetical change does not reflect the worst case scenario. Actual results may be significantly differen
depending on market conditions and the composition of the open position portfolio.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm thereo
listed on the accompanying Index to Financial StatemanBart 1V, Item 15(see page &) and the Supplemental
Financial Information listed orhé accompanying Index to Financial Statement Schéd®art IV, Item 15see page
S-1) are included herein.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Due to the seasonality of the retail propdnel oil and other refined fuel and natural gasinesss our first and
second quarter revenues and earningscarsistently greater than third and fourth quarter results. The following
presents our selected quarterly financial data for the last two fiscal years (unaudited; in thousands, except per ur
amourns).

First Second Third Fourth Total
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

Fiscal 2014
Revenues $526,056 $873,772 $297,143 $241,286 $1,938,257
Cost of products sold 280,526 517,198 161,482 121,544 1,080,750
Operating income (loss) 80,055 171,044 (26,575)  (34,398) 190,126
Loss on debt extinguishment (a) - - 11,589 - 11,589
Net income (loss) 58,671 149,547 (58,989) (54,720) 94,509
Net income (loss) per common unit - basic (b) 0.97 2.47 (0.98) (0.90) 1.56
Net income (loss) per common unit - diluted (b) 0.97 2.46 (0.98) (0.90) 1.56
Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities 4,161 16,226 124,583 80,581 225,551

Investing activities (3,424) (4,947) (3,731) (4,430) (16,532)

Financing activities (52,702) 2,232 (120,313) (52,829) (223,612)
EBITDA (c) $114,882 $204,326 $ (5172) $ 900 $ 314,936
Adjusted EBITDA (c) $117,708 $206,269 $ 10,023 $ 4,502 $ 338,502
Retail gallons sold

Propane 157,858 213,689 83,156 76,040 530,743

Fuel oil and refined fuels 13,997 22,617 6,981 5,476 49,071
Fiscal 2013
Revenues $490,703 $678,426 $290,805 $243,672 $1,703,606
Cost of products sold 245,100 346,999 148,176 121,630 861,905
Operating income (loss) 82,308 153,977 (20,654)  (38,655) 176,976
Loss on debt extinguishment (a) - - - 2,144 2,144
Net income (loss) 57,620 129,484 (45,187) (63,119) 78,798
Net income (loss) per common unit - basic (b) 1.05 2.29 (0.77) (1.05) 1.35
Net income (loss) per common unit - diluted (b) 1.04 2.28 (0.77) (1.05) 1.34
Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities 61,537 72,426 66,505 13,838 214,306

Investing activities 1,847 (4,999) (6,532) (4,979) (14,663)

Financing activities (48,605)  (49,965) 93,459 (221,617) (226,728)
EBITDA (c) $112,835 $185,293 $ 10,850 $ (3,762) $ 305,216
Adjusted EBITDA (c) $117,473 $190,668 $ 19,171 $ 1,941 $ 329,253
Retail gallons sold

Propane 153,933 210,314 92,109 78,265 534,621

Fuel oil and refined fuels 15,885 23,223 8,331 6,271 53,710

(a) During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, we repurchased and satisfied and discharged all of our 2018 Senior Note
with net proceeds from the issuance of the 2024 Senior Notes and cash on hand pursuant to a tender offer a
redemption. In connection withis tender offer and redemption, we recognized a loss on the extinguishment of
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(b)

(c)

debt of $11.6 million consisting of $31.6 million for the redemption premium and related fees, as well as the
write-off of $5.3 million and ($25.3) million in unamortized debtgmation costs and unamortized premium,
respectively.During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we repurchased pursuantajotional redemption $133.4

million of our 2021 Senior Notes using net proceeds from our May 2013 public offering and netiprivoee

the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option to purchase additional Common Units. In addition, we
repurchased $23.9 million of our 2021 Senior Notes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In connectiol
with these repurchaseshigh totaled $157.3 million in aggregate principal amount, we recognized a loss on the
extinguishment of debt of $2.1 million consisting of $11.7 million for the repurchase premium and related fees, as
well as the writeoff of $2.1 millionand ($11.7) miibn in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized
premium, respectively.

Basic net income (loss) per Common Unit is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of outstanding Common Units, and restricted units granted threRestricted Unit Plan® retirement

eligible grantees. Computations of diluted net income per Common Unit are performed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of outstanding Common Units and unvested restricted units granted under ot
Restricted Unit Plans Diluted loss per Common Unit for the periods where a net loss was reported does not
include unvested restricted units granted underRastricted Unit Planas their effect would be ardilutive.

On May 17, 2013, we sold 2.7 hdn Common Units in a public offering. On May 22, 2013, following the
underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option, we sold an additional 0.4 million Common Units.

EBITDA represents net income before deducting interest expense, incomedgptesjation and amortization.
Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA excluding the unrealized net gain or loss fromtorarérket activity for
derivative instrumentand other certain items as provided in the table belhw.management uses EBITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA as measures of liquidity and we are including them because we believe that they provide our
investors and industry analysts with additional information to evaluate our ability to meet our debt service
obligations and to pay our quarterly dibtriions to holders of our Common Units. EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA are not recognized terms under G8AP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income
or net cash provided by operating activities determined in accordance wiGABB. Beause EBITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA as determined by us excludes some, but not all, items that affect net income, they may not be
comparable to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled measures used by other compdiies.
following table sets forth (ipur calculations of EBITDA and (ii) a reconciliation of EBITDA, as so calculated, to

our net cash provided lused in)operating activitie$amounts in thousands):
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First Second Third Fourth Total

Fiscal 2014 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Net income (loss) $ 58671 $ 149547 $ (58,989) $ (54,720) $ 94,509
Add:
Provision for income taxes 177 271 163 156 767
Interest expense, net 21,207 21,226 20,662 20,166 83,261
Depreciation and amortization 34,827 33,282 32,992 35,298 136,399
EBITDA 114,882 204,326 (5,172) 900 314,936
Unrealized (non-cash) losses (gains) on changes in
fair value of derivatives 290 (291) (707) 402 (306)
Integration related costs 2,536 2,234 4,313 3,200 12,283
Loss on debt extinguishment - - 11,589 - 11,589
Adjusted EBITDA 117,708 206,269 10,023 4,502 338,502
Add (subtract):
Provision for income taxes a77) (271) (163) (156) (767)
Interest expense, net (21,207) (21,226) (20,662) (20,166) (83,261)
Unrealized (non-cash) (losses) gains on changes
in fair value of derivatives (290) 291 707 (402) 306
Integration related costs (2,536) (2,234) (4,313) (3,200) (12,283)
Compensation cost recognized under
Restricted Unit Plans 1,638 1,951 2,074 1,727 7,390
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net (237) (282) 179 (181) (521)
Changes in working capital and other
assets and liabilities (90,738) (168,272) 136,738 98,457 (23,815)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,161 $ 16,226 $ 124,583 $ 80,581 $ 225551
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First Second Third Fourth Total

Fiscal 2013 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Net income (loss) $ 57,620 $ 129,484 $ (45,187) $ (63,119) $ 78,798
Add:
Provision for income taxes 132 150 148 177 607
Interest expense, net 24,556 24,343 24,385 22,143 95,427
Depreciation and amortization 30,527 31,316 31,504 37,037 130,384
EBITDA 112,835 185,293 10,850 (3,762) 305,216
Unrealized (non-cash) losses (gains) on changes in
fair value of derivatives 3,614 2,646 73 (2,015) 4,318
Integration related costs 1,024 2,729 2,248 4,574 10,575
Loss on debt extinguishment - - - 2,144 2,144
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - - 6,000 1,000 7,000
Adjusted EBITDA 117,473 190,668 19,171 1,941 329,253
Add (subtract):
Provision for income taxes (132) (150) (148) a77) (607)
Interest expense, net (24,556) (24,343) (24,385) (22,143) (95,427)
Unrealized (non-cash) (losses) gains on changes
in fair value of derivatives (3,614) (2,646) (73) 2,015 (4,318)
Integration related costs (1,024) (2,729) (2,248) (4,574) (10,575)
Multi-employer pension plan withdrawal charge - - (6,000) (1,000) (7,000)
Compensation cost recognized under
Restricted Unit Plans 1,240 1,173 840 635 3,888
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net (2,267) (323) (301) (652) (3,543)
Changes in working capital and other
assets and liabilities (25,583) (89,224) 79,649 37,793 2,635
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 61537 $ 72426 $ 66,505 $ 13,838 $ 214,306

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Partnership maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defitudds 13al5(e) and 15d.5(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in the Partnership’s filings under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information i
accumulated and communicated to the Partnership’s management, including its principal executive officer and
principal financial offier, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Before filing this Annual Report, the Partnership completed an evaluation under the supervision and with the
participation of the Partnership’s management, including the Partnership’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Partnership’s disclosure controls and
procedures as dbeptembe27, 2014 Based on this evaluation, the Partnership’s principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded that the Partnership’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance level aSeptembeR7, 2014
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE
Partnership Management

Our Partnership Agreement provides that all management powers over our business and affairs are exclusive
vested in our Board of Supervisors and, subject to the direction of the Board of Supervisors, our officers. No Unitholde
has any management povesfer our business and affairs or actual or apparent authority to enter into contracts on behalf
of or otherwise to bind us. Under the current Partnership Agreement, members of our Board of Supervisors are elect
by the Unitholders for thregear terms.Messrs. Harold R. Logan, Jr., John D. Collins, Dudley C. Mecum, John Hoyt
Stookey and Ms. Jane Swifiere elected to their current thrgear terms at the FAnnual Meeting of our Unitholders
convened on May 1, 2012 and then reconvened on May 14, 2012.

At its regular meeting on November 13, 2012, our Board of Supervisors, pursuant to authority granted to the Boar
under the Partnership Agreement, increased the size of the Board from six (6) Supervisors to eight (8) Supervisors. |
the same meeting angjan pursuant to authority granted to the Board under the Partnership Agreement, the Board
elected Messrs. Lawrence C. Caldwell and Matthew J. Chanin to fill the two vacancies on the Board created by th
increase in size of the Board, effective immediatd§essrs. Caldwell and Chanin were each elected for a term due to
expire at the next T#nnual Meeting of our Unitholders, currently scheduled for Spring 2015.

At its meeting on November 12, 2014, and upon the recommendation of its Nominating/Gox&nemittee, our
Board of Supervisors elected Michael A. Stivala, our current President and Chief Executive Officer, to fill the vacancy
on the Board created by the retirement from the Board of Michael J. Dunn, Jr. effective on September 27, 2014
concurently with Mr. Dunn’s retirement as our Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Stivala was elected for a term due to
expire at the next T#nnual Meeting of our Unitholders, currently scheduled for Spring 2015.

The Audit Committeeof our Board of Supervisors sidhe authority to review, at the request of the Board of
Supervisors, specific matters as to which the Board of Supervisors believes there may be a conflict of interest, or whic
may be required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404(a) of Reguldti@uspted by theSEC in order to determine if
the resolution or course of action in respect of such conflict proposed by the Board of Supervisors is fair and reasonak
to us. Under the Partnership Agreement, any matter that receives the “Special Approval” of the Audit Committee (i.e.,
approval by a majority of the members of the Audit Committee) is conclusively deemed to be fair and reasonable to us
is deemed approved by all of our partners and shall not constitute a breach of the Partnership Agreeyndatyor an
stated or implied by law or equity as long as the material facts known to the party having the potential conflict of interes
regarding that matter were disclosed to the Audit Committee at the time it gave Special Apprbealiudit
Committee als@ssists the Board of Supervisors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relatingindegrity of the
Partnership’s financial statements and internal control over financial reporting; (ii) the Partnership’s compliance with
applicable laws, regufimns and its code of conductii) independence and qualifications of the independent
registered public accounting firmivj] performance of the internal audit function and the independent registered
public accounting firm; andv/f accounting complaints.

Until July 22, 2014, the Audit Committee consisted of all seven of ourengioyee Supervisors (namely,
MessrsLogan, Stookey, Mecum, Collins, Caldwell, Chanin &l Swift), all of whom had been determined by our
Board of Supervisors to bedependenand (with the exception of Ms. Swift) audit committee financial experts
within the meaning of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards and in accordance with Rulef 10
Exchange Act, Item 407 of RegulatiorkKSand the Partnership’s criteria for Supervisor independence (as discussed in
Item 13, herein) as of the date of this Annual Repdrits meeting on July 22, 2014, the Board reduced the size of
the Audit Committee to four Messrs.Caldwell, Collins, Mecum and Ms. Swif and reaffirmd the above
determinations with respect to those four members.
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Mr. Logan has served as a Supervisor since March 1996 and was eléctedrasgmn of the Board of Supervisors
in January 2007. Mr. Logan is a ®ounder and, from 2006 to the present has been serving as a Disé&asic
Materials and Services LLC, an investment company that has invested in companies that provideedpecializ
infrastructure services and materials for the pipeline construction industry and the sand/silica industry. From 2003 t
September 2006, Mr. Logan was a Director and Chairman of the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors o
TransMontaigne Inc., wbh provided logistical services (i.e. pipeline, terminaling and marketing) to producers and
endusers of refined petroleum products. From 1995 to 2002, Mr. Logan was Executive Vice President/Finance,
Treasurer and a Director of TransMontaigne Inc. Fr@&®i7lto 1995, Mr. Logan served as Senfice President
Finance and a Director of Associated Natural Gas Corporation, an independent gatherer and marketer of natural g
natural gas liquids and crude oil. Mr. Logan is also a Director of Cimarex Energgaphic Packaging Holding
Companyand Hart Energy Publishing LLP

Over the pastforty years, Mr. Logan’s education, investment banking/venture capital experience and
business/financial management experience have provided him with a comprehensistandider of business and
finance. Most of Mr. Logan’s business experience has been in the energy industry, both in investment banking and as
a senior financial officer and director of publigwned energy companies. Mr. Logan’s expertise and experience
have been relevant to his responsibilities of providing oversight and advice to the managements of public companie
and is of particular benefit in his role as our Chairman. Since 1996, Mr. Logan has been a director of nine public
companies and has senad audit, compensation and governance committees.

Mr. Stookey has served as a Supervisor since March 1996. He was Chairman of the Board of Supervisors fror
March 1996 through January 2007. From 1986 until September 1993, he was the Chairman, BresiGardf
Executive Officer of Quantum. He served as-e@acutive Chairman and a Director of Quantum from its acquisition
by Hanson plc in September 1993 until October 1995, at which time he retired. Since then, Mr. Stookey has served
a trusteeof a number of norprofit organizations, including founding and serving as-executive Chairman of Per
Scholas Inc. (a neprofit organization dedicated toaining inner city individuals to become computer and software
technician¥ The Berkshire Choral Fesghl and Landmark Volunteers and also seree the Board of Directors of
The Clark Foundatiomnd The Robert Sterling Clark Foundatiamd as a Life Trustee of the Boston Symphony
Orchestra

Mr. Stookey’s qualifications to sit on our Board include his extensive experience as Chief Executive Officefoof
corporations (including a predecessor of the Partnership) and his many years of service as a director -ofxmdalicly
corporations and neprofit organizations.

Mr. Mecum has served as a Supervisor since June 199@/asteManaging Director of Capricorn Holdings, LLC
(a sponsor of and investor in leveraged buyduateh 1997to 2011 and a@artner of G.L. Ohrstrom & Co. (a sponsor of
and investor in leveraged bayts) from 1989 to 1996.

Mr. Mecum’s qualifications to sit on our Board include his 20 years in public accounting, rising to the level of Vice
Chairman of KPMG LLP, a public accounting firm, his service as Assistant Secretary of the Army for Instatations
Logistics and hidifteenyears of service overseeing or managing various companies. Mr. Mecum hiageowgyears
of service as a director of various publiciywned companiesncluding, until 2007, Citigroup, Inc

Mr. Collins has served as a Supervisor since April 2007. He served with KPMG LLP, an international accounting
firm, from 1962 until 2000, most recently as senior audit partner of its New York office. He has served as a United
States representative on timernational Auditing Procedures Committee, a committee of international accountants
responsible for establishing international auditing standddadil recently,Mr. Collins wasa Director of Montpelier
Re Columbia Atlantic FundandMrs. Fields Orignal Cookies, In.

Mr. Collins’ qualifications to sit on our Board, and serve as Chairman of its Audit Committee, include his 40
years of experience in public accounting, including 31 years as a partner supervising the audits of public companie
Mr. Collins has served on a number of AICPA and international accounting and auditing standards bodies.

Ms. Swift has served as a Supervisor since April 2007. She is currently the CEO of Middlebury Interactive
Languages, LLC, a marketer of world language produétem 2010 through July 2011, Ms. Swift served as Senior
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Vice President ConnectEDU Inc., a private education technology company. In 2007, she founded WNP Consulting,
LLC, a provider of expert advice and guidance to early stage education companies20B88itn 2006 she was a
General Partner at Arcadia Partners, a venture capital firm focused on the education industry. She has previous
served on the boards of K12, Indnimated Speech Compatayd The Young Writers Projeand currently serves

on theboards of Sally Ride Science Inc. and severafomwprofit boards, includinghe National Alliance for Public
Charter SchoolsMs. Swift is also a Trustee for Champlain Colledg#ior to joining Arcadia, Ms. Swift served for
fifteenyears in Massacheiss state government, becoming Massachusetts’ first woman governor in 2001.

Ms. Swift’s qualifications to sit on our Board include her strong skills in public policy and government relations
and her extensive knowledge of regulatory matters arising feififteen years in state government.

Mr. Caldwell has served as a Supervisor since November 2012. He wasFauditer of NewCanaan
Investments, Inc.“NCI”), a private equity investment firm, where he was one of theeor officers ofthe firm
from 198 to 2005. NCI was an activéix and build’ investor inpackaging, chemicals, and automotive components
companies. Mr. Caldwell held a numberbafard directorships and senior management positions in these companies
until he retired in2005. The largesif these companies was Kerr Group, Inc., a plastic closure and dmtjgany
where Mr. Caldwell served as Director feightyears and Chief Financial Officer feix years. From 1988 1988,

Mr. Caldwell was head of acquisitions for Moore McCormB&asairces, Inc., an oil and gas exploration, shipping,
and construction materials company. Mraldwell is currently a director of Magnuson Products, LL(Qyriaate
company which manufacturespecialty engine components for automotoréginal equipment manuéaurersand
aftermarket.Mr. Caldwell alsoserves on the Board of Trustees and as Chairmaheofnvestment an&inance
Committee of Historic Deerfielcandon theBoard of Directors ands Chairman oboth the Finance and Strategic
Planning Committees othe Leventhal Map Centerboth of which norprofit institutions focus on enriching
educational programs for-K2 children locally and nationwide.

Mr. Caldwell's qualifications to sit on our Board include ofegty years of successful investingamd nmanaging
of a broad range of public and private businesses in a number of diffadertries. This experience has
encompassed both turnaround situations, and the buildic@ngbanies through internal growth and acquisitions.

Mr. Chaninhas served as @upervisor since November 2012e was Senior Managing Director of Prudential
Investment Management, a subsidiary of Prudential Financial, Inc., from 1996 until his retirement in January 2012
He headed the firm’s private fixed income business, chaired an internal committee responsible for strategic investing
and was a principal in Prudential Capital Partners, the firm’s mezzanine investment business. He currently serves as a
Director of three private companies that are in Prudential Capital Partners fiantfolios, and provides consulting
services to Prudential and one other client.

Mr. Chanin’s qualifications to sit on our Board include 35 years of investment experience with a focus on highly
structured private placements in companies in a broaderaf industries, with a particular focus on energy
companies. He has previously served on the audit commiteepudilic companyoard and is currently a member of
the audit committee for a private company boaMr. Chaninhas earnedn MBA andis a Chartered Financial
Analyst.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our Supervisors, executive officers and holders of ten percent or mor
of our Common Units to file initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our Common Units
with the SEC. Supervisorsxecutive officers and ten percent Unitholders are required to furnish the Partnership with
copies of all Section 16(a) forms that they file. Based on a review of these filings, we believe that all such filings
were timely made durinfiscal year2014

Codes of Ethics and of Business Conduct
We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and
principal accounting officer, and a Code of Business Conduct that applies to all of our emplffiess, and

Supervisors. A copy of our Code of Ethics and our Code of Business Conduct is available without charge from ou
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website atvww.suburbanpropane.coomn upon written request directed to: Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor
Relations, P.OBox 206, Whippany, New Jersey 0798206 Any amendments to, or waivers from, provisions of

our Code of Ethics or our Code of Business Conduct that apply to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer witle posted on our website.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance GuidelinesPendiples in accordance with the NYSE corporate
governance listing standards in effect as of the date of this Annual Rdpoaiddition, ve have adopted certain
Corporate Governance Policies, including an Equity Holding Policy for Supervisors and Executives and an Incentive
Compensation Recoupment Polidd.copy of our Corporate Governance Guidelinad Principles, as well as a copy
of the Corporate Governance Policiés,available without charge from our websitenaw.suburbanpropane.coan
upon written request directed to: Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor Relations, P.O. Box 206, Whippany, Ne
Jersey 07980206

Audit Committee Charter

We have adopted a written Audit Committee Charter in accordance with the NYSE corporate governance listing
standards in effect as of the date of this Annual Report. The Audit Committee Charter is reviewed periodically to
ensure that imeets all applicable legal and NYSE listing requirements. A copy of our Audit Committee Charter is
available without charge from our website wivw.suburbanpropane.comr upon written request directed to:
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor RelstiP.O. Box 206, Whippany, New Jersey 079306

Compensation Committee Charter

Until July 22, 2014, all seveBupervisors who are not officers or employees of the Partnership or its subsidiaries
(namely, MessrsLogan, Stookey, Mecum, Collins, @avell, Chanin andVis. Swift) servel on the Compensation
Committee. The Board of Supervisors had determined that all seven members of the Compensation Committee ar
independent.At its meeting on July 22, 2014, the Board reduced the size @dhwensatiolCommittee tahree-

Messrs Chanin, Logan and Stookeyand reaffirmed the above determination with respect to thosemembers.

We have adopted a Compensation Committee Charter in accordance with the NYSE corporate governance listir
standards in effect as of the date of this Annual Report. A copy of our Compensation Committee Charter is availabl
without charge from our website atww.suburbanpropane.comr upon written request directed to: Suburban
Propane Partners, L.P., Investoild&iens, P.O. Box 206, Whippany, New Jersey 0793026

During fiscal 2014, the Compensation Committee independently retained Towers V&atSon (“Towers
Watson”), a human resources consulting firm, to assist the Compensation Comimittegeloping cormetitive
compensation packages for those executive officers identified b§€dhgensatiorCommittee as our senior core
executive officerpursuant to a succession plan approved by the Board of Supensmdtem 11 below.

Nominating/Governance Commitee Charter

We have adopted a written Nominating/Governance Committee Charter. A copy of our Nominating/Governance
Committee Charter is available without chafgem our website atwvww.suburbanpropane.cowr upon written
request directed to: Suburbanopane Partners, L.P., Investor Relations, P.O. Box 206, Whippany, New Jersey
079810206

NYSE Annual CEO Certification

The NYSE requires the Chief Executive Officer of each listed company to submit a certification indicating that
the company is not in violation of the Corporate Governance listing standards of the NYSE on an annu@ubasis.
Chief Executive Officesubmis his Annual CEO Certificatioto the NYSE eacbecember. In December 28 ur
then Chief Executive Officer, Michael Dunn, Jr., submitted his Annual CEO Certification to the NYSE without
gualification.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
CompensationDiscussion and Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis explains our executive compensation philosophy, policies anc
practices with respect to the following executive officershaf Partnershipto whom we referto as our “named
executive officers”: Mr. Dunn, our former Chief Executive Officefwho held the position of President and Chief
Executive Officer until March 31, 2014, and the position of Chief Executive Officer through September 27, 2014)
Mr. Stivala, ourcurrent President and Chief Executive Officer (who held the position of Chief Financial Officer until
March 31, 2014, and the position of President from April 1, 2014 through September 27,\N01Kyglin, our
current Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accoungt Officer (who held the position of Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer until March 31, 2014, and the position of Vice Presid&ntance and Chief Accounting Officer,

a position that required him to act &@manner identical to that of a Chi€fnancial Officer, from April 1, 2014
through September 27, 2014nd our threeother most highly compensated executive officeds Wienberg our
Chief Operating OfficerMr. Boyd, our SeniorVice President Field Operations; and Mr. Brinkworth, our réer
Vice President Product Supply, Purchasing & Logistics

In accordance with a management succession plan developed by the Compensation Committee of th
Partnership’s Board of Supervisors, which we hereafter refer to as the “Committee,” in close collaboration with Mr.
Dunn, Mr. Dunn retired at the conclusion of fiscal 2014.

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Components
The objectives of our executive compensation program are as follows:

1 The attraction and retention of talented executives hawe the skills and experience required to achieve
our goals; and

1 The alignment of the shetérm and longerm interests of our executive officers with the sienn and
long-term interests of our Unitholders.

We accomplish these objectives by promgliour executives with compensation packages that combine various
components that are specifically linked to either sterh or longterm performance measures. Therefore, our
executive compensation packages are designed to achieve our overall gostawfable, profitable growth by
rewarding our executive officers for behaviors that facilitate our achievement of this goal.

The principal components of the compensation we provide to our named executive officers are as follows:

Base salary;

Cashincentives paid under a performarzzsed annual bonus plan;
Long-Term Incentive Plan awards; and

Awards of restricted units under the Restricted Unit Plan.

=A =4 =4 =4

We align the shotterm and longerm interests of our executive officers with the shenn andlongterm
interests of our Unitholders by:

1 Providing our executive officers with an annual incentive target that encourages them to achieve or
exceed targeted financial results and operating performance for the fiscal year;

1 Providing a longerm incentiveplan that encourages our executive officers to implement activities and
practices conducive to sustainable, profitable growth; and

1 Providing our executive officers with restricted units in orderetwourage the retentioof the
participating executive @ters while simultaneously encouraging behaviors conducive to thettyng
appreciation of our Common Units.
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Establishing Executive Compensation

The Committee is responsible for overseeing our executive compensation program. In accordance with its
charter, available on our website wtww.suburbanpropane.conthe Committee ensures that the compensation
packages provided to our executive officers aregdes in accordance with our compensation philosophy. The
Committee reviews and approves the compensation packages of our managing directors, assistant vice presider
vice presidentssenior vice presidentand our named executive officers.

The Noverer 13, 2013 Compensation Committee Meeting

As in past fiscal yearsour Senior Vice Presidert Administration (now Senior Vice Presidenfrepared a
comprehensive analysis of each executive officer’s past and current compensation to assist the Committee in the
assessment and determination of ekdgeucompensation packages fiscal 2014 The Committee consided a
number of factors in establishirthe fiscal 2014 executiveompensation packages, including, but not limited to,
experience scope of regmsibility and individual performance. The relative importance assigned to each of these
factors by the Committeenay differ from executive to executivand year to yearln addition, as part of the
Committee’s annual review of each executive officer’s total compensation package, the Committes provided with
benchmarking data for comparison. i¥henchmarking data is just one of a number of fadct@mswasconsidered by
the Committee, buvas not necessarily the most persuasive factor.

The benchmarking data provided to the Committee for fd@afiwas derived from the Mercer Human Resource
Consulting, Inc. (“Mercer”) Benchmark Database containing information obtained from surveys of over 3,035
organizations and approximately224 posiions which mayor may notinclude similarlysized national propane
marketers. The use of the Mercer database provides a broad base of compensation benchmarking information 1
companies of gize similarto the Partnership

In making their decisions regiing executive compensation packages for figf#l4 for executive officers
currently below the level of senior vice presidetite members of the Committee revegvthe total cash
compensation opportunities that were providecedash member of this sudtsof ourexecutive officergnone of
whom are our named executive officedg)ring thepreviouscompleted fiscal year.“Total cash compensation
opportunity” consists of base salary, an annual cash bonus, and Long-Term Incentive Plan awards. The Comndtte
then comparedthese officers’ total cash compensation opportigst to the total mean cash compensation
opportunitesfor parallel positios in the Mercer database. By focusinigtotal cash compensation opportunity as a
whole, instead of on single comments of compensation such as base salary, when it met on Nov&anpetis, the
Committee created fisc@014 compensation packages fiis subset obur executive officershat emphasized the
performanceébased components of compensation.

As in prior years, he Committeedid not base its benchmarking solely on a peer group of other propane
marketes. The Committee adopted this approach becaussidtves that the proximity afur headquarters to New
York City and the need to realistically compete $&illed executives in an environment shared by numerous other
enterprises that seek similarly skilled employesgiires a broader review of the mark&he Committee chooses not
to base its benchmarking on the compensation practices of other propde¢ersadue to the fact that the other,
similarly-sized propane marketers compete for executives in vastly different economic environments.

In connection with succession plannirige Committee unanimously decided to engage the services of Towers
Watson& Co. (“Towers Watson”), a human resources consulting firm, for assistance in developing competitive
compensation packages for those executive officers identified by the Committee as oueselrezecutive officers
(i.e., those executives who are cuithg at or above the level of senior vice president). The Committee agreed that it
would defer making promotierelated decisions (with the notable exception of the promotion of Mr. Stivala
discussed belojand compensatierelated decisions relative taosenior core executive officers until its January
22, 2014 meeting, by which time it was contemplated that Towers Watson would have completed a study of the
Partnership, the executive team, and our past compensation practices.
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In response td1r. Dunn’s having informed the committee that he intended to retire at the end of fiscaltk@14
Committee promoted Mr. Stivala to the position of President (effective April 1, 2014) at its November 13, 2013
meeting. For Mr. Stivala and for those whdhe Committee identified as our seniewvel executive officers
(currently our Chief Operating Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, and our Senior
Vice Presidents), the Committee decided to postpone establishing fiscal 20ddnsatiorrelated adjustments until
after the Committee was presented with recommendations from Towers Watson.

The January 22, 2014 Compensation Committee Meeting

After completinga study of the Partnership and the responsibilitieshihdtalready en andwere to be assumed
by our seniotevel executiveofficers, a principal of Towers Watson provided the Committee wifiresentation that
included compensation recommendatiémsthis group of executivesin accordancevith the recommendationsf
Towers Watson, the Committee established fiscal year 2014 compensation packages for our RPrdsdent
currently our President and Chief Executive Officedr Chief Operating Officerpur Senior Vice Presidents, and
our Vice President Finance and ChfeAccounting Officer(who is currently our Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer) The compensation packages established at this meeting became effective on April 1, 2014, the
effective date on which Mr. Stivala was promoted to the positioRresident, Mr. Kuglin was promoted to the
position of Vice President Finance and Chief Accounting Officer, Mr. Wienberg was promoted to Chief Operating
Officer, Mr. Boyd was promoted to the position of Senior Vice Presid&ild Operations, and Mr. Brinkworth was
promoted to the position of Senior Vice PresideRroduct Supply, Purchasing & Logistics.

The duly 22, 2014 Compensation Committee Meeting

Continuing itspreparation for Mr. Dunn’s retirement at the conclusion of fiscal 2014, the Committee approved
Mr. Stivala’s assumption of the role and title of Chief Executive Officer in addition to his role as President. Because
of the April 1, 2014 adjustments to Mr. Stivala’s overall compensation, the Committee chose ntd adjust Mr.
Stivala’s compensation at this time. This promotion became effective on September 28, 2014.

In addition, the Committee approved the promotion of Mr. Kuglin to Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer. This promotion became etige on September 28, 2014. In establishing Mr. Kuglin’s
compensation for this position, the Committee relied on the same Towers Watsodistudged above.

*kk

As previously reportedat their fiscal 2012 T+¥Annual Meeting, our Unitholdersverwhelmindy approved the
advisory “Say-on-Pay” resolution required by Section 14A of the Exchange Act. As a result, the Committee
determined that no major revisions of its practices are required; however, the Committee has, and will continue tc
periodcally evaluate its compensation practices for possible improvement.

Role of Executive Officers and the Compensation Committee in the Compensation Process

The Committee establishes and enforces our general compensation philosophy in consultationPrétsidamrt
and Chief Executive Officer. The role of olresident and Chief Executive Offiderthe executive compensation
process is to recommend indivadypay adjustments for the executive officers, other than himself, to the Committee
based on market conditions, our performance, and individual performance. With the assistance of our Senior Vic
President- Administration, ourPresident and Chief Execudi Officer presents the Committee with information
comparing each executive officer’s compensation to the mean compensation figures provided in the Mercer database.

Among other duties, the Committee has overall responsibility for:
1 Reviewing and approvinghe compensation of ouPresident and Chief Executive Officer, oQhief
OperatingOfficer, our Chief Financial Officeland our other executive officers;

1 Reporting to the Board of Supervisors any and all decisions regarding compensation changes for oul
President and Chief Executive Officend our other executive officers;
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1 Evaluating and approving our annual cash bonus plan;teng incentive planand grants under our
RestrictedUnit Plans, as well as all other executive compensation policies andgmsgr

1 Administering and interpreting the compensation plans that constitute each component of our executive
officers’ compensation packages; and

1 Engaging consultants, when appropriate, to provide independentpéntsdadvice on executive officer
relatel compensation.

Our sole use of the Mercer database was to provide the Committee with benchmarking data. Theaceftre,
the November 13, 2013 Committee meetingither ourPresident an€hief Executive Officer nor our Senior Vice
President Administration met with representatives from Mercer. The information provided by Mercer was derived
from a proprietary database maintained by Mercer and, as such, there was no formal consultancy role played by ther

In preparation for its January 22, 2014 Coitbee meeting, the Committee directed Mr. Dunn, Mr. Stivala, Mr.
Kuglin, Mr. Wienberg, and our Senior Vice Presidemtdministration to meet with principals of Towers Watson to
discuss the then current responsibilities of semior levelexecutives andheir thoughts on the future responsibilities
of these executives in light of the Committee’s succession planning efforts. It was from these interviews with our
senior executive officers that the principals of Towers Watson developed their recommendagiarting
compensation of our senit@vel executive team.

Allocation Among Components

Under our compensation structure, the mix of base salary, cash bonus atefdtorgmpensation provided to
each executive officer varies depending on his or heriposifThe base salary for each executive officer is the only
fixed component of compensation. All other cash compensation, including annual cash bonuses-tmoh long
incentive compensation, is variable in nature as it is dependent upon achievemetaimmfpeeformance measures.
The following table summarizes the components as percentages of each named executive officer’s total cash
compensation opportunitipr the first six months dfiscal 204 (i.e., October 2013 through March 2014). For this
period the base salaries and cash bonus targets of our named executive officers remained identicah tefféntise
for fiscal 2013.

Cash Long-Term

Base Salary Bonus Target Incentive
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 40% 40% 20%
Michael A. Stivala 46% 36% 18%
Michael A. Kuglin 51% 33% 16%
Mark Wienberg 46% 36% 18%
Steven C. Boyd 46% 36% 18%
Douglas T. Brinkworth 46% 36% 18%

The following table summarizes tlwmponentss percentages of each named executive officer’s total cash
compensation opportunity for the second six months of fiscal 2014 (i.e., April 2014 through Se@tdde

Cash LongTerm

Base Salary Bonus Target Incentive
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 40% 40% 20%
Michael A. Stivala 44% 44% 12%
Michael A. Kuglin 50% 35% 15%
Mark Wienberg 46% 37% 17%
Steven C. Boyd 46% 37% 17%
Douglas T. Brinkworth 46% 37% 17%

In allocating compensation among these components, we believe that the compensatiosenficolzvel
executive officers- the executive officershaving the greatest ability to influence our performancghould be
approximatelys0% performancéased, while lower levels of management should receive a greater portion of their
compensation in base salary. Additionally, our skemin and longerm incentive plangre payfor-performance
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compensation plarthat do not provide for mimum payments
Internal Pay Equity

In determining the different compensation packages for each of our named executive officers, the Committee
takes into consideration a number of factors, including the level of responsibility and influence thatmneedh na
executive officer has over the affairs of Suburban, individual performance and years of experience in his curren
position. The relative importance assigned to each of these factors by the Committee may differ from executive t
executive. The Commaée will also consider the existing level of equity ownership of each of our named executive
officers when granting awards under our Restricted Unit Plan (see below for a descriptisnptdr). As a result,
different weights may be given to differenbraponents of compensation among each of our named executive
officers. In addition, as discussed in the section above titled “Allocation Among Components,” the compensation
packages that we provide to our sehémel executive officerare, at a minimum,®6 performancdased. In order
to align the interests of senior management with the interests of our Unitholders, we consider it requisite to accentua
the performanckased elements of the compensation packages that we provide to these individuals.

Base Salary

Base salaries for the named executive officers and all of our other executive officers, are reviewed and approve
annually by the Committee. In order to determine base salary increases, the Committee’s practice has beerto
compare each executiwfficer’s base salary with the corresponding mean salary provided in the Mercer database.

The Committee usually determines base salary adjustments, which may be higher or lower than the comparative da
following an assessment of our overall resultsveld as each executive officer’s position, performance and scope of
responsibility, while at the same time considering each executive officer’s previous total cash compensation
opportunities This year, in order to facilitate the succession planningesgythe Committee engatthe services of
Towers Watson to make recommendations regarding the compensation packages provided to the executive office
the Committee identified as the Partnership’s senior level executive officers. In accordance with attgive plan of
succession discussed by the Committee at its November 13, 2013 meeting, the Committee decided to postpo
discussions of base salary adjustments for our sémiet executive officers until its January 22, 2014 Committee
meeting when theesults of the Towers Watson study would be made available.

In accordance with the recommendations contained in the Towers Watson study, the Committee adjusted the ba
salaries of the named executive officers (with the exception of Mr. Dunn who rettredcainclusion of fiscal 2014).
These adjustments became effective on April 1, 2014, the effective date of Mr. Stivala’s promotion to President; Mr.
Kuglin’s promotion to Vice President — Finance and Chief Accounting Officer; Mr. Wienberg’s promotion to Chief
Operating Officer; Mr. Boyd’s promotion to Senior Vice President — Field Operations; and Mr. Brinkworth’s
promotion to Senior Vice PresidenProduct Supply, Purchasing & Logistics.

Name Fiscal 2014 Base Salary Fiscal 2014 Base Salary Fiscal 2013 Base Salary
(Second Six Months of Fiscal| (First Six Months of Fiscal
Year) Year)
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. $495,000 $495,000 $495,000
Michael A. Stivala $425,000 $300,000 $300,000
Michael A. Kuglin $265,000 $240,000 $240,000
Mark Wienberg $325,000 $280,000 $280,000
Steven C. Boyd $315,000 $290,000 $290,000
Douglas T. Brinkworth $300,000 $270,000 $270,000

In the event of a promotion, a significantrease in an executive officer’s responsibilities, or a new hire, it is the
Committee’s practice to review that executive officer’s base salary at that time and take such action as the Committee
deems warranted.
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At its meeting on July 22, 2014, effae September 28, 2014, the Committee increased Mr. Kuglin’s salary to
$275,000, in recognition of his promotion to Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer.

At its meeting on November 11, 2014, the Committee did not adjust the base sdlaiesnamed executive
officers for fiscal 2015 because their salaries were adjusted on April 1, 2014.

The base sal@s paid tothe named executive officeiin fiscal 204, fiscal 2013 and fiscal 201&ereported in
the column titled “Salary” in the Summary Compensation Table below.

Annual Cash Bonus Plan

Annual cash bonuses (which fall within the Securities and Exchange Commission’s definition of “Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Compensation” for the purposes of the Summary Compensation Table and otherwise) are earned by
our executive officers in accordance witle objective performance provisions of our annual cash bonus plan.

The terms of our annual cash bonus plan provide for cash payments of a specified percentage of our name
executive officers’ annual base salaries (“target cash bonus”) if, for the fiscal year, actual cash bonus plan EBITDA
equalsthe Partnership’s budgeted EBITDA. For purposes of calculating cash bonus plan EBITDA, the Committee
customarily adjusts both budgeted and actual EBITDA (as defined in Item 6 in this annual report on-Rprior 10
various items considered to be a@curring in nature; including, but not limited to, unrealized {cash) gains or
losses onchanges in the fair value aferivative instrumentsacquisitionrelated costs; integratienelated costs;
multiemployer pasion plan withdrawal chargepension settlement charges; and losses on debt extinguishment
Under theprovisions of theannual cash bonus plan effect for fiscal 2014 our executive officers ha the
opportunity to earn between 60% and 120% of thegetacash bonuses, depending ug@nPartnership’s EBITDA
performanceduring the fiscal year No bonuseswould beearnedduring fiscal 2014if actual cash bonus plan
EBITDA wereless than 90% of budgeted cash bonus plan EBtTdaitionally, for fiscal 214, cash bonusesald
notexceed 120% of the target cash bonus even if actual cash bonus plan EB&F&aAore than 120% of budgeted
cash bonus plan EBITDA.

Although our annual cash bonus plan is generally adminisiergctordance with the provision$ the plan the
Committee may exercise its broad discretionary powers to decrease or increase the annual cash bonus paid tc
particular executive officer, upon the recommendation of Prasident and Chief Executive Officesr to the
executive officersas a group, when the Committee recognizes that an adjustment is warranted. During fiscal 201
fiscal 2013 and fiscal 20120 such discretionary adjustments were made to the annual cash bonuses earned by ou
executives.

For fiscal 204, our budgeted casbonus plan EBITDA was350.0 million (“Budgeted EBITDA”). Our actual
cash bonus plan EBITDA was such that each of our executive officers &a¥%eaf his or her target cash bonus.
The following table provides the fiscal 20budgeted cash bonus plaBIEDA targets that were established at the
Novemberl3, 2013 Committee meeting:

Hypothetical Fiscal 204 Target Bonus Percentage that
Hypothetical Fiscal 2014 Cash Bonus Plan EBITDA would have been Earned if
Cash Bonus Plan EBITDA | Expressed as a Percentage o Actual Cash Bonus Plan

Results Budgeted Cash Bonus Plan | EBITDA Equaled the Figure
(in Millions) EBITDA in the First Column

$432.0 120% 120%

$396.0 110% 110%

$3600 " 100% 100%

$342.0 95% 90%

$324.0 90% 60%

(1) Budgeted cash bonus plan EBITDA for fiscal 201
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For those named executive officers who were promoted on April 1, 2014 (all of our named executive officers
except Mr. Dunn), actual payments earnedeaeal to one half of what the payment would have been using each
named executive officer’s base salary and bonus percentage in effect for the first half of fiscal 2014, plus one half of
what the payment would have been using each named executive officer’s base pay and bonus percentage in effect for
the second half of fiscal 2014.The fiscal 204 target cash bonus percentadesboth halves of the yeamdthe
blendedtarget cash bonuses established for each named executive officer and the actualusgsheaoned by each
of them during fiscal 20are summarized as follows:

2014 Target Cash 2014 Target Cash

Bonus as a % of Bonus as a % of

Base Salary(for Base Salary(for the 2014 Actual Cash

the First Half of Second Half of the 2014 Target Cash | Bonus Earnedat

Name the Fiscal Year) Fiscal Year) Bonus 68%

Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 100% 100% $495,000 $336,600
Michael A. Stivala 80% 100% $332,90 $226,100
Michael A. Kuglin 65% 70% $170,750 $116,110
Mark Wienberg 80% 80% $242,000 $164,560
Stephen C. Boyd 80% 80% $242,000 $164,560
Douglas T. Brinkworth 80% 80% $228,000 $155,040

For purposes of establishing the cash bonus targets for fisc4l @@LCommittee reviewed and approved our
fiscal 204 budgeted cash bonus plan EBITDA at its Novenii&r2013 meeting. The budgeted cash bonus plan
EBITDA is developed annually using a bottaimprocess factoring in reasonable growth targets from the prior year’s
performance, while at the same time attempting to reach a balance between a target that is raabmaltlle, yet
not assured. As described abodaring fiscal 2014our executive officers hdithe opportunity to earn between 60%
and 120% of their target cash bonuses. Over the past three years, our actual cash bonus plan EBITDA was such t
each ofour executive officers earndg8%, 6% and0% of their respective target cash bonus for fiscak2@scal
2013 and fiscal 2@2, respectively.

With the exception of Mr. Kuglin (and Mr. Dunn who has retiretl}, iamed executive officers’ target cash
bonuspercentages and target cash bonfmefiscal 2015 are the samas those fothe second half discal 204. In
recognition of his promotion to Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, Mr. Kuglin’s fiscal 2015 target
cash bonus has been increased to 75% of his base s&letyal payments for fiscal 261lunder the annual cash
bonus plan will depend upon the percentage of the budgeted cash bonus plan EBITDA for fiScdla204
eventually achiew

In accordance with recommendations from Towers Watson, the Committee mduifiedrs of our annual cash
bonus planbeginning with fiscal 20150 provideour executive officerswith the opportunity to earn betwe&i%
and 120% of their target cabbnuses, depending upthe Partnership’s EBITDA performanceduringthe fiscal year
No bonuseswvill be earnedduring fiscal 2015f actual cash bonus plan EBITDi& less tharB5% of budgeted cash
bonus plan EBITDAadditionally, for fiscal 2015ash bausescannotexceed 120% of the target cash bonus even if
actual cash bonus plan EBITO&more than 120% of budgeted cash bonus plan EBITDA.

The bonuses earndy our named executive officessider the annual cash bonus plan for fisca42fid 208
are reported in the column titled “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” in the Summary Compensation Table
below.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

While the annual cash bonus plan is a-fmayperformance plan that focuses on our skemtn financial goalshe
Long-Term Incentive Plan, which we hereafter refer to as the “LTIP,” is structured as @hantomunit plan that has
been designed to motivate our executive officers to focus on outtdomgfinancial goals. Unvested awards are
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granted at the beginnimgf each fiscal year as a Committgmroved percentage of each executive officer’s salary.
Cashpaymentsif any, are earned and paid at the end of a {eae measurement period, depending on performance.

The LTIP is designed to:

1 Align a portion ofour executive officers’ compensation opportunities with the long-term goals of our
Unitholders;

1 Provide longterm compensation opportunities consistent with market practice;

Reward longterm value creation; and

91 Provide a retention incentive for our exevatdfficers and other key employees.

=

LTIP History

At the beginning of fiscal 2003, the Committee adopted the 2003-Temg Incentive Plan (the “2003 LTIP”) as
a principal component of our executive compensation program. At its meeting on Noventikl, 3h& Committee
adopted the 2013 Lorgerm Incentive Plan (the “2013 LTIP™) as a replacement for the 2003 Long-Term Incentive
Plan, which expired on September 30, 2012. The 2013 LTIP became effective on October 1, 2012; its provision
were essentiallyidentical to the provisions of the 2003 LTIRn accordance with recommendations from Towers
Watson, &its meeting on August 6, 2013, the Committee adopted the 2014 Tepmglncentive Plan (the “2014
LTIP™) as a replacement for the 2013 LTIP. The provisions of the 2014 LTIP govern all LTIP awards granted
subsequent to fiscal 2013.

Calculation ofLTIP PhantomUnits

In accordance with the 2003, 2013, and 2014 LTIP documents, at the beginngaghdhreefiscal year
measurement period, each executive officer’s number ofunvestedLTIP unit awardsis calculated by dividing a
predetermined percentage (52% for awards made prior to fiscal 2014 and 50% for all subsequent awards), establish
by the Committee, aachexecutive officer’s target cash bonus by the average of the closing prices of our Common
Units for the twenty days preceding the beginning ofitisefiscal yearin the measurement period

The followingare the numbersf the unvested TIP unitsgranted to our named executive officers during fiscal
2014 and fiscal 203 that will be used to calculate cash payments at the end of each award’s respective three-year
measurement period (i.e., at the end of fiscabZ0d the fiscal 204 award and athie end of fiscal 2@ for the fiscal
2013 award):

Fiscal Fiscal
2014 Award 2013 Award

Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 5,404 6,559
Michael A. Stivala 2,620 3,180
Michael A. Kuglin 1,703 2,067
Mark Wienberg 2445 2,968
Steven C. Boyd 2,533 3,074
Douglas T. Brinkworth 2,358 2,862
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At its meeting on Novembekl, 2014, the Committee approved the granttioé following number ofinvested
LTIP unitawards under the LTIP for the fiscal Z)dward cycle that commenced at the beginning of fiscab 20
will conclude at the end of fiscal 2DXhatwill be used to calculateash payments at the end of this award’s three-
year measurement period (i.e., at the end of fiscal)201

Fiscal

2015 Award
Michael A. Stivala 4,770
Michael A. Kuglin 2,315
Mark Wienberg 2,918
Steven C. Boyd 2,828
Douglas T. Brinkworth 2,694

Performance Metrics

The primary difference between the 2003/2013 LTIPs and the 2014 LTIP is the performance metric used tc
determine whether cagtaymentdave been earned by the participants at the end of an LTIP award cycle’s three-year
measurement period.

Awards made prior to fiscal 2014 under the 2003 and 2013 Lmi@asure the market performance of our
Common Units on the basis of total return to @lmitholders, which we refer to as “TRU,” during a three-year
measurement period commencing on the first day of the fiscal year in which an unvested award was granted ar
compares our TRU to the TRU of each of the other members of a predetermined pearayrsisfing solely of other
master limited partnerships, approved by the Commitiee fiscal 2013 LTIP award is the only remaining award
subject to this metric.

The following table list, in alphabetical order, the names and ticker symbols of thiegreup used to measure
our performance durintpethreeyear measurement period for the fiscal 2013 LaWard

Fiscal 2013 Award Peer Group
Peer Group Member Name Ticker Symbol
Atlas Pipeline Partners, L.P. APL
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. APU
BreitBurnEnergy Partners, L.P. BBEP
Copano Energy, LL@ CPNO
Enbridge Energy Partners, L.P. EEP
Ferrellgas Partners, L.P. FGP
Genesis Energy, L.P. GEL
Global Partners L.P. GLP
Inergy Midstream, L.F® NRGM
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. MWE
TC Pipelines, L.P. TCP

(1) Copano Energy, LLC was acquired by Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. on May 1, 2013. For purposes of measuring tefatiteeTR
fiscal 2013 awardas a result of this eventie have reduced the peer group @ gtward by one ember.

(2) Inergy Midstream, L.P. merged with Crestwood Midstream Partners LP on October 7, 2013. The combined partnership is stamed Cre
Midstream Partners LP and trades under ticker CMLP on the New York Stock Exchange. For purposes of meastgii@Rtelar the fiscal
2013 awardas a result of this event, we have reduced the peer group of this award by one member.

The threeyear measurement period of the fiscal 2@Ward ended simultaneously with the conclusion of fiscal
2014. The TRU for thdiscal 202 award fell within the lowest quartile; therefore, the participants, including our
named executive officers, did not earn cpalimentselative to this award.

Subsequent to the Committee’s meeting on November 13, 2012, the Committee reconsidered the use of TRU as
the performance metric for purposes of the LTIP. As a result, the Committee engaged the services of Towers Watsc
to review the LTIP’s measurement criteria. At the Committee’s July 24, 2013 meeting, Towers Watson presented the
Committee with a recommendation to replace TRU with a performance metric that measures our average distributio
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coverage ratio over a thrgear measurement period.

The Committe’s decision to replace the 2013LTIP with the 2014 LTIP was based on its determination that an
incentive structure focused on the level of distributable cash flow over aydmeaneasurement period, which
supports the sustainability of the cash distiitns to Unitholders and future growth in distributions, is a more
meaningful indicator of the Partnership’s performance than comparative TRU, and also better aligns management’s
interests with those of the Unitholders.

As a result of the Committee’s adoption of the 2014 LTIP, the earning cdshpayments under the 2014 LTIP will
be determined based on the lewdl our distribution coverageratio over a thregear measurement period
(“Distribution Coverage Ratio”). This ratio will be calculated by dividinour average distributable cash flow
generated during an outstanding award’s three-year measurement period by a baseline cash flow set on the initial
grant date of the award.

The average distributable cash flow is the average of the distributablaadbr each of the three years in a
particular award’s three-year measurement period. For purposes of this plan’s performance metric, distributable cash
flow is equal toLTIP EBITDA for a particular fiscal year less capital expenditures, cash inteqesh®e, and the
provision for income taxes for the same fiscal yeear LTIP purposes, “LTIP EBITDA” is identical to cash bonus
plan EBITDA. The average distributable cash flow will be adjusted by the sum of the annual differences between the
perCommonUnit annualized distribution rate at the beginning of the tyeze measurement period and the actual
perCommon Unit distributions paid during each of the three years in an award’s three-year measurement period.
Baseline cash flow is calculated by nipiling the total number of Common Units outstanding at the beginning of the
threeyear measurement period by the then per Common Unit annualized distribution rate.

Cash Payments

For awards granted under the 2003 and A00I® plan documents (i.e., thes€al 2013award, at the end of the
threeyear measurement period, depending on the quartile ranking within which our TRU falls relative to the other
members of the peer group, our executive officers, as well as the other participants, all of whonmearpldgges,
will receive a caslpaymentequal to:

9 The quantity of the participant’s LTIP units multiplied by the average of the closing prices of our
Common Units for the twenty days preceding the conclusion of theybeeganeasurement period,;

1 The quantity of the participant’s LTIP units multiplied by the sum of the distributions that would have
inured to one of our outstanding Common Units during the ty&ae measurement period; and

1 The sum of the products of the two preceding calculations matiifdi: zero if our performance falls
within the lowest quartile of the peer group; 50% if our performance falls within the second lowest
quartile; 100% if our performance falls within the second highest quartile; and 125% if our performance
falls within the top quartile.

For awards granted under the 2014 plan documenfigited 2014 awardpayable, if earned, at the end of fiscal
2016 and the fiscal 2015 award, payable, if earned, at the end of fiscal 201fhe end of the threear
measurement periodlepending on th®istribution CoverageRatio for that thregzear measurement period, our
executive officers, as well as the other participants, all of whom are key employees, will recepaycashtsequal
to:

9 The quantity of the participant’s LTIP units multiplied by the average of the closing prices of our
Common Units for the twenty days preceding the conclusion of theybeganeasurement period,;

9 The quantity of the participant’s LTIP units multiplied by the sum of the distributions that Wobave
inured to one of our outstanding Common Units during the 4y@ae measurement period; and

70



1 The sum of the products of the two preceding calculations multiplied by the applicable percentage
corresponding to thBistribution CoverageRatio illustraed in the following table:

Distribution Coverage Ratio % of Award Earned
Less than 1.00 00.0%
1.00 (Threshold Performance) 50.0%
1.01 52.5%
1.02 55.0%
1.03 57.5%
1.04 60.0%
1.05 62.5%
1.06 65.0%
1.07 67.5%
1.08 70.0%
1.09 72.5%
1.10 75.0%
1.11 77.5%
1.12 80.0%
1.13 82.5%
1.14 85.0%
1.15 87.5%
1.16 90.0%
1.17 92.5%
1.18 95.0%
1.19 97.5%
1.20 (Target Performance) 100.0%
1.21 101.7%
1.22 103.3%
1.23 105.0%
1.24 106.7%
1.25 108.4%
1.26 110.0%
1.27 111.7%
1.28 113.4%
1.29 115.0%
1.30 116.7%
1.31 118.4%
1.32 120.0%
1.33 121.7%
1.34 123.4%
1.35 125.1%
1.36 126.7%
1.37 128.4%
1.38 130.1%
1.39 131.7%
1.40 133.4%
1.41 135.1%
1.42 136.7%
1.43 138.4%
1.44 140.1%
1.45 141.8%
1.46 143.4%
1.47 145.1%
1.48 146.8%
1.49 148.4%
1.50 and Higher (Maximum Performance) 150.0%
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Retirement Provision

A retirementeligible participant’s outstanding awards under the LTIPwill vest as of the retirememigible date,
but will remain subject to the same thiygsar measurement period for purposes of determining the eventual cash
payment if any, at the conclusion of the measurement period.

The grant date values based on phabable outcomes of the awards under the LTIP granted during fisegl 201
fiscal 2013 and fiscal 202 (although the final measurement of the fiscal 2012 award resulted in no actual payments to
our executive officersgre reported in the column titled “Unit Awards” in the Summary Compensation Table below.

Restricted Unit Plan

We adopted the 2000 Restricted Unit Plan effective November 1, 2000. Upon adoption, this plan authorized the
issuance of 487,805 Common Units to our executive officers, maraggrsther employees and to the members of
our Board of Supervisors. On October 17, 2006, following approval by our Unitholders, we adopted amendments fc
this plan which, among other things, increased the number of Common Units authorized for issuartbésysidar
by 230,000 for a total of 717,805. As this plan terminated by its terms on October 31, 2010, no future awards can kb
made under this plan; however such termination will not affect the continued validity of any awards granted under the
plan prio to its termination.

At our July 22, 2009 TrAnnual Meeting, our Unitholders approved our adoption of the 2009 Restricted Unit
Plan effective August 1, 2009. Upon adoption, this plan authorized the issuance of 1,200,000 Common Units to ou
executiveofficers, managers and other employees and to the members of our Board of Supervisors. The provisions ¢
both restricted unit plan&ollectively and individual referred to as the “RUP”) are substantially identical. At the
conclusion of fiscal 204, thee remained17,758restricted units available under the RUP for future awards.

When the Committee authorizes an award of restricted units, the unvested units underlying an award do nc
provide the grantee with voting rights and do not receive distriitimraccrue rights to distributions during the
vesting period. Restricted unit awagtanted prior to August 6, 20X®rmally vest as follows: 25% on each of the
third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date and the remaining 50% on the fifth sargieéthe grant datét its
August 6, 2013 meeting, in accordance with recommendations from Towers Watson, the Committee amended th
Partnership’s 2009 Restricted Unit Plan to revise the normative vesting schedule of awards granted thereafter to one
third on each of the first three anniversaries of the award grant date. The Committee retained the ability to deviate,
its discretion, from the normal vesting schedule with respect to particular restricted unit awards. The Committee
amended the plan toake its vesting schedule comparable to those of similar plans offered by other companies.
Unvested awards are subject to forfeiture in certain circumstances as defined in the applicable RUP document. Upc
vesting, restricted units are automatically cotegrinto our Common Units, with full voting rights and rights to
receive distributions.

The RUP contains a retirement provision that provides for the vesting (six months and one day after the
retirement date of qualifying participants) of unvested aw/eldd by a retiring participant who meatl three of the
following conditions on his or her retirement date:

1 The unvested award has been held by the grantee for at least six months;
1 The grantee is age 55 or older; and
1 The grantee has worked for us meoof our predecessors for at least 10 years.

All RUP awards are approved by the Committee. Because individual circumstances differ, the Committee has nc
adopted a formulaic approach to making RUP awards. Although the reasons for granting an awarg, ¢ha
objective of granting an award to a recipient is to retain the services of the recipient over the vesting period while, a
the same time providing the type of motivation that further aligns thettong interests of the recipient with the
long-term interests of our Unitholders. The reasons for which the Committee grants RUP awards include, but are nc
limited to, the following:
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To attract skilled and capable candidates to fill vacant positions;

To retain the services of an employee;

To providean adequate compensation package to accompany an internal promotion; and
To reward outstanding performance.

= =4 =8 =9

In determining the quantity of restricted units to grant to executive officers and other key employees, the
Committee considers, without limitati:

9 The executive officer’s or key employee’s scope of responsibility, performance and contribution to
meeting our objectives;

1 The total cash compensation opportunity provided to the executive afikey employeéor whom the
award is being considergd

1 The value of similar equity awards to executive officers of similarly sized enterprises; and

1 The current value of a similar quantity of outstanding Common Units.

In addition, in establishing the level of restricted units to grant to our executivergftise Committee considers
the existing level of outstanding unvested RUP awards held by our executive officers.

The Committee generally approves awards under the RUP at its first meeting each fiscal year following the
availability of the financial reults for the prior fiscal year; however, occasionally the Committee grants awards at
other times of the year, particularly when the need arises to grant awards because of promotions and new hires.

At its November 13, 2013 meetinig order to further lign the interests of management with the interests of our
Unitholders the Committee approvéie followinggrants to the followingaamed executive officers:

Grant Name GrantDate Quantity
Michael A. Stivala November 15, 2013 5,302
Michael A. Kuglin November 15, 2013 4,242
Mark Wienberg November 15, 2013 5,302
Steven C. Boyd November 15, 2013 5,302
Douglas T. Brinkworth November 15, 2013 5,302

In determining thse fiscal 204 awards forMr. Stivala, Mr. Kuglin, Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd and Mr.
Brinkworth, the Committee relied upon information provided by the Mercer database to conclude that these award
were necessary to remediate shortfalls percebyethe Committee in the cash compensatipportunitiesof these
named executive officerss well as in recognition of their individual achievemahi®ughout fiscal2013 No
award was granted to our Chief Executive Officer at the Committee’s November 13, 2013 meeting.

At its January 22, 2014 meeting, in accordance with the recommendations of Towers Watson, in recognition o
Mr. Dunn’s years of service to the Partnership and in recognition of the promotions of the senior level executive
officers, theCommittee approved the following grants to the named executive officers:

Grant Name GrantDate Quantity
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. March 1, 2014 17,009
Michael A. Stivala April 1, 2014 23,885
Michael A. Kuglin April 1, 2014 11,943
Mark Wienberg April 1, 2014 11,943
Steven C. Boyd April 1, 2014 11,943
Douglas T. Brinkworth April 1, 2014 11,943
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The aggregate grant date fair values of RUP awards made distad)2014, fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012,
computed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are reported
the column titled “Unit Awards” in the Summary Compensation Table below.

At its November 11, 2014 meeting, the Committee did not grant any additional RUP awards to our named
executive officers because each of these individuals was granted an award on April 1, 2014.

Equity Holding Palicy

Effective April 22, 2010, the Committee adopted an Equity Holding Policy which establishes guidelines for the
level of Partnership equity holdings that members of the Board and our exaiftitiees are expected to maintain.
The Equity Holding Policy can be accessed through a linkusrwebsite atwww.suburbanpropane.coonder the
“Investors” tab.

The Partnership’s equity holding requirements are as follows:

Position Amount
Member of the Boardf Supervisors 2 x Annual Fee
Chief Executive Officer 5 x Base Salary
President 5 x Base Salary
Chief Operating Officer 3 x Base Salary
Chief Financial Officer 3 x Base Salary
Executive Vice President 3 x Base Salary
Senior VicePresident 2.5 x Base Salary
Vice President 1.5 x Base Salary
Assistant Vice President 1 x Base Salary
Managing Director 1 x Base Salary

As of the January 2, 2@Ineasurement date, all of our executive officers, including our named executive officers,
as well as the members of our Board of Supervisegss in compliance witbur Equity Holding Policy.

Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy

Upon recommendatioby the Committee, the Board of Supervisors has adopted an Incentive Compensation
Recoupment Policy which permits the Committee to seek the reimbursement from certain executhes of
Partnershipand the Operating Partnership of incentive compensatian gagments/awards pursuant to the annual
cash bonus plan, the LTIP and RUP) paid to those executives in connection with any fiscal year for which there is .
significant restatement of the published financial statementeeoPartnershipriggered by a marial accounting
error, which results in less favorable results than those originally reported. Such reimbursement can be sought frol
executives even if they had no responsibility for the restatement. In addition to the foregoing, if the Committee
detemines that any fraud or intentional misconduct by an executive was a contributing fatiter Rartnership
having to make a significant restatement, then the Committee is authorized to take appropriate action against su
executive, including disciplinargction, up to, and including, termination, and requiring reimbursement of all, or any
part, of the compensation paid to that executive in excess of that executive’s base salary, including cancellation of any
unvested restricted units The Incentive Compesation Recoupment Policy is available on our website at
www.suburbanpropane.comder the “Investors” tab.

Pension Plan

We sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that was originally designed to cover all of our
eligible employees who met certain criteria relative to age and length of service. Effective January 1, 1998, we
amended the plan in order to prowitbr a cash balance format rather than the final average pay format that was in
effect prior to January 1, 1998. The cash balance format is designed to evenly spread the growth of a participant’s
earned retirement benefit throughout his or her careleer#tan the final average pay format, under which a greater
portion of a participant’s benefits were earned toward the latter stages of his or her career. Effective January 1, 2000,
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we amended the plan to limit participation in this plan to existingogzahts and no longer admit new participants to
the plan. On January 1, 2003, we amended the plan to cease future service-lzmgkgagredits on behalf of the
participants and, from that point on, participants’ benefits have increased only due to interest credits.

Of our named executive officersnly Mr. Dunn, Mr. Boyd, and Mr. Brinkwortlparticipate in the plan. The
changes in the actuarial value relativetteir participation in the plan during fiscal 201fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012
arereportal in the column titled “Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings” in
the Summary Compensation Table below.

Deferred Compensation

All employees, including the named executive officers, who satisfy certain service requseanerentitled to
participate in our IRC Section 401(K) Plan, which we refer to as the “401(k) Plan,” in which participants may defer a
portion of their eligible cash compensation up to the limits established by law. We offer the 401(k) Plan &ndttract
retain talented employees by providing them with aa@dwantaged opportunity to save for retirement.

For fiscal 204, all of our named executive officers participated in the 401(k) Plan. The benefits provided to our
named executive officers undire 401(k) Plan are provided on the same basis as to our other exempt employees.
Amounts deferred by our named executive officers under the 401(k) Plan during fis¢afi2€dl 2013 and fiscal
2012are included in the column titled “Salary” in the Sumrary Compensation Table below.

In order to be competitive with other employers, if certain performance criteria are met, we will match our
employeeparticipants’ contributions up to the lesser of 6% of their base salary or $260,000, at a rate determined
based on a performandmsed scale. The following chart shows the performance target criteria that must be met for
each level of matching contribution:

If We Meet This The Participating Employee
Percentage of Will Receive this Matching
Budgeted EBITDA... Contribution for the Year...
115% or higher 100%
100% to 114% 50%
90% to 99% 25%
Less than 90% 0%

(1) For purposes of the 401(Kplan, the definition of the term “budgeted EBITDA” is identical to that of
“budgeted cash bonus plan EBITDA” discussed under the heading titled “Annual Cash Bonus Plan” above.

Actual cash bonus plan EBITDA, when applied to the 40P, was such that weill provide participantén
the 401(k)Plan with a matcing contributionequalto 25% of their calendayear 204 contributions thado not
exceed 6% of their total base pay, pa maximum annuatompensation limit of $0,000. The matching
contributions made on behalf of our named executive officers fot &@lreported in the column titled “All Other
Compensatichin the Summary Compensation Table below.

Other Benefits

As part of his total compensation package, each named executive officer is eligible to participate in all of our
other employee benefit plans, such as the medical, dental, group life insurance and disability plans, on the same ba
as other exempt employeed hese benefit plans are offered to attract and retain talented employees by providing
them with competitive benefits.

Other than to Mr. Dunn, in accordance with the terms of his letter agreement (described below in the section titlec
“Letter Agreement of Mr. Dunn”), there are no post-termination or other special rights provided to any named
executive officer to participate in these benefit programs other than the right to participate in such plans for a fixec
period of time following termination of empyment, on the same basis as is provided to other exempt employees, as
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required by law.

The costs of all such benefits incurred on behalf of our named executive officers in fistafitd 2013 and
fiscal 2012are reported in the column titled “All Other Compensatidrin the Summary Compensation Table below.

Perquisites
Perquisites represent a minor component of our executive officers’ compensation. Each of the named executive

officers is eligible for tax preparation services, a comganoyided ehicle, and an annual physical. The following
table summarizes both the value and the utilization of these perquisites by the named executive officers irdfiscal 201

Employer-
Tax Preparation Provided
Name Services Vehicle Physical
Michael J. DunnJr. $9,150 $16,549 $1.600
Michael A. Stivala $ -0- $18,153 $ -0-
Michael A. Kuglin $ -0 $12,725 $ -0
Mark Wienberg $ -0 $13,142 $1,750
Steven C. Boyd $4,450 $6,837 $ -0-
Douglas T. Brinkworth $4,400 $11410 $1500

Perquisiterelated costs for fiscal 2@] fiscal 2013 and fiscal 201#2e reported in the column titled “All Other
Compensatichin the Summary Compensation Table below.

Impact of Accounting and Tax Treatments of Executive Compensation

As we are apartnership and not a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we are not subject to the
limitations of IRC Section 162(m) with respect to tax deductible executive compensation. Accordingly, none of the
compensation paid to our named executive offidersubject to a limitation as to tax deductibility. However, if such
tax laws related to executive compensation change in the future, the Committee will consider the implication of sucl
changes to us.

Although it is our practice to comply with the stabry and regulatory provisions of IRC Section 409A, the
Suburban Propane, L.P. Severance Protection Plan for Key Employees, which we refer to as the “Severance Plan,”
provides that if any payment under the Severance Plan subjects a participant to tred@@igmaltax under IRC
Section 409A, the payment will be grossed up to permit such participant to retain a net amount ortaanbeltis
equal to what he or she would have received had the excise tax not been payable.

Letter Agreement of Mr. Dunn

Simultaneous with the commencement of fiscal 2010, Mr. Dunn’s then existing employment agreement was
terminated by mutual agreement and replaced with a letter agreement governing retirement and the implementation
a mutually agreed upon succession plahe [Etter agreement between Mr. Dunn and us is summarized as follows:

Mr. Dunn will participate in our Severance Protection Plan (see below) at-tieel8participation level.
If on or after the last day of fiscal 2012, Mr. Dunn retires or leaves asilh 08 an agreedpon succession
plan, he will receive the following if he timely provides us with a release of all claims he might have against
us at the time of his departure:
0 A payment equal to two years of base salary paid over a two year period.
o Continuation of medical and dental benefits at no premium cost to him until attainment of age 65
(Mr. Dunnhad attained aggeb prior tothe conclusion of fiscal 2@].

)l
)l

We agreed thatf there wasa termination of Mr. Dunn’s employment in connection with a succession plarit
would be deemed a retirement for the purposes of his benefits under the employee benefit plans in which h
participates. Mr. Dunn agreed to provide us with transition consultation services for a period not to exceed two year
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following his departure.We also agreed thalr. Dunn would not be deemed to have retired or terminated his
employment if he simply relinquistehe title and responsibilities of President but remdiour Chief Executive
Officer.

On November 14, 2013, we annaed that, pursuant to a succession plan developed by Mr. Dunn and our Board
of Supervisors, Mr. Dunwould relinquishthe role of President on March 31, 2014, asitte as our Chief Executive
Officer on September 2, 2014. Accordingly, the retirement pwisions of our letter agreement with Mr. Dunn
became effective on September 28, 2014, at which time Mr. Dunn was age 65.

The total payments that will be made under this agreement as a result of Mr. Dunn’s retirement are reported in the
column titled “All Other Compensatidrin the Summary Compensation Table below.

Severance Benefits

We believe that, in most cases, employees should be paid reasonable severance benefits. Therefore, it is t
general policy of the Committee to provide executive officexs @her key employees who are terminated by us
without cause or who choose to terminate their employment with us for good reason with a severance payment equ
to, at a minimum, one year’s base salary, unless circumstances dictate otherwise. This policy was adopted because it
may be difficult for former executive officers and other key employees to find comparable employment within a short
period of time. However, depending upon individual facts and circumstances, particularly the severed employee’s
tenue with us, the Committee may make exceptions to this general policy.

A “key employee” is an employee who has attained a director level pay-grade or higher. “Cause” will be deemed
to exist where the individual has been convicted of a crime involvinglmapitude, has stolen from us, has violated
his or her nofcompetition or confidentiality obligations, or has been grossly negligent in fulfillment of his or her
responsibilities. “Good reason” generally will exist where an executive officer’s position or compensation has been
decreased or where the employee has been required to relocate.

Change of Control

Our executive officers and other key employees have thailPartnershimto the successful enterprise that it is
today; therefore, we believe that it is important to protect them in the event of a change of control. Further, it is oul
belief that the interests of our Unitholders will be best served if the interests ofeouttiee officers are aligned with
them, and that providing change of control benefits should eliminate, or at least reduce, the reluctance of ou
executive officers to pursue potential change of control transactions that may be in the best interests of ou
Unitholders. Additionally, we believe that the severance benefits provided to our executive officers and to our key
employees are consistent with market practice and appropriate because these benefits are an inducement to accep
employment and becagisthe executive officers have agreed to and are subject t@ongmetition and non
solicitation covenants for a period following termination of employment. Therefore, our executive officers and other
key employees are provided with employment protectidiovitng a change of control, which we refer to as the
“Severance Protection Plan”. During fiscal 2014, our Severance Protection Plan covered all executive officers,
including the named executive officers.

The Severance Protection Plan provides for seeerpayments of either 65 or 78 weeks of base salary and target
cash bonuses for such officers and key employees if within one year following a change of control their employmen
is terminated by us or our successor or they resign for Good Reason (ad define Severance Protection Plan).

All named executive officers who participate in the Severance Protection Plan are eligible for 78 weeks of base salatr
and target bonuses. The cash components of any change of control benefits are paid in a lump sum.

In addition, upon a change of control, without regard to whether a participant’s employment is terminated, all
unvested awards granted under the RUP will vest immediately and become distributable to the partisipants
without regard to whether a p&ipant’s employment is terminated, all outstanding, unvestddr'IP awards will vest
immediately as if the thregear measurement period for each outstanding award concluded on the date the change o
control occurred Under the provisions of the LTIP docant, an amount equal to the cash value of 125% of a
participant’s unvested LTIP units plus a sum equal to 125% of a participant’s unvested LTIP units multiplied by an
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amount equal to the cumulative, ggommon Unit distribution from the beginning of an ested award’s three-year
measurement period through the date on which a change of control occurred would become payable to th
participants.

For purposes of these benefits, a change of control is deemed to occur, in general, if:

1 An acquisition of our Common Units or voting equity interests by any person immediately after which
such person beneficially owns more than 30% of the combined voting power of our then outstanding
Common Units, unless such acquisition was made by (a) ograubsidiaries, or any employee benefit
plan maintained by us, the Operating Partnership or any of our subsidiaries, or (b) any person in a
transaction where (A) the existing holders prior to the transaction own at least 50% of the voting power of
the entity surviving the transaction and (B) none of the Unitholders other tti@rPartnershipour
subsidiaries, any employee benefit plan maintained by us, the Operating Partnership, or the surviving
entity, or the existing beneficial owner of more than 28%he outstanding Common Units owns more
than 25% of the combined voting power of the surviving entity, which transaction we refer to as a “Non-

Control Transaction™; or

1 The consummation of (a) a merger, consolidation or reorganization invohérigartershipother than a
Non-Control Transaction; (b) a complete liquidation or dissolutiothef Partnershipor (c) the sale or
other disposition of 40% or more of the gross fair market value of all the assle¢sRHdrtnershipo any
person (other than &ansfer to a subsidiary).

For additional information pertaining to severance payable to our named executive officers following a change of
controlrelated termination, see the tables titled “Potential Payments Upon Termination” below.

Report of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management this Compensation Discussion a
Analysis. Based on its review and discussions with management, the Committee recommended to the Board «
Supervisors that thi€ompensation Discussion and Analysis be included inAhisual Report on Form 1R for
fiscal 2014
The Compensation Committee:
John Hoyt Stookey, Chairman

Matthew J. Chanin
Harold R. Logan, Jr.

78



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the compensation of each named executive officer

during the fiscal years end&ptember 27, 2014, September 28, 2013Saptember @ 2012:

Change in
Pension Value
and
Non-Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Deferred
Unit Plan Compensation All Other
Name andPrincipal Salary Bonus Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Position Year O $)®@ $® $“ ($)© $)©® ($)
@ (b) () (d) (e) @ (h) 0] (0)

Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 2014 $495,000 - $ 981,921 $336600 $ 9,102 $ 48,352 | $1,87Q975
FormerChief Executive
Officer (Retired at the 2013 $495,000 - $ 369,124 $297,000 - $ 54,619 $1215,743
Conclusion of Fiscal 2014

2012 $475,000 - $ 521,058 - $ 22,308 $ 49,280 $1,067,646
Michael A. Stivala 2014 $362,500 - $1,182776 $226,100 - $ 40,906 $1,812,282
President and Chief
Executive Officer 2013 $300,000 - $ 376,313 $144,000 - $ 42,073 $ 862386

2012 $275,000 - $ 328,487 - - $ 36,557 $ 640,044
Michael A. Kuglin 2014 $252,500 - $ 675,618 $116,110 - $ 33,430 $1,077,658
Chief Financial Officer an
Chief Accounting Officer 2013 $240000 - $ 257,37 $ 93,600 - $ 35,161 $ 626058

2012 $215000 - $ 215,211 - - $ 28,715 $ 458,926
Mark Wienberg 2014 $302,500 - $ 758,784 $164560 - $ 37,800 $1,263,644
Chief OperatingOfficer

2013 $280,000 - $ 364,382 $134,400 - $ 36,055 $ 814,837

2012 $250,000 - $ 317,553 - - $ 32,854 $ 600,407
Steven C. Boyd 2014 $302,500 - $ 763,708 $164,560 $ 28,917 $ 35341 $1,295,026
Senior Vice President
Field Operations 2013 $290,000 - $ 370,348 $139,200 - $ 33,416 $ 832,964

2012 $270,000 - $ 326,310 - $ 41,823 $ 32,763 $ 670,896

Douglas T. Brinkworth 2014 $285,000 - $ 753,870 $155040 $ 16,037 $ 41416 $1,251,363
Senior Vice President
Product Supply 2013 $270,000 - $ 358,418 $129,600 - $ 40,772 $ 798,790
Purchasing & Logistics

2012 $245,000 - $ 315,326 - $ 24,327 $ 35,786 $ 620,439

(1) Includes amounts deferred by named executive officers as contributions to the 401(k) Plan. For more informatrefatiartship between salaries and
other cash compensatidice., annual cashonusesand LongTerm Incentive Plan awards), refer to the subheading titled “Allocation Among Components”
in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above.

(2) This column is reserved for discretionary cash bonuses that are nodtdmeary performance criteria. During fiscal years 2014, 2013, and 2012, we did not
provide our named executive officers with roerformance related bonus payments.
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(3) The amounts reported in this column represent the aggregate grant daakiéaof RUP awards made during fiscal years42@013 and 2A.2, as well as
the value at the grant date of awards made in fiscal yeas%s 2013, and 2@2 under the LTIP, based on the probable outcome with respect to satisfaction
of the performance cortitins. The specific details regarding these plans are provided in the preceding “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” under the
subheadings “Restricted Unit Plan” and “Long-Term Incentive Plan.” The breakdown for each plan with respect to each named executive officer is as

follows:

Plan Name Mr. Dunn Mr. Stivala Mr. Kuglin Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd Mr. Brinkworth
2014
RUP $ 677,679 $ 1,035,266 $ 579,736 $ 621,111 $ 621,111 $ 621,111
LTIP 304,242 147,510 95,882 137,673 142,597 132,759
Total $ 981,921 $ 1,182776 $ 675,618 $ 758,784 $ 763,708 $ 753,870
2013
RUP N/A $ 197,351 $ 140,971 $ 197,351 $ 197,351 $ 197,351
LTIP 369,124 178,962 116,326 167,031 172,997 161,067
Total $ 369,124 $ 36,313 $ 257,97 $ 364,382 $ 370,348 $ 38,418
2012
RUP $ 260,900 $ 208,007 $ 138,668 $ 208,007 $ 208,007 $ 208,007
LTIP 260,158 120,480 76,543 109,546 118,303 107,319
Total $ 521,058 $ 328,487 $ 215,211 $ 317,553 $ 326,310 $ 315,326

(4 The amounts reported in this column represent each named executive officer's annual cash bonus earned in accdiuapesfovitence measures
discussed under the subheading “Annual Cash Bonus Plan” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

(5) Nothing was reported in this column for fiscal 2013 because there was a decline in value of the participating namedo&EkesratiGash Balance Plan
holdings. The declines in pension values for fiscal 2013 were as follows: ($24,140), (2&581$14,743) for Messrs. Dunn, Boyd, and Brinkworth,
respectively.Mr. Stivalg Mr. Kuglin andMr. Wienbergdo notparticipate in the Cash Balance Plan.

(6) The amounts reported in this column consist of the following:

2014
Type of Compensaton
Mr. Dunn Mr. Stivala Mr._Kuglin Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd Mr. Brinkworth
401(k) Match $ 3,900 $ 3,900 $ 3,788 $ 3900 $ 3,900 $ 3900
Value of Annual Physical Examination 1,600 N/A N/A 1,750 N/A 1,500
Value of Partnership Provided Vehicle 16,549 18,153 12,725 13142 6,837 11410
Tax Preparation Services 9,150 N/A N/A N/A 4,450 4,400
Cash Balance Plan Administrative Feeg 1,500 N/A N/A N/A 1,500 1,500
Insurance Premiums 15,653 18,853 16,917 19,008 18,654 18,706
Totals $ 48,352 $ 40,906 $ 33,80 $ 37,800 $ 3,341 $ 4,416
2013
Type of Compensation
Mr. Dunn Mr. Stivala Mr. Kuglin Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd Mr. Brinkworth
401(k) Match $ 3,825 $ 3,825 $ 3,600 $ 3825 $ 3825 $ 3,825
Value of Annual Physical Examination 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,500 N/A 1,750
Value of Partnership Provided Vehicle 18,897 19,319 12,882 13,570 7,705 11,521
Tax Preparation Services 8,950 N/A N/A N/A 2,650 4,050
Cash Balance Plan Administrative Fee 1,500 N/A N/A N/A 1,500 1,500
Insurance Premiums 19697 17,179 16,929 17,160 17,736 18,126
Totals $ 54,619 $ 42,073 $ 3,161 $ 36,055 $ 33,416 $ 40,772
2012
Type of Compensation
Mr. Dunn Mr. Stivala Mr. Kuglin Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd Mr. Brinkworth
401(k) Match $ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 2,580 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 2,940
Value of Annual Physical Examination N/A 1,500 N/A 1,500 N/A N/A
Value of Partnership Provided Vehicle 17,047 15,480 9,810 11,676 7,743 10,677
Tax Preparation Services 8,400 N/A N/A N/A 3,150 4,050
Cash Balance Plan Administrative Fee 1,500 N/A N/A N/A 1,500 1,500
Insurance Premiums 19,333 16,577 16,325 16,678 17,370 16,619
Totals $ 49,280 $ 36,557 $ 28,715 $ 32,854 $ 32,763 $ 35,786

Note: Column (f) was omitted from the Summary Compensation Table begadsenot grant options touremployees.
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Grants of Plan Based Awards Table fofFiscal 204

The following table sets forth certain information concerning grants of awards made to each named executive
officer during the fiscal year ended Septemb&r2d4:

Estimated Future Payments Estimated Future Payments
Under Non-Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive Plan
Plan Awards Awards
LTIP Units
Underlying All Other stock Grant Date
Equity Awards: Fair Value of
Incentive Number of Stock and
Plan Awards Shares of Stock Option
Plan Grant Approval (LTIP) @ Target Maximum Target Maximum or Units Awards
Name Name Date Date ($) ($) ($) ($) (#) ($)©
(@) (b) (d) (e) (@ (h) (i) (1)
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. RUP® 1 Mar 14 22 Jan 14 17,009 $677,679
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $495,000 $594,000
LTIP ® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 5,404 $304,22 $456,33
Michael A. Stivala RUP® 15 Nov 13 13Nov 13 5,302 $206,924
RUP® 1Apr14 22 Jan 14 23,885 $828,342
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $332,500 $399,000
LTIP ® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 2,620 $147,510 $221,265
Michael A. Kuglin RUP® 15 Nov 13 13Nov 13 4,242 $165,549
RUP® 1 Apr 14 22 Jan 14 11,943 $414,187
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $170,750 $204,900
LTIP ® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 1,703 $95,882 $143,823
Mark Wienberg RUP 15 Nov 13 13Nov 13 5,302 $206,924
RUP® 1 Apr 14 22 Jan 14 11,943 $414,187
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $242,000 $290,400
LTIP® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 2,445 $137,673 $206,510
Steven C. Boyd RUP 15 Nov 13 13Nov 13 5,302 $206,924
RUP® 1 Apr 14 22 Jan 14 11,943 $414,187
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $242,000 $290,400
LTIP® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 2,533 $142,597 $213,896
Douglas T. Brinkworth RUP 15 Nov 13 13Nov 13 5,302 $206,924
RUP® 1 Apr 14 22 Jan 14 11,943 $414,187
Bonus® | 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 $228,000 $273,600
LTIP® 29Sep B 13 Nov 13 2,358 $132,759 $199,139
I O I I —

(1) The quantities reported on these lines represent awards grantedheRiestricted Unit Plans. RUP awamisnted subsequent to fiscal 2043t as
follows: one thirdof the award on thérst anniversary of the grant datne thirdof the award on theecondanniversary of the grant date; ane
third of the award on thehird anniversary of the grant date, subject in each case to continued service through edatesuth recipient has held an
unvested award for at least six months; is 55 years or older; and has wortteriRartnershifor at least ten years, an award held by such participant
will vest six months following such participant’s retirement if the participant retires prior to the conclusion of the normal vesting schealdgss the
Committee exercises its authority to alter the applicability of the plan’s retirement provisions in regard to a particular award. On Septembé&7, 2014,

Mr. Dunn wasthe only named executive officer who held RUP awards and, at the same time, satisfied all three retirement eligillityAcriter
discussiorof the general terms of the RU&hd the facts and circumstances considered by the Committee in authorizisgah2d¥ awards to the
named executive officerss included in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” under the subheading “Restricted Unit Plan.”

(2) Amounts reported on these lines are the targeted and maximum annual cash bonus compensatiofoipegattiahmed executive officer under the
annual cash bonus plan as described in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” under the subheading “Annual Cash Bonus Plan.” Actual
amounts earned by the named executive officers for fiscal @te equal b 68% of the “Target” amounts reported on this line. Column (c)
(“Threshold $”) was omitted because the annual cash bonus plan does not provide for a minimum cash payment. Because these plan awards were
grantedto, and ®% of the “Target” awards were earned by, our named executive officers during fiscalf2@8% of the “Target” amounts reported
under column (d) have been reported in the Summary Compensation Table above.

(3) The LTIP is a phantom unit plan. Payments, if earned, are based on a combinétiotheffair market value of our Common Units at the end of a
threeyear measurement period, which, for purposes of the plan, is the average of the closing prices for the twenty busimessditayshe
conclusion of the thregear measurement perioahd (2) cash equal to the distributions that would have inured to the same quantity of outstanding
Common Units during the same thigear measurement period. The fiscal £8dard “Target” and “Maximum” amounts are estimates based upon
(1) the fair market value (the average of the closing prices of our Common Units for the twenty business days precedbey Be[2@13) of our
Common Units at théeginningof fiscal 204, and (2) the estimated distutions over the course of the award’s three-year measurement period.
Column (f) (“Threshold”) was omitted because the LTIP does not provide for a minimum cash payment. The “Target” amount represents a
hypothetical payment at 100% of target and the “Maximum” amount represents a hypothetical paymenb@¥dlof target. Detailed descriptions of the
plan and the calculation of awards are included in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” under the subheading “Long-Term Incentive Plan.”

(4) This column is frquently used when neequity incentive plan awards are denominated in units; however, in this case, the numbers reported represent
theLTIP units each named executive officer was awarded under the LTIP during fisdal 201

(5) The dollar amounts reportedtims column represent the aggregate fair value of the RUP awards on the grant date, net of estimated future distributions

during the vesting period. The fair value shown may not be indicative of the value realized in the future upon vesiitigeduagability in the
trading price of our Common Units.
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Note: Columns (j) and (k) were omitted from the Grants of Plan Based Awards Table lveedoseot award options tour employees.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End 204 Table

The followingtable sets forth certain information concerning outstanding equity awards under our Restricted Unit
Plan and.TIP unit awards under oWTIP for each named executive officer as of SeptemBe2@14:

Stock Awards
Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of Equity Incentive Plan
Unearned Awards: Market or
Number of Shares| Market Value Shares, Units or Payout Value of
or Units of Stock of Shares or Other Rights Unearned Shares,
That Have Not Units of Stock that Have Not Units or Other Rights
Name Vested That Have Not Vested That Have Not Vested
#)® Vested #He ($) o
®)©
(@) (@) (h) (0) ()
Michael J. Dunn, J& 25,009 $1,107,774 11,963 $658,436
Michael A. Stivala® 50,627 $2,242,523 5,800 $319,229
Michael A. Kuglin® 30,879 $1,367,785 3,770 $207,499
Mark Wienberg?® 38,685 $1,713,552 5,413 $297,929
Steven C. Boyd 38,685 $1,713,552 5,607 $308,606
Douglas T. Brinkworth 38,865 $1,713,552 5,220 $287,305
(1) Mr. Dunn’s RUP awards will vest as follows:
Vesting Mar 28
Date 2015
Quantity of
Units 25,009
(2) Mr. Stivala’s RUP awards will vest as follows:
Nov1l5 | Apri Nov15 | Aprl Nov15 | Apri Nov 15
Vesting Date | 2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017
Quantity of
Units 7,275 7,962 8,189 7,962 7,062 7,961 4,216
(3) Mr. Kuglin’s RUP awards will vest as follows:
Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15
Vesting Date 2014 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017
Quantity of
Units 5,084 3,981 5,795 3,981 5,046 3,981 3,011
(4) Mr. Wienberg’s RUP awards will vest as follows:
Vesting Date | Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15
2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017
Quantity of
Units 7,275 3,981 8,189 3,981 7,062 3,981 4,216
(5) Mr. Boyd’s RUP awards will vest as follows:
Vesting Date | Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov15 | Apri, Nov 15 Apr 1 Nov 15
2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017
Quantity of
Units 7,275 3,981 8,189 3,981 7,062 3,981 4,216
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(6)

@)
®)

9)

Mr. Brinkworth’s RUP awards will vest as follows:

Vesting Date Nov 15 Aprl Nov 15 Apr1, Nov 15 Aprl Nov 15
2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017
Quantity of
Units 7,275 3,981 8,189 3,981 7,062 3,981 4,216

The figures reported in this column represent the total quantity of each of our named executive officer’s unvested RUP awards.

The figures reported in this column represent the figures reported in column (g) multiplied by the average of the hidjfeclstveest trading prices
of our Common Units on Septemi®§, 204, the last trading day of fiscal 201

The amounts reported this column represent the quantitiesLdfIP units that underlie the outstanding and unvested fiscad 2ad fiscal 203

awards under the LTIP. Payments, if earrffiedthe 2013 awardyill be made to participants at the end of a thyear measuremepteriod and will

be based upon our total returndoer Common Unitholders in comparison to the total return provided by a predetermined peer group of eleven other
companies, all of which are publietyaded partnerships, to their unitholdeBayments if arned, for the 2014 award, will be made to participants at

the end of a thregear measurement period and will be based upon the Partnership’s distribution coverage ratio for the three-year measurement period.

For more information on the LTIP, refer teetiubheading “Long-Term Incentive Plan” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

(10) The amounts reported in this column represent the estimated future target payouts of the fismatl Z3tal 203 awards granted under the LTIP.

These amounts wermputed by multiplying the quantities of the unvedtd@dP units in column (i) by the average of the closing prices of our
Common Units for the twenty business days preceding Septetvib2014 (in accordance with the plan’s valuation methodology), and by adding to

the product of that calculation the product of each year’s underlying LTIP units times the sum of the distributions that are estimated to inure to an
outstanding Common Unit during each award’s three-year measurement period. Due to the vaiigtih the trading prices of our Common Units, as
well as our performance relative to the peer group, actual payments, if any, at the end of-ffeathmemasurement period may differ. The following

chart provides a breakdown of each year’s awards:

Mr. Dunn Mr. Stivala Mr. Kuglin Mr. Wienberg Mr. Boyd Mr. Brinkworth
Fiscal 204 LTIP
Units 5,404 2,620 1,703 2,445 2,533 2,358
Value of Fiscal
2014 LTIP Units $ 240,756 $ 116,725 $ 75,871 $ 108,928| $ 112,849 $ 105,052
Estimated
Distributions over
Measurement Periog $ 56,742 $ 27,510 $ 17,882 $ 25,673| $ 26,597 $ 24,759
Fiscal 20BLTIP
Units 6,559 3,180 2,067 2,968 3,074 2,862
Value of Fiscal
2013 LTIP Units $ 292,213 $ 141,674 $ 92,088| $ 132,229| $ 136,951 $ 127,506
Estimated
Distributions over
Measurement Periog $ 68,78 $ 33,20 $ 21658 $ 31,099 $ 32,20 $ 29988

Note: Columns (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f), all of which are for the reporting of optiated compensation, have been omitted froni‘@éstanding Equity
Awards At Fiscal Year End014Table’ because we do not grant options to our employees.

Equity Vested Table for Fiscal 202

Awards under the Restricted Unit Plans are settled in Common Units upon vesting. Awards uhdép,the
LTIP-equity plan, are settled in cash. The following two tables set forth certain information concerniestitig of
awards under our Restricted Unit Pdaand the vesting of the fiscal 20 award under ouLTIP for each named
executive officer during the fiscal year ended Septembe2@4:

Restricted Unit Plans Unit Awards
Name Number of Common UnitsAcquired on Vesting (#) Value Realized on Vesting ($}”
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. -0- $ -0-
Michael A. Stivala 5,044 $ 232,680
Michael A. Kuglin 4,728 $ 218,103
Mark Wienberg 4,242 $ 195,683
Steven C. Boyd 3,920 $ 180,830
DouglasT. Brinkworth 4,242 $ 195,683

83



(1) The value realized is equal to the average of the high and low trading prices of our Common Units on the vesting datd, byutig number of
units that vested.

Long-Term Incentive Plani
Fiscal 2a.2® Award CashAwards
Name Number of LTIP Units Acquired on Vesting (#)® Value Realized on Vesting ($}"

Michael J. Dunn, Jr. 5,258 $0
Michael A. Stivala 2,435 $0
Michael A. Kuglin 1,547 $0
Mark Wienberg 2,214 $0
Steven C. Boyd 2,391 $0
Douglas TBrinkworth 2,169 $0

(2) The fiscal 202 award’s three-year measurement period concluded on SepteBh@014.

(3) In accordance with the formula described in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” under the subheading “Long-Term Incentive Plan,” these
quantities were calculated at the beginning of the tlysae measurement period and were, therefore, based upon each individual’s salary and target
cash bonus at that time.

(4) The value (i.e., cash payment) realized was calculated in accordance with thartdromnditions of the LTIP. For more information, refer to the
subheading “Long-Term Incentive Plan” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

Pension Benefits Table for Fiscal 204

The following table sets forth certain information concerngagh plan that provides for payments or other
benefits at, following, or in connection with retirement for each named executive officer as of the end of the fiscal
year ended September,2014:

Number Present Value
of Years of Payments
Credited Accumulated During Last
Service Benefit Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name #) ($) $)
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. Cash Balance PIdh 6 $ 256,392 -
LTIP® N/A $ 658,436 -
RUP® N/A $1,107,774 -

|

Michael A Kuglin® | NA | NA | S - |S$ - |
|

Mark Wienberd” NA______________ | _NA_ [ $ - |$ - |

|
Douglas T. Brinkworth | Cash Balance Pl | 6 | $124541 |$ - |
\

(1) For more information on the Cash Balance Plan, refer to the subheading “Pension Plan” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

(2) Because Mr. StivalaMr. Kuglin and Mr. Wienberg commenced employment vtith Partnershipfter January 1, 2000, the date on which the Cash
Balance Plan was closed to new participants, they do not participate in the Cash Balance Plan.

(3) Currently, Mr. Dunn is the only named executivéiagfr who meets the retirement criteria of the LTIP. For such participants, upon retirement,
outstanding but unvested awards under the LTIP become fully vested. However, payouts on those awards are deferreshohudioheof each
outstanding award’s threeyear measurement period, based on the outcome of the TRU relative to the peéorgtoeif012 award and the outcome
of the distributable cash flow measurement for the 2014 awditte number reported on this line represents a projected payddt. &unn’s
outstanding fiscal 2@ and fiscal 203 awards under the LTIP. Because the ultimate payout, if any, is predicated on the trading phees of
Partnership’s Common Units at the end of the thrgear measurement period, the value reported may not be indicative of the value realized in the
future upon vesting due to the variability in the trading price of our Common Units.

(4) Currently, Mr. Dunn is the only namezkecutive officer who meets the retirement criteria of the RB®Br more information on this and the
retirement provisions, refer to the subheading “Restricted Unit Plans” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” For participants who meet the
retirement criteria, upon retirement, outstanding RUP awards vest six months and one day after retirement.

Potential Payments Upon Termination

The following table sets forth certain information containing potential payments to the named executive officers
in accordance with the provisions Bfr. Dunn’s letter agreement, the Severance Protection Plan, the RUP and the
LTIP for the circumstances ted in the table assuming a Septemb&r2D4 termination date For more information
on Mr. Dunn’s letter agreement, refer to the subheading “Letter Agreement of Mr. Dunn” in the “Compensation
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Discussion and Analysis.” As was indicated above in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” concurrent with
the beginning of fiscal 2015, Mr. Dunn’s retirement became effective; as such, in Mr. Dunn’s case, the numbers
reported for him under the column heading “Involuntary Termination Without Cause by the Partneship or by the
Executive for Good Reason without a Change of Control Event” reflect actual future payments that will be made to

him in accordance with the letter agreement between him and the Partnership.

Michael J. Dunn, Jr.

Cash CompensatidR @ ®®

-0-

$ 990,000

Executive for
Good Reason

without a with a Change
Executive Payments and Benefits Upondrmination Death Disability Change of of Control
Control Event Event

990,000

Involuntary Involuntary
Termination Termination
Without Cause | Without Cause
by the by the
Partnership or | Partnership or
by the by the

Executive for
Good Reason

$ 1,485,000

Michael A. Stivala

Accelerated Vesting of Fiscal 2612013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 1,103,213
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awaffdls 1,107,774 1,107,774 1,107,774 1,107,774
Medical Benefits? N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total 1,107,774 $ 2,097,774 $ 2,097,774 $ 3,695,987

Michael A. Kuglin

Cash CompensatidR @ ®® -0- $ -0 42500 | $ 1,275,000
Accelerated Vesting of Fiscal 2612013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 527,025
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awafdls 2,242,523 949,685 N/A 2,242,523
Medical Benefits® N/A N/A 18853 N/A

Total 2,242,523 | $ 949,685 $ 443,853 $ 4,044,548

Cash CompensatidR @ ®® -0- $ -0 265,000 675,750
Accelerated Vesting dfiscal 204, 2013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 340,110
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awaflis 1,367,785 650,871 N/A 1,367,785
Medical Benefits? N/A N/A 16,917 N/A

Total

Mark Wienberg

Cash Compensatigh @@ ®@

1,367,785

-0-

$ 650,871

$ -0

281,917

$ 325000

$ 2,383,645

$ 877,500

Douglas T. Brinkworth

Accelerated Vesting of Fiscal 2612013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 487,838
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awafdls 1,713,552 949,685 N/A 1,713,552
Medical Benefitd® N/A N/A 19,008 N/A
Total 1,713552| $ 949,685| $ 344,008 $ 3,078,80
Cash CompensatidR@®@® -0- $ -0 $ 315000 | $ 850,500
Accelerated Vesting of Fiscal 2612013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 512031
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awafdls 1,713,552 949,685 N/A 1,713,552
Medical Benefitd® N/A N/A 18,654 N/A

Total 1,713,552 | $ 949,685| $ 333,654| $ 3,076,083

Cash Compensatidi @@ @ -0- $ -0 $ 300000 $ 810,00
Accelerated Vesting of Fiscal 2612013, and 2012.TIP Awards® N/A N/A N/A 472,775
Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding RUP Awaffdls 1,713,552 949,685 N/A 1,713,552
Medical Benefitd¥ N/A N/A 18,706 N/A

Total 1,713,552 | $ 949,685| $ 318,706 $ 2996,327

(1) In theevent of death, the named executive officer’s estate is entitled to a payment equal to the decedent’s earned but unpaid salary and prerata cash
bonus.

(2) In the event of disability, the named executive officer is entitled to a payment equal to his eamgghlilisalary and pmata cash bonusBecause
the terms of our letter agreement with Mr. Dunn became effective on September 29, 2012, for purposes of this table idmsrigeethat if Mr.
Dunn became disabled on September 27, 2014, the provisians letter agreement would govern. For more information on Mr. Dunn’s letter
agreement, refer to the subheading “Letter Agreement of Mr. Dunn” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”
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©)

4)

®)

(6)

Any severance benefits, unrelated to a change of control,geydble to these officers would be determined by the Committee on-byeease

basis in accordance with prior treatment of other similarly situated executives and may, as a result, differ from tleischpotisentation. For
purposes of this tableve have assumed that each of these named executive officers would, upon termination of employment without cause or for
resignation for good reason, receive accrued salary and benefits through the date of termination plus one times anandl catfdiryed
participation, at active employee ratespim health insurance plans for one yedhe terms of our letter agreement with Mr. Dunn became effective

on September 29, 2012; therefore, Mr. Dunn’s severance benefits for a termination of employment without cause or resignation for good reason have

been calculated in accordance with this agreement. For more information on Mr. Dunn’s letter agreement, refer to the subheading “Letter Agreement

of Mr. Dunn” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

In the event of a change of control followed by a termination without cause or by a resignation with good reason, eaahexd theoative officers
will receive 78 weeks of base pay plus a sum equal to their annual target cash bonus divided by 5Zpfied byult8 in accordance with the terms
of the Severance Protection Plan. For more information on the Severance Protection Plan, refer to the subheading “Change of Control” in the
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

In the event of a change of coulf all awards under the LTIP will vest immediately regardless of whether termination immediately follows. If a
change of control event occurs, tire-fiscal 2014 award payments will be equal to 125% of the cash value of a participant’s unvested LTIP units plus

a sum equal to 125% of a participant’s unvested LTIP units multiplied by an amount equal to the cumulative, per-Common Unit distribution from the
beginning of an unvested award’s three-year measurement period through the date on which the chérgetml occurred. The pofiscal 2013

award payments will be equal to 150% of the cash value of a participant’s unvested LTIP units plus a sum equal to 150% of a participant’s unvested

LTIP units multiplied by an amount equal to the cumulative;@ammon Unit distribution from the beginning of an unvested award’s three-year
measurement period through the date on which the change of control occurred If a change of control event occurred en23egttibthe fiscal
2014, fiscal 2013, and fiscal 2P awards would have been subject to this treatmEot.more information, refer to the subheading “Long-Term
Incentive Plan” in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

In the event of death, the inability to continue employment due to permanabilitisor a termination without cause or a good reason resignation
unconnected to a change of control event, awards will vest in accordance with the normal vesting schedule and will be thejsame
requirements as awards held by individuals stilbloyed byusand will be subject to the same risks as awards held by all other participants.

Effective November 13, 2012, the Committee amended the RUP document to provide for the vesting of unvested awardsarttiplaytaap the

time of his orher death If a recipient of a RUP award becomes permanently disabled, only those awards that have been held for at least one year on
the date that the employee’s employment is terminated as a result of his or her permanent disability will immediately vest; all awards held by the

recipient for less than one year will be forfeited by the recipiéirdiny or all of the five named executive officers had become permanently disabled

on September & 2013, the following quantities of unvested restricted umitsuld have vested:Dunn, 25,009;Stivala, 21,440 Kuglin, 14,694,

Wienberg, 21,440Boyd, 21,44Q and Brinkworth,21,440 The following quantities would have been forfeited: Stiva@,187 Kuglin, 16,185;

Wienberg, 17,2450yd, 17,245 and Brinkworth 17,245 Because all of Mr. Dunn’s unvested awards are subject to the plan’s retirement provisions,

if Mr. Dunn became permanently disabled on the last day of the fiscal year, none of his unvested awards would havéésken forfe

All of Mr. Dunn’s unvested awards are subject to the plan’s retirement provisions.

Under circumstances unrelated to a change of control, if a RUP award recipient’s employment is terminated without cause or he or she resigns for
good reason, any RUP awards held by sucipiett will be forfeited.

In the event of a change of control, as defined in the RUP document, all unvested RUP awards will vest immediatelyechet@hdage of control
is consummated, regardless of the holding period and regardless of whetlkeipibet's employment is terminated.

SUPERVI SORS6 COMPENSATI ON

The following table sets forth the compensation of theemployee members of the Board of Supervisothef
Partnershimluring fiscal 204.

)

@

Fees Earned
or Paid in
Cash Unit Awards Total
Supervisor $)@ %)@ $)
Harold R. Logan, Jr. $115,000 N/A $115,000
Lawrence C. Caldwell $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000
Matthew J. Chanin $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000
John D. Collins $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000
Dudley C. Mecum $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000
John Hoyt Stookey $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000
Jane Swift $ 85,000 N/A $ 85,000

This includes amounts earned for fis2@ll4, including quarterly retainer installments for the fourth quarter oft 204t were paid in November 201
It does not include amounts paid in fiscal 28dr fiscal 20B quarterly retainer installments.

During fiscal 2014, the Compensation @wittee did not make any additional grants of unvested restricted units to the members of our Board of

Supervisors.As of Septembe27, 2014, Messrs. Logan, Collins, Mecum, Stookey, and Ms. Swift each held awards of 7,800 unvested restricted units
and Mesrs. Caldwell and Chanin each held awards of 6,023 unvested restricted units.
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Note: The columns for reporting option awards,-eqguity incentive plan compensation, changes in pension value arglalified deferred compensation plan
earnings and alltber forms of compensation were omitted from the Supervisor’s Compensation Table because the Partnershiploes not provide these forms of
compensation to its neemployee supervisors.

Fees and Benefit Plans for NofEmployee Supervisors

Annual Cash Retainer Fees As the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, Mr. Logan redeimeannual retainer
of $115,000 in fiscal 2014payable in quarterly installments of &250each. Each of the other nremployee
Supervisors receivean annual cash retainer d3000in fiscal 2014 payable in quarterly installments d2%250
each.

Meeting Fees. The members of our Board of Supervisors receive no additional remuneration for attendance at
regularly scheduled meetings of the Boarditer Committees, other than reimbursement of reasonable expenses
incurred in connection with such attendance.

Restricted Unit Plans. Each noremployee Supervisor participates in the Restricted Unit Plans. All awards vest in
accordance with the provisiomd the plan document (see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” section titled
“Restricted Unit Plans” for a description of the vesting schedule). Upon vesting, all awards are settled by issuing
Common Units. As of September 2 2014 Messrs. Logan, Chihs, Mecum, Stookey, and Ms. Swift each held
awards of7,800 unvested restricted uni@snd Messrs. Caldwell and Chanin each held awards of 6,023 unvested
restricted units.At its November 11, 2014 meeting, the Compensation Committee established apgliapting a

retiring Supervisor an award of 1,000 restricted units, in recognition of his or her services to the Partnership. Pursua
to this policy, the Compensation Committee granted Mr. Mecum, who has informed the Board that he does not inten
to run for reelection at the next T#nnual Meeting of the Partnership’s Unitholders (currently scheduled for Spring

2015), an award of 1,000 unvested restricted units.

Additional Supervisor Compensation. Norremployee Supervisors receive no other forms wiurgeration from us.

The only perquisite provided to the members of the Board of Supervisors is the ability to purchase propane at th
same discounted rate that we offer propane to our employees, the value of which was less than $10,000 i# fiscal 20
for each Supervisor.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT  AND
RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certaiimformation as of Novembe4, 2014 regardingthe beneficial ownership of
Common Units bya) each person or group known to the Partnership, based upon its review of filings under Section
13(d) or (g) under the Securities Act, to own more than 5% of the outstanding Common Ue#sh(l)ember of éh
Board of Supervisorgc) each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table in Item 11 of this
Annual Reportand(d) all members of the Board of Supervisors and executive officers as a group. Except as set forth
in the notes to the tableach individual or entity has sole voting and investment power over the Common Units
reported.

Amount and Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership (1) of Class (2)
Neuberger Berman Group LLC (a) 7,080982 11.7%
Michael J. Dunn, Jr. (b) 113,888 *
Michael A. Stivala (c) 22,319 *
Michael A. Kuglin (d) 5,084 *
Mark Wienberg (e) 8,275 *
Steven C. Boyd (f) 26,001 *
Douglas T. Brinkworth (g) 24,093 *
John Hoyt Stokey (h) 9,366 *
Harold R. Logan, Jr.(h) 10,240 *
Jane Swift (h) -0- *
John D. Collins (h) 17,246 *
Dudley C. Mecum (i) 18,934 *
Lawrence C. Caldweljj) 15,963 *
Matthew J. Chanink] 5,000 *
All Members of the Board
of Supervisors and Executive
Officers,as a Group (19 persons) ( 343,032 *

(1) With the exception of the 7,080,982 units held by Neuberger Berman Group LLC (of which the Partnership
has no knowledge, see note (a) below), the 784 units held by the General Partner (see note (cjdoew) a
10,092 units held by charitable organizations over which Mr. Caldwell has shared investment and voting
power (see note (i) below), there is a possibility that any of the above listed units could be pledged as
security.

(2) Based upon 60,457,7&bmmon Units outstanding on Novembdr 2014.
*  Less than 1%.

(a) Based upon a Schedule 1¥3CdatedFebruary 12, 2014led by Neuberger Berman Group LLC and Neuberger
Berman LLC, which indicates that asBécembe31, 2013 they had the shared power tewamt direct the vote
of 6,774,935 Common Units and the shared power to dispose or direct the disposition of 7,080,982 Commor
Units. The Schedule 13G indicates that Neuberger Berman Group LLC may be deemed to be a beneficial owne
of these Common Units fgourposes of Rule 138 because certain affiliates have shared power to retain or
dispose of Common Units belonging to many unrelated clients. We make no representation as to the accuracy |
completeness of the information reported. The address of Nwl®erman Group LLC is 605 Third Avenue,
New York NY 10158.
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(b) Excludes 25,009 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in tday6period followingNovember 24
2014.

(c) Includes 784 Common Units held by the General Partner, of which Mr. Stivala is the sole member. Excludes
43,352 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in thga§Qeriod followingNovember 242014.

(d) Excludes 25,795 unvested restrictedtsinmone of which will vest in the &fay period followingNovember 24
2014.

(e) Excludes 31,410 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in tday6period followingNovember 24
2014.

() Excludes 31,410 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in tday6period followingNovember 24
2014.

(g) Excludes 31,410 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in tbday6period followingNovember 24
2014.

(h) Excludes 7,800 nwested restricted units, none of which will vest in thed&@ period followingNovember 24
2014.

() Excludes 8,800 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in tday6period followingNovember 24
2014.

() Includes 10,092 Common Units held tlyaritable organizations over which Mr. Caldwell has shared investment
and voting power. Excludes 6,023 unvested restricted units, none of which will vest in-dag §eriod
following November 24204.

(k) Excludes 6,023 unvested restricted units, non&to€h will vest in the 6@ay period followingNovember 24
2014.

() Inclusive of the unvested restricted units referred to in footnotes (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i), () and (k) above
the reported number of units excludes 361,882 unvestedctegtunits, none of which will vest in the-@@y
period followingNovember 242014.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under the Resitted Unit Plans
The following table sets forth certain information, as of Septer@Be2014 with respect tahe Partnership’s
Restricted Unit Plans, under which restricted units of the Partnership, as described in the Notes to the Consolidate

Financial Statements included in this Annual Report, are authorized for issuance.

Number of restricted units
remaining available for

Number of Common future issuance under the
Units to be issued upor Weighted-averagegrant Restricted Unit Plans (excluding

vesting of restricted date fair value per securities reflected in

Plan units restricted unit column (a))

Category @ (b) (©)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 694,927 (2) $32.07 417,758

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holc -- -- --

Total 694,927 $32.07 417,758

(1) Relates to the Restricted Unit Plans.

(2) Represents number of restricted units that, as of Sept@npb2014 had been granted under the Restricted Unit
Plars but had not yet vested.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS , AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Related Person Transactions

None.

Supervisor Independence

The Corporate Governance Guidelines and Principles adopted by the Board of Supervisors provide that

Supervisor is deemed to be lacking a material arahiip to the Partnership and is therefore independent of
management if the following criteria are satisfied:

1. Within the past three years, the Supervisor:

a.

has not been employed by the Partnership and has not received more than $100,000 per year in direct
compensation from the Partnership, other than Supervisor and committee fees and pension or other forms of
deferred compensation for prior service;

has notprovided significant advisory or consultancy services to the Partnership, and has not been affiliated
with a company or a firm that has provided such services to the Partnership in return for aggregate payments
during any of the last three fiscal yearstbé Partnership in excess of the greater of 2% of the other
company’s consolidated gross revenues or $1 million;

has not been a significant customer or supplier of the Partnership and has not been affiliated with a company
or firm that has been a custer or supplier of the Partnership and has either made to the Partnership or
received from the Partnership payments during any of the last three fiscal years of the Partnership in excess of
the greater of 2% of the other company’s consolidated gross revenues or $1 million;

has not been employed by or affiliated with an internal or external auditor that within the past three years
provided services to the Partnership; and

has not been employed by another company where any of the Partnership’s current executives serve on that
company’s compensation committee;

2. The Supervisor is not a spouse, parent, sibling, child, motrefatherin-law, son or daughtetin-law or

3.

4.

brother or sistefin-law of a person having a relationship described in 1. above nor shegsislence with such
person;

The Supervisor is not affiliated with a texempt entity that within the past 12 months received significant
contributions from the Partnership (contributions of the greater of 2% of the entity’s consolidated gross revenues
or $1 million are considered significant); and

The Supervisor does not have any other relationships with the Partnership or with members of senior
management of the Partnership that the Board determines to be material.

A copy of our Corporate GovernacGuidelines is available without charge from our website at

www.suburbanpropane.coon upon written request directed to: Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor Relations,

P.O. Box 206, Whippany, New Jersey 079R2D6
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) The following documents are filed as parttié Annual Report:
1. Financial Statements
See “Index to Financial Statements” set forth on page F-1.
2.  Financial Statement Schedule
See “Index to Financial Statement Schedule” set forth on page S-1.
3. Exhibits

See “Index to Exhibits” set forth on page E-1.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has du
caused this report to be signeditsrbehalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P.

Date: November26, 2014 By: /sIMICHAEL A. STIVALA
Michael A. Stivala
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Supervisor

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed below by t
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiesnahé dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

By: /s/ MICHAEL A. STIVALA President, Chief Executive November26, 2014
(MichaelA. Stivalg Officer and Supervisor

By: /s HAROLD R. LOGAN, JR. Chairman and Supervisor November26, 2014
(Harold R. Logan, Jr.)

By: /s/ JOHN HOYT STOOKEY Supervisor November26, 2014
(John Hoyt Stookey)

By: /s/ DUDLEY C. MECUM Supervisor November26, 2014
(Dudley C. Mecum)

By: /s/ JOHN D. COLLINS Supervisor November26, 2014
(John D. Caollins)

By: /s/ JANE SWIFT Supervisor November26, 2014
(Jane Swift)

By: /s/ LAWRENCE C. CALDWELL Supervisor November26, 2014
(Lawrence C. Caldwall

By /sIMATTHEW J.CHANIN Supervisor November26, 2014
(MatthewJ. Chanir)

By: /s/ MICHAEL A. KUGLIN Chief Financial Officeand November26, 2014
(Michael A.Kuglin) Chief Accounting Officer

By: /s/IDANIEL S. BLOOMSTEIN Controller November26, 2014

(Daniel S. Bloomstein)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The exhibits listed on this Exhibit Index are filed as part of this Annual Report. Exhibits required to be filed by Item
601 of Regulation &, which are notisted below, are not applicable.

Exhibit
Number

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

42

4.3

44

4.5

Description

Contribution Agreement dated as of A8, 2012, as amended as of JuBe2012July6, 2012

and Julyl9, 2012, among Inergy, L.P., Inergy GP, LLC, Inergy Sales and Service, Inc. and
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Partnership’s
Current Reports on Formi8 filed April 26, 2012 ,Junel5, 2012 July 6, 2012 and Julg9, 2012,
respectively).

Third Amended and Restated Agreement of itéoh Partnership of the Partnership dated as of
October 19, 2006, as amended as of July 31, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2007).

Third Amended and Restated Agreement.ihited Partnership of the OperatirRartnership
dated as of October 19, 2006, as amended as of June 24, P@0gqrated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 30, 2009).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited PartnershipeoPartnershiplated May 26, 1999
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Partnership’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
August 6, 2009).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited PartnershtheoDperating Partnershifated May
26, 1999 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Partnership’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed August 6, 2009).

Description of Common Units dhe Partnership. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 19, 2006).

Indenture, dated as of March 23, 2010, related to the 7.375% Senior Notes due 2020, by and
among Suburban Propanertpars, L.P., Suburban Energy Finance Carmd The Bank of New

York Mellon, as Trustee, including the form of 7.375% Senior Notes due 2020. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 23, 2010).

First Supplementdhdenture, dated as of March 23, 2010, related to the 7.375% Senior Notes due
2020, by and among Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Suburban Energy Finanaad_bhe

Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee. (Incorporated by refaretwc Exhibit 4.2 to the
Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 23, 2010).

Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2012, related to the 7.5% Senior Notes due 2018 and the 7.375Y%
Senior Notes due 2021, by and among Suburban Propane PartiersSuiburban Energy
Finance Corpand The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, including the form of 7.5% Senior
Notes due 2018 and the form of 7.375% Senior Notes due 2021. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8K filed August 2, 2012).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2014, related to the 7.5% Senior Notes due
2018 and the 7.375% Senior Notes due 2021, by and among Suburban Propane Partners, L.P
Suburban Energy Finance Corp. dree Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 27, 2014).
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4.6

4.7

438

10.1

102

103

104

105

10.6

10.7

108

109

1010

Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2014, relating to the 5.50 % Senior Notes due 2024, among
SuburbanPropane Partners, L.P., Suburban Energy Finance Corp. and The Bank of New York
Mellon, as Trustee, including the form of 5.50 % Senior Notes due. 2Q4orporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 28, 2014).

First Supplementdhdenture, dated as of May 27, 2014, relating to the 5.50 % Senior Notes due
2024, among Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Suburban Energy Finance Corp. and The Bank c
New York Mellon, as Trustee (Incorporated by referen to Exhibit 4.1 to the Partnership’s

Current Report on Form-R filed May 28, 2014).

Support Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2012, among Inergy, L.P., the Partnership and
Suburban Energy Finance Corp. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit th8 Rartnership’s
Registration Statement on FormSlated September 19, 2012

Agreement between Michael J. Dunn, Jr. and the Partnership, effective as of September 27, 2009
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form & filed
November 10, 2009).

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 2000 Restricted Unit Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 17, 200and as further amended on July 31, 2007, October 31, 2007, January 24, 2008,
January 202009 November 10, 200@&nd November 13, 201ZIncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1to the Partnership’s Current Reporbn Form8-K filed November 14, 2032

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 2009 Restricted Unit Plan, effective A28 hs amended
on November 13, 201@nd August 6, 2013Incorporated by reference to Exhibit b the
Partnership’s Current Reporon Form8-K filed August 7, 2018

Suburban Propane, L.P. Severance Protection Plan, as amended on2J&n2@0g, January 20,
2009 and November 10, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Partnership’s
Annual Report on Form 1K for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2009).

Suburban Propane L.P. 2003 Lohgrm Incentive Plan, as amettion October 17, 2006 and as
further amended on July 31, 2007, October 31, 2007, January 24, 2008 and January 20, 2009
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Partnership’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the fiscal quarter ended Decembey 2008).

Suburban Propane, L.R013Long Term Incentive Plan. (Incorporateg reference to Exhibit
99.1 to thePartnership’s Current Report on Form 8K filed November 10, 2011).

Suburban Propane, L.P. 2014 Long Term Incentive P{&mcorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 7, 2013).

Amended and Restated Retirement Savings and Investment Plan of Suburban Propane effective a
of January 1, 1998). (Incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.24 to the Partnership’s Annual Report
on Form 16K for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2001).

Amendment No. 1 to the Retirement Savings and Investment Plan of Suburban Propane (effective
January 1, 2002). (Incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 10.25 to the Partnership’s Annual Report on
Form 16K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2002).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, among the Operating Partnership, the Partnership an
Bank of America, N.A., as Administtive Agent and the Lenders party thereto, dated January 5,
2012. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on January 6, 2012).
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts

of $11,122 and $6,786, respectively
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued employment and benefit costs
Accrued insurance
Customer deposits and advances
Accrued interest
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Accrued insurance
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Partners’ capital:

Common Unitholders (60,317 and 60,231 units issued and outstanding at

September 27, 2014 and September 28, 2013, respectively)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total partners’ capital
Total liabilities and partners’ capital

F-3

September 27, September 28,
2014 2013

$ 92,639 $ 107,232
96,915 94,854
90,965 77,623
14,346 13,613
294,865 293,322
826,826 888,232
1,087,429 1,087,429
359,293 416,771
40,950 42,233

$ 2,609,363 $ 2,727,987

$ 49,253 $ 52,766
24,033 23,559
10,040 6,650
107,386 107,562
16,313 24,357
15,241 19,000
222,266 233,894
1,242,685 1,245,237
52,410 51,502
70,549 68,228
1,587,910 1,598,861
1,067,358 1,176,479
(45,905) (47,353)
1,021,453 1,129,126

$ 2,609,363 $ 2,727,987

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tb@ssolidated financial statements.



SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Year Ended
September September September
27,2014 28,2013 29, 2012

Revenues

Propane $ 1606840 $ 1,357,102 $ 843,648

Fuel oil and refined fuels 194,684 208,957 114,288

Natural gas and electricity 87,093 79,432 67,419

All other 49,640 58,115 38,103

1,938,257 1,703,606 1,063,458

Costs and expenses

Cost of products sold 1,080,750 861,905 599,059

Operating 466,389 469,496 298,772

General and administrative 64,593 64,845 59,020

Acquisition-related costs - - 17,916

Depreciation and amortization 136,399 130,384 47,034

1,748,131 1,526,630 1,021,801

Operating income 190,126 176,976 41,657
Loss on debt extinguishment (11,589) (2,144) (2,249)
Interest expense (83,261) (95,427) (38,633)
Income before provision for income taxes 95,276 79,405 775
Provision for income taxes 767 607 137
Net income $ 94509 $ 78,798 $ 638
Income per Common Unit - basic $ 156 $ 135  $ 0.02
Weighted average number of Common Units outstanding - basic 60,481 58,378 38,848
Income per Common Unit - diluted $ 156 % 134 % 0.02
Weighted average number of Common Units outstanding - diluted 60,751 58,600 38,990

The accompanying notes are an integral patti@ege consolidated financial statements.
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Net income

Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized (losses) gains on cash flow hedges
Reclassification of realized losses on cash
flow hedges into earnings
Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior
service credits into earnings and net
change in funded status of benefit plans
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Total comprehensive income (loss)

Year Ended
September September September
27,2014 28, 2013 29, 2012
$ 94509 $ 78,798 638
(518) 584 (3,561)
1,406 2,465 2,680
560 10,705 (310)
1,448 13,754 (1,191)
$ 95,957 $ 92,552 (553)

The accompanying notes are an integeat of these consolidated financial statements.

F-5



SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation and amortization expense
Loss on debt extinguishment
Other, net

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued employment and benefit costs

Increase (decrease) in accrued insurance
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits and advances
(Increase) decrease in other current and noncurrent assets

Increase (decrease) in other current and noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Adjustment to purchase price for Inergy Propane
Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayments of long-term borrowings (includes premium and fees)

Proceeds from borrowings under revolving credit facility
Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit facility
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Debt issuance costs
Net proceeds from issuance of Common Units
Partnership distributions
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities for

the Inergy Propane Acquisition (see Note 3):
Issuance of long-term debt
Issuance of equity

Year Ended
September September September
27,2014 28,2013 29,2012
$ 94509 $ 78,798 $ 638
136,399 130,384 47,034
11,589 2,144 2,249
5,664 (2,796) 6,424
(2,061) (5,910) 13,762
(13,342) 10,553 8,189
(3,513) (375) 15,669
474 7,045 (8,586)
4,298 3,601 (4,451)
(176) (16,735) 18,352
266 5,436 (754)
(8,556) 2,161 12,447
225,551 214,306 110,973
(30,052) (27,823) (17,476)
- - (223,731)
13,520 7,310 1,449
- 5,850 -
(16,532) (14,663) (239,758)
525,000 - 100,000
(528,077) (168,915) (100,000)
61,700 - -
(61,700) - -
- - 225,000
- - (225,000)
(9,515) - (25,199)
- 143,444 259,842
(211,020) (201,257) (121,094)
(223,612) (226,728) 113,549
(14,593) (27,085) (15,236)
107,232 134,317 149,553
$ 92,639 $ 107,232 $ 134,317
$ 91,836 $ 86,583 $ 38,294
$ - $ - $ 1,075,043
$ - $ - $ 590,027

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fistateialents.
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS® CAPI T
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Other
Number of Compre- Total
Common Common hensive Partners’
Units Unitholders (Loss) Income Capital

Balance at September 24, 2011 35429 $ 418,134 % (59,916) $ 358,218
Net income 638 638
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (3,561) (3,561)
Reclassification of realized losses on cash

flow hedges into earnings 2,680 2,680
Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior

service credits into earnings and net

change in funded status of benefit plans (310) (310)
Partnership distributions (121,094) (121,094)
Issuance of Common Units for business acquisition 14,200 590,027 590,027
Sale of Common Units under

public offering, net of offering expenses 7,245 259,842 259,842
Common Units issued under

Restricted Unit Plans 139
Compensation cost recognized under

Restricted Unit Plans, net of forfeitures 4,059 4,059
Balance at September 29, 2012 57,013 $ 1,151,606 $ (61,107) $ 1,090,499
Net income 78,798 78,798
Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 584 584
Reclassification of realized losses on cash

flow hedges into earnings 2,465 2,465
Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior

service credits into earnings and net

change in funded status of benefit plans 10,705 10,705
Partnership distributions (201,257) (201,257)
Sale of Common Units under

public offering, net of offering expenses 3,105 143,444 143,444
Common Units issued under

Restricted Unit Plans 113
Compensation cost recognized under

Restricted Unit Plans, net of forfeitures 3,888 3,888
Balance at September 28, 2013 60,231 $ 1,176,479 $ (47,353) $ 1,129,126
Net income 94,509 94,509
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (518) (518)
Reclassification of realized losses on cash

flow hedges into earnings 1,406 1,406
Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior

service credits into earnings and net

change in funded status of benefit plans 560 560
Partnership distributions (211,020) (211,020)
Common Units issued under

Restricted Unit Plans 86
Compensation cost recognized under

Restricted Unit Plans, net of forfeitures 7,390 7,390
Balance at September 27, 2014 60,317 $ 1,067,358 $ (45,905) $ 1,021,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, excamtit andper unit amounts)

1. Partnership Organization and Formation

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (tRertnership”) is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership principally
engaged, through its operating partnership and subsidiaries, in the retail marketing and distribution of propane, fue
oil and refined fuels, as well as the marketing of natuaal and electricity in deregulated markets. In addition, to
complement its core marketing and distribution businesses, the Partnership services a wide variety of home comfo
equipment, particularly for heating and ventilation. The publicly traded limpaeher interests in the Partnership are
evidenced by common units traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“Common Units”), with 60,316,7468Common

Units outstanding aBGeptembel7, 2014 The holders of Common Units are entitled to participate in disiitsi

and exercise the rights and privileges available to limited partners under the Third Amended and Restated Agreeme
of Limited Partnership (the “Partnership Agreement”), as amended Rights and privileges under the Partnership
Agreement include, amgnother things, the election of all members of the Board of Supervisors and voting on the
removal of the general partner.

Suburban Propane, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership”), a Delaware limited partnership, is the Partnership’s operating
subsidiary formd to operate the propane business and assets. In addition, Suburban Sales & Service, Inc. (th
“Service Company”), a subsidiary of the Operating Partnership, was formed to operate the service work and appliance

and parts businesses of the Partnershipe @perating Partnership, together with its direct and indirect subsidiaries,
accounts for substantially all of the Partnership’s assets, revenues and earnings. The Partnership, the Operating
Partnership and the Service Company commenced operations ih M&& in connection with the Partnership’s

initial public offering.

The general partner of both the Partnership and the Operating Partnership is Suburban Energy Services Group LLC (t
“General Partner”), a Delaware limited liability company, the sole member of which is the Partnership’s Chief Executive

Officer. Other than as a holder of 784 Common Units that will remain in the General Partner, the General Partner doe
not have any economic interest in the Partnership or the Operating Partnership.

The Partnership’s fuel oil and refined fuels, natural gas and electricity and services businesses are structured as either
limited liability companies that are treated as corporationgaoporate entities (collectively referred to te
“Corporate Entities”) and, as such, are subject to corporate level U.S.income tax.

Suburban Energy Finance Cqarp direct1l00%ownedsubsidiaryof the Partnership, was formed on November 26,
2003 to serve as desuer, jointly and severally with the Partnership, ofRfdménership’s senior notes.

On August 1, 201Z2the “Acquisition Date”), the Partnership completed the acquisition of the sole membership
interest in Inergy Propane, LLC, includingrtain whollyowned subsidiaries of Inergy Propane LLC, and the assets

of Inergy Sales and Service, Inc. The acquired interests and assets are collectively referred to as “Inergy Propane.”

As of the Acquisition Date, Inergy Propane consisted of the former retail propane assets and operations of Inerg
L.P. (“Inergy”). On the Acquisition Date, Inergy Propane and its remaining wkmNwed subsidiaries acquired
became subsidiaries of tperatingPartnershipbut were merged into the Operatifgrtnership o April 30, 2013.

The results of operations of Inergy Propane arbudied in the Partnership’s results of operations beginning on the
Acquisition Date

The Partnership servepproximatelyl.2 million residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural customers from
approximately710 locations ind41 states. The Partnership’s operations are principally concentrated in the east and
west coast regionsncluding Alaska No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Partnership’s revenues
during fiscal2014,2013 or 2012.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Partnership, the
Operating Partnership and all of its direct and indirect subsidiaries.in&licompany transactions and aagb
balances have been eliminated. The Partnership consolidates the results of operations, financial condition and ca
flows of the Operating Partnership as a result of the Partnership’s 100% limited partner interest in the Operating
Partnership.

Fiscal Period. The Partnership uses a 52/53 week fiscal year which ends on the last Saturday in Sefteenber.
Partnership’s fiscal quarters are generally 13 weeks in duration. When the Partnership’s fiscal year is 53 weeks long,

the corresponding fourth quar is 14 weeks in duration.Fiscal 2014 and fiscal2013 included 2 weeks of
operationsaind fiscal 2012 included 53 weeks of operations

Revenue Recognition.Sales of propane, fuel oil and refined fuels are recognized at the time product is d&livieeed
customer. Revenue from the sale of appliances and equipment is recognized at the time of sale or when installation
complete, as applicable. Revenue from repairs, maintenance and other service activities is recognized upon completi
of the serice. Revenue from service contracts is recognized ratably over the service period. Revenue from the naturz
gas and electricity business is recognized based on customer usage as determined by meteforeaiogsts
delivered some of which may banhbilled at the end of each accounting periddevenue from annually billed tank

fees is deferred at the time of billings and recognized on a stlaighasis over one year.

Fair Value Measurements. The Partnershipneasures certain of its assets and liabilities at fair value, which is
defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transactiot
between market participantsin either the principal market orétmost advantageous markéthe principal market

is the market with the greatest level of activity and volume for the asset or liability.

The common framework for measuring fair value utilizes a theeel hierarchy to prioritize the inputs used in the
valuation techniques to derive fair values. The basis for fair value measurements for each level within the hierarchy i
described below with Level 1 having the highest priority and Level 3 having the lowest.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and mddeled valuations in which all significant inputsea
observable in active markets.

1 Level 3: Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

)l
)l

Business Combinations. The Partnership accounts for business combinations usingctigsitionmethod and
accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the acquired entities are recorded at their estimated fair values at th
acquisition date.Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the netcassetd
including the amounassigned to identifiable intangible asset$ie primary drivers that generate goodwill are the
value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partharghihe acquired assembled workforce, neither of
which qualifies as an identifiable in@ible asset.ldentifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over
their useful lives. The results of operations of acquired businesses are included iconkelidatedfinancial
statements from the acquisition dafBhe Partnership expessall acquisitionrelated costs as incurred.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity vatttounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) requires management to make estimates asuhggions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of t
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates h:
been made by management in the areas ofirmifance and litigation reserves, pension and other postretirement
benefit liabilities and costs, valuation of derivative instruments, depreciation and amortization-lbfddrassets,

asset impairment assessnts, tax valuation allowanceallowances for doubtful accountand purchase price
allocation for acquired businesse#ctual results could differ from those estimates, making it reasonably possible
that amaterialchange in these estimates could ogauhe near term.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Partnership considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amount approximates fair value because of
short matirity of these instruments.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using a weighted average methc
for propane, fuel oil and refined fuels and natural gas, and a standard cost basis for applianceppvaxichates
average cost.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

Commodity Price RiskGiven the retail nature of its operations, the Partnership maintains a certain level of priced
physical inventory tdelpensure its field operations hasdequate supply commensurate with the time of year. The
Partnership’s strategy is to keep its physical inventory priced relatively close to market for its field operations. The
Partnership enters into a combination of excharaged futures and optiomtracts and, in certain instances, ever
the-counter optios and swagontracts (collectively, “derivative instruments™) to hedge price risk associated with

propane and fuel oil physical inventories, as well as future purchases of propane or fuelioilitssegerations and

to helpensure adequate supply during periods of high dembmnadddition, the Partnershiells propane anfiel oil

to customers at fixed priceandenters intaderivative instrument® hedge a portion of its exposure to flucioias in
commodity prices as a result of sellitigg fixed pricecontracts Under this risk management strategy, realized gains

or losses on derivative instruments will typically offset losses or gains on the physical inventory once the product is
soldor delivered as it pertains to fixed price contracddl of the Partnership’s derivative instruments are reported on

the consolidatedbalance sheet at their fair values. In addition, in the course of normal operations, the Partnership
routinely enters int@ontracts such as forward priced physical contracts for the purchase or sale of propane and fue
oil that qualify for and are designated as normal purchase or normal sale contracts. Such contracts are exempted fr¢
the fair value accounting requiremeatsd are accounted for at the time product is purchased or sold under the related
contract. The Partnership does not use derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes. Market risk
associated witlerivative instrumentare monitored daily forampliance with the Partnership’s Hedging and Risk
Management Policy which includes volume limits for open positions. Pricéda inventory is also reviewed and
managed daily as to exposures to changing market prices.

On the date thalerivative instrmmentsare entered into, other than those designated as normal purchases or normal
sales, the Partnership makes a determination as to whether the derivative instrument qualifies for designation as
hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivative instrumentseamrded each period in current period earnings or
other comprehensive income (“OCI™), depending on whether the derivative instrument is designated as a hedge and, if

so, the type of hedge. For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedganénship formally assesses,

both at the hedge contract’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the hedge contract is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items. Changes in the fair value of derivative instrumentsdl@signate
cash flow hedges are reported in OCI to the extent effective and reclassifiedrinitogsduring the same period in

which the hedged item affects earnings. The rwaurkarket gains or losses on ineffective portions of cash flow
hedges are recognizen earningsimmediately. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not
designated as cash flow hedges, and that do not meet the normal purchase and normal sale exemption, are recor
within earningsas they occur. Cash flows asstéethwith derivative instruments are reported as operating activities
within theconsolidatedtatement of cash flows.

Interest Rate RiskA portion of the Partnership’s borrowings bear interest at prevailing interest rates based upon, at

the Operating Rtnership’s option, LIBOR plus an applicable margin or the base rate, defined as the higher of the

Federal Funds Rate plus %2 of 1% or the agent bank’s prime rate, or LIBOR plus 1%, plus the applicable margin. The
applicable margin is dependent on the lefehe Partnership’s total leverage (the ratio of total debt to income before
deducting interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amort(ZBBIMDA”)). Therefore, the Partnership is

subject to interest rate risk on the variable componeiheointerest rate. The Partnership manages part of its variable
interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swap agreements. The interest rate swaps have been designated as,
are accounted for as, cash flow hedges. The fair value of the in@esiwapsare determined using an income
approach, whereby future settlements under the swaps are converted into a single present value, with fair value bei
based on the value of current market expectations about those future amounts. Changesirirvahe fare
recognized in OCI until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. However, due to changes in the underlying
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interest rate environment, the corresponding value in OCI is subject to change prior to its impact on earnings.

Valuation of Derivaive Instruments. The Partnership measures the fair value of its exchaded options and
futures contracts using quoted market prices found on the New York Mercantile Ex¢tharitdy MEX™) (Level 1

inputs) the fairvalueof its swapcontractsusing aqiotedforward prices,andthe fair value of its interest rate swaps
using modelderived valuations driven by observable projected movements ofriient LIBOR (Level 2 inputs)

and the fair value of its ove¢he-counter options contracts using Level Buts. The Partnership’s over-the-counter

options contracts are valued based on an internal option model. The inputs utilized in the model are based on public
available information as well as broker quotes. The significant unobservable inputs udesl fair tvalue
measurements of the Partnership’s over-the-counter options contracts are interest rate and market volatility.

Long-Lived Assets.

Property, plant and equipmen®roperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and
routine repairs are expensed as incurred while betterments are capitalized as additions to the related assets ¢
depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life. The Partnership capitalizes costs incurred in the acquisition and
modification of computer software used internally, includingsulting fees and costs of employees dedicated solely to

a specific project. At the time assets are retiredtlmrwise disposkof, the asset and related accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized within operating expenses. Depreciation
determined under the straighte method based upon the estimated useful lifaeasset as follows:

Buildings 40 Years
Building and land improvements 20 Years
Transportation equipment 3-20 Years
Storage facilities 7-40 Years
Office equipment 5-10 Years
Tanks and cylinders 10-40 Years
Computer software 3-7 Years

The weighted average estimated useful life of the Partnership’s storage facilities andanks and cylinders is
approximatel\21 years and 28 years, respectively.

The Partnership reviews the recoverability of iKirmgd assets when circumstances occur that ételithat the carrying

value of an asset may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include a significant adverse change in the mannel
which an asset is being used, current operating losses combined with a history of operating losses experienced by t
asset or a current expectation that an asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of before the end of its previous
estimated useful life. Evaluation of possible impairment is based on the Partnership’s ability to recover the value of the

asset from theuture undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. |
the expected undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of such asset, an impairment loss is recorde
the amount by which the carrgramount of an asset exceeds its fair value. The fair value of an asset will be measured
using the best information available, including prices for similar assets or the result of using a discounted cash flov
valuation technique.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill is
subject to an impairment review at a reporting unit level, on an annual basis as of the end of fiscal July of each yea
or when an event occurs or circumstas change that would indicate potential impairment.

The Partnership has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or
circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that thedaiiof a reporting unit is less than

its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, an entity determines it is not more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, thermosgfthe twestep
impairment test is unnecessary. However, if an entity concludes otherwise, then it is required to perform the first
step of the twestep impairment test.
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Under the twestep impairment test, the Partnership assesses the camajiregof goodwill at a reporting unit level

based on an estimate of the fair value of the respective reporting unit. Fair value of the reporting unit is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses taking into consideration estimated cash flows-year f@mjection period

and a terminal value calculation at the end of the projection period. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its
carrying value, the goodwill associated with the reporting unit is not considered to be impaired. Ifyimg carr
value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying
amount of the associated goodwill, if any, exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill.

Other Intangible Assets. Other intangibleassets @nsist of customerelationships tradenames, netompete
agreements and leasehold interes@ustomerrelationshipsand tradenames are amortized under the strhight
method over the estimated period for which the assets are expected tbutertwithe future cash flows of the
reporting entities to which they relate, ending periodically betwiesal years2016 and 2021 Noncompete
agreements are amortized under the strdight method over the periods of the related agreemehtsasehal
interests are amortized under the stralgie method over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the related
assetsthrough fiscal 2025

Accrued Insurance. Accrued insurance represents the estimated costs of known and anticipatedsarted claims

for selfinsured liabilities related to general and product, workers’ compensation and automobile liability. Accrued
insurance provisions for unasserted claims arising from unreported incidents are based on an analysis of histerical clai
data. For each claim, the Partnership records a provision up to the estimated amount of the probable claim utilizin
actuarially determined loss development factors applied to actual claims data. The Panneirsiasiims insurance
coverage such thatsi net exposure for insured claims is limited to the insurance deductible, claims above which are
paid by the Partnership’s insurance carriers. For the portion of the estimated liability that exceeds insurance
deductibles, the Partnership records an astatied to the amount of the liability expected to be covered by insurance.

Customer Deposits and AdvancesThe Partnership offers different payment programs to its customers including the
ability to prepay for usage and to make equal monthly paynmntaccount under a budget payment plan. The
Partnership establishes a liability within customer deposits and advances for amounts collected in advance of deliveries

Income Taxes. As discussed in Note 1, the Partnership structure consists of twedlipartnerships, the Partnership

and the Operating Partnership, dheCorporate Entities. For federal income tax purposes, as well as for state income
tax purposes in the majority of the states in which the Partnership operates, the earningslattdlib@Partnership

and the Operating Partnership are included in the tax returns©@bthmon Unitholders As a result, except for certain

states that impose an income tax on partnerships, no income tax expense is reflected in the Partnership’s consolidated

financial statements relating to the earnings of the Partnership and the Operating Partnership. The earnings attributal
to the Corporate Entities are subject to federal and state income tax. Net earnings for financial statement purposes m
differ significantly from taxable income reportable to Common Unitholders as a result of differences between the tax
basis and financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities and the taxable income allocation requirements under t
Partnership Agreement.

Income taxes for the Corporate Entities are provided based on the asset and liability approach to accounting for incon
taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences
differences beteen the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect fc
the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
tax rates is recognized income in the period when the change is enacted. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that the full amount will not be realized.

Loss Contingencies. In the normal cose of business, the Partnership is involved in various claims and legal
proceedings. The Partnership records a liability for such matters when it is probable that a loss has been incurred a
the amounts can be reasonably estimated. The liability iExlpcbbable and estimable legal costs to the point in the
legal matter where the Partnership believes a conclusion to the matter will be reached. When only a range of possik
loss can be established, the most probable amount in the range is accrne@mbunt within this range is a better
estimate than any other amount within the range, the minimum amount in the range is accrued.
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Asset Retirement Obligations. Asset retirement obligatiorepply to legal obligations associated with the retirement

of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or the normal operation-of a long
lived asset. The Partnership has recognized asset retirement obligations for certain costs to remove and prope
dispose of undergrounchd aboveground fuel oil storage tanks and contractually mandated removal of leasehold
improvements.

The Partnership records a liability at fair value for the estimated cost to settle an asset retirement obligation at the tirr
that liability is incurred, Wich is generally when the asset is purchased, constructed or leased. The Partnership
records the liability, which is referred to as the asset retirement obligation, when it has a legal obligation to incur cost
to retire the asset and when a reasonalimat® of the fair value of the liability can be made. If a reasonable
estimate cannot be made at the time the liability is incurred, the Partnership records the liability when sufficient
information is available to estimate the liability’s fair value.

Unit-Based Compensation. The Partnership recognizesmpensation cost over the respective service period for
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity or-bgaég compensation based on the grant date
fair value of the award. TheaRnership measures liability awards under an edpaged payment arrangement based
on remeasurement of the award’s fair value at the conclusion of each interim and annual reporting period until the

date of settlement, taking into consideration the pritibathat the performance conditions will be satisfied.

Costs and ExpensesThe cost of products sold reported in the consolidated statements of operations represents the
weighted average unit cost of propane, fuel oil and refined fuels, as well as the cost of natural gas and electricity sol
including transportation costs to delr product from the Partnership’s supply points to storage or to the Partnership’s
customer service centers. Cost of products sold also includes the cost of appliances, equipment and related parts s
or installed by the Partnership’s customer service centers computed on a basis that approximates the average cost of
the products. Unrealized (n@mash) gains or losses from changes in the fair valueoofmodity derivative
instruments that are not designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in e&iog pgyayd within cost of products

sold. Cost of products sold is reported exclusive of any depreciation and amortization as such amounts are report
separately within the consolidated statements of operations.

All other costs of operating the Pantstép’s retail propane, fuel oil and refined fuels distribution and appliance sales

and service operations, as well as the natural gas and electricity marketing business, are reported within operatil
expenses in the consolidated statements of operatidhgse operating expenses include the compensation and
benefits of field and direct operating support personnel, costs of operating and maintaining the vehicle fleet, overhea
and other costs of the purchasing, training and safety departments and ettteairdtirindirect costs of operating the
Partnership’s customer service centers.

All costs of back office support functions, including compensation and benefits for executives and other support
functions, as well as other costs and expenses to maiitailcé and accounting, treasury, legal, human resources,
corporate development and the information systems functions are reported within general and administrative expens
in the consolidated statements of operations.

Net Income Per Unit. Computations bbasic income per Common Unit are perfornbgddividing net income by the
weighted average number of outstanding Common Unitsyesteéd (and unissuetbstricted units granted under the
Partnership’s Restricted Unit Plansas defined belowto retiremeneligible grantees. Computations of diluted
income per Common Unit are performed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of outstanding
Common Units and ussuedrestricted units granted under the Restricted Unit Plans. In computingddiiate
income per Common Unit, weighted average units outstanding used to compute basic net income per Common Un
wereincreased by69,867 222,419and 141,570units for fiscal2014 2013 and 2012 respectively, to reflect the
potential dilutive effect othe unvested restricted units outstanding using the treasury stock method.

Comprehensive Income. The Partnership reports comprehensive income (the total of net income and all other non
owner changes in partners’ capital) within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income Other
comprehensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments accounted for as cash flc
hedgesand reclassifications of realized losses oshélw hedges into earningamortization of net actuaf losses

and prior service credits into earningsd changes in the funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit
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plans.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncementsin May 2014, theérinancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)

issued Accouting Standards Update (“ASU”) 201409 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“ASU 2014-09").

This update provides a principleased approach to revenue recognition, requiring revenue recognition to depict the
transfer of goods or services to customeran amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicEse ASU provides a fivetep model to be applied to all contracts

with customers. The five steps are to identify the conspet{th the customer, identify the performance obligations

in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in th
contract and recognize revenue when each performance obligation is salisiegvenue standard is effective for

the first interim period within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, which will be the
Partnership’s first quarter of fiscal year 2018. ASU 2014-09 can be applied either retrospectively to epdbr
reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at
the date of the initial application along with additional disclosufidse Partnership is evaluating the impacts, if any,

the adption of ASU 201409 will have on théartnership’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. In December 2011, the FASB issued an ASU regarding
disclosures about offsetting assets and liakslitf@\SU 2011-11"). The new guidance requires an entity to disclose
information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of financial statements to understand the effe
of those arrangements on its financial position. The amendmerterfustarified with ASU 20181, enhances
disclosures by requiring improved information about financial instruments and derivative instruments that are eithel
offset in accordance with other US GAAP or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangegienilaror
agreement, irrespective of whether or not they are offset in the balance sheet. The Partnership adopted 4SU 2011
and ASU 20131 on September 29, 2013 and included further disclosure regarding offsetting assets and liabilities for
derivative hstruments accounted for under ASC 815. As this guidance affects disclosures only, its adoption had nc
impact on the Partnership’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an ASU to establiskfthetive date for the requirement to present components

of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income either parenthetically on the face of the financie
statements or in the notes to the financial statements (“ASU 2013-02”). The Partnership adopted ASU 204® on
September 29, 2013 and its adoption did not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive incon
nor did it have an impact on the Partnership’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

3. Acquisition of Inergy Propane

As described in Note ihe Partnership completed the acquisitiomefgy Propaneon August 1, 2012The acquisition

of Inergy Propane (the “Inergy Propane Acquisition”) was consummated pursuant to a definitive agreement dated April

25, 2012 with Inergy, Inergy GP, LLC and Inergy Sales, as amended (the “Contribution Agreement”). Prior to the
Acquisition Date, Inergy Propane transferred its interest in certain subsidiaries, as well as all of its rights and interests i
the assets and properties of its wholesale propane supply, marketing and distribution business, and its rights and inter
in the assetand properties of itavestcoast natural gas liquids business, to Inergihese assets were not included as

part of the Inergy Propane business at the time of the transfer of the membership interests in Inergy Propane to t
Partnership and were not paft the Inergy Propane Acquisition. The results of operations of Inergy Prapane
included in the Partnership’s results of operations beginning on the Acquisition Date.

Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, the Partnership agreed to issue $600r@90 Common Unitsin the
aggregate to Inergy and Inergy Sales (the “Equity Consideration™). In accordance with the Contribution Agreement, the

number ofCommon Unitdssued to Inergy and Inergy Sales in the aggregasedetermined by dividing $600,00y

the average of the high and low sales prices of the Partnership’s Common Unitdor the twenty consecutive trading days
ending on the day prior to the execution of the Contribution Agreement, which was determined to be $43.1885, resultin
in 13,82,587Common Units

Also pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, the Partnership and its woollgd subsidiary Suburban Energy
Finance Corp. commenced an offer to exchange (the “Exchange Offers”) any and all of the outstanding unsecured 7%
senior notes due2018 and B73% senior notes due 2021 issued by Inergy and Inergy Finance Corp., which had an
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aggregate principal amount outstanding of $1,200,000 (collectively, the “Inergy Notes”), for a combination of
$1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of neveamed 75% senior notes due 2018 and373% senior notes due

2021 (collectively, the “SPH Notes”) issued by the Partnership and Suburban Energy Finance Corp. and up to $200,000

in cash to tendering noteholders (the “Exchange Offer Cash ConsiderafinrPursuant to the Contribution Agreement,

the Partnership was required to pay Inergy the difference, if any, between $200,000 and the actual Exchange Off
Cash Consideration paid in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Offers (such payment, the “Inergy Cash
Consideratiotl). The Contribution Agreement provided that the Partnershigould offer $65,000 in aggregate cash
consent payments in connection with the Exchange Offers and that imeuly pay $36,500 to the Partnership in

cash on the Acquisitionde. The Exchange Offers expired and settled on August 1, 2012 (the “Settlement Date”).

On the Settlement Date, the Partnership had received tenders and consents from holders representing approximat
98.09% of the total outstanding principal amounthe 2018 Inergy Notes, and tenders and consents from holders
representing approximately 99.74% of the total outstanding principal amount of the 2021 Inergy Notes. Based on th
results of the Exchange Offers, the Exchange Offer Cash Consideration duwléartg Inergy noteholders was
$184,761. The Inergy Cash Consideration was satisfied by the issuancé &3530ommon Unitsto Inergy and
therefore, when combined with the Equity Consideration, the Partnership issued,422Z0ommon Unitsin the
aggreg@te to Inergy and Inergy Sales on August 1, 2012. Inergy disulitdt@58,418f suchCommon Unitdo its
unitholderson September 14, 2012

On April 25, 2012, the Partnership received consents from the requisite lenders under the AmendedrE€eeunAg

(as defined in Note 8)o enable it to incur additional indebtedness, make amendments to the Amended Credit
Agreement to adjust certain covenants, and otherwise perform our obligations as contemplated by the Inergy Propa
Acquisition. On August, 12012, the Operating Partnership executed an amendment to the Amended Credit Agreemen
to, among other things, provide for (i) a $250,000 senior securedagGicremental term loan facility (the “364-Day
Facility”) and (ii) an increase in our revolving credit facility under the Amended Credit Agreement from $250,000 to
$400,000. On the Acquisition Date, the Operating Partnedsaip $225,000 on the 3@3ay Facility, which, together

with cash received from Inergypursuant to the Contribution Agreemeatjd cash on hand, was used to:gythe

consent fees and the Exchange Offer Cash Consideration, (ii) costs and fees related to the Exchange Offers, and (
costs and expenses related to the Inergy Propane AcquisiorAugust 14, 2012he Partnerdp repad its
borrowingsof $225,000 under its 36@ay Facilitywith the proceeds from a public sale of 6,300,000 Common Units
that closed on that date

The fair value of the purchase price for Inergy Propasaletermined on the Acquisition Datas $1890,915
consisting of: (i) $1,075,043 of newly issusehior tes (with an aggregate par value of $1,000,000) and $184,761
in cash to tendering Inergy noteholders pursuant to the Exchange Offers; (ii) $65,000 paidashthe Inergy
noteholders for th consent payments pursuant to the consent solicitations; (iii) $590,027 of new Subumibaon

Units (consisting o0f14,200,422Common Unity, which were issuedto Inergy and Inergy Sales, all but $5,942
(consisting 0f142,004Common Unit} of which were subsequently distributed by Inergy to its unitholdeesiuced

by (iv) $23,916 of cashreceivedfrom Inergypursuant to the Contribution Agreement (the cash consideration from
Inergy includes the $36,500 discussed above and is net of amounts owed Yo bipetge Partnership at the
Acquisition Date). The fair value of the newly issued senior notes was determined using Level 2 inputs and the fair
value of the equity issued to Inergy and Inergy Sales was determined using Level 1 inputs.

During the third garter of fiscal 2013, the Partnership finalized the third party valuations of the Acquisition Date fair
value of certain assets acquiriedthe Inergy Propane Acquisitipprincipally property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets. The consolidatealance sheetsince September 29, 2012 reflect the final allocation of the
purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in this business combination.
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The table provides the final purchase price allocation:

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,964
Accounts receivable 36,076
Inventories 30,457
Other current assets 2,067
Current assets acquired 76,564
Property, plant & equipment 617,854
Customer relationships (estimated useful life of 9 years) 445,500
Non-compete agreements (estimated useful life of 6 years) 23,059
Other intangible assets (estimated useful life of 4 years) 1,983
Goodwill 809,778
Other assets 2,151
Total assets acquired $ 1,976,889

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable $ 16
Accrued employment and benefit costs 2,149
Customer deposits and advances 48,469
Other current liabilities 18,613
Other noncurrent liabilities 16,727
Total liabilities assumed 85,974
Total $ 1,890,915

The final purchase price allocation resulted in the following adjustments to the provisional fair value estimates:
property, plant and equipment decreased $33,302, intangible assets (principally customer relationships) increast
$39,583, other current assets decreased $765 and other noncurrent liabilities increased $646. The net effect of the
adjustments resulted in a $4,870 decrease to goodwill as of the AcquisitionA3aeaesultresults of operation®r

fiscal 2012have been revised fa $205 decrease to depreciation expense and a $1,449 increase to amortization
expense.

The following presents unaudited pro forma combined financial information as if the Inergy Propane Acquisition had
occurred on Septemb@b, 2011, the first day of the Partnership’s 2012 fiscal year as adjusted for the final purchase

price allocation The unaudited pro forma combined financial information was prepared under the assumption that the
net proceeds from the issuance of the 6,300,000n@m Units on August 14, 2012 were used to fund the portion of the
Inergy Propane Acquisition that was originally financed through theD@g4Facility (which was repaid two weeks

after theAcquisitionDate) As a result, th€€ommonUnits were assumed twave been issued on SeptemB@r2011,

and, in turn, the pro forma results for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2012 do not include any interest cos
associated with the 3d3ay Facility.

F-16



Year Ended

September 29,
2012
Revenues $ 1,842,698
Net income $ 12,824
Income per common unit
Basic $ 0.23
Diluted $ 0.23

The unaudited pro forma combinédancial information is not necessarily indicative of the results that would have
occurred had the Inergy Propane Acquisition occurred on the date indicated nor is it necessarily indicative of future
operating results.

4. Distributions of Available Cash

The Partnership makes distributions to its partners no later than 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter in ¢
aggregate amount equal to its Available Cash for such quarter. Available Cash, as defined in the Partnershi
Agreement, generally means atish on hand at the end of the respective fiscal quarter less the amount of cash
reserves established by the Board of Supervisors in its reasonable discretion for future cash requirements. The
reserves are retained for the proper conduct of the Pduiisrisusiness, the payment of debt principal and interest

and for distributions during the next four quarters.

The following summarizes the quarterly distributions per Common Unit declared and paid in respect of each of the
quarters in the three fiscal years in the period esdgdembeR7, 2014

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2014 2013 2012
First Quarter $ 08750 $ 08750 $ 0.8525
Second Quarter 0.8750 0.8750 0.8525
Third Quarter 0.8750 0.8750 0.8525
Fourth Quarter 0.8750 0.8750 0.8525
5. Selected Balance Sheet Information
Inventories consist of the following:
As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
Propane, fuel oil and refined fuels and natural gas $ 89,470 $ 75,885
Appliances 1,495 1,738
$ 90,965 $ 77,623

The Partnership enters into contrédotsthe supply opropane, fuel oil and natural gas. Such contracts generally have a
term of one year subject to annual renewal, witlchase quantitiespecified at the time of order ardsts based on
market prices at the date of delivery.

F-17



Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
Land and improvements $ 201,353 $ 207,516
Buildings and improvements 103,751 104,137
Transportation equipment 64,254 71,815
Storage facilities 110,586 113,571
Equipment, primarily tanks and cylinders 823,478 830,282
Computer systems 49,904 49,049
Construction in progress 3,420 4,472
1,356,746 1,380,842
Less: accumulated depreciation (529,920) (492,610)

$ 826,826 $ 888,232

Depreciation expense féiscal 2014,2013 and2012 amounted t&78,921 $72,353and$35,032 respectively

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Partnership’s fiscal 2014 and fiscal2013annual goodwill impairment reviewesultedin no adjustments to the
carrying amount of goodwiill.

The carrying valugof goodwill assigned to the Partnership’s operating segments are as follows:

Fuel oil and Natural gas
Propane refined fuels  and electricity Total
Balance as of September 27, 2014
and September 28, 2013
Goodwill $ 1,075,091 $ 10,900 $ 7,900 $ 1,093,891
Accumulated adjustments - (6,462) - (6,462)
$ 1,075,091 $ 4,438 $ 7,900 $ 1,087,429
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Other intangible assets consist of the following:

As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013

Customer relationships $ 466,959 $ 466,959
Non-compete agreements 26,815 26,815
Tradenames 3,482 3,482
Other 1,967 1,967
499,223 499,223

Less: accumulated amortization
Customer relationships (122,411) (71,382)
Non-compete agreements (13,962) (8,138)
Tradenames (2,573) (2,040)
Other (984) (892)
(139,930) (82,452)

$ 359,293 $ 416,771

Aggregate amortization expense related to other intangible assets for2fdehl2013 and 2012 was $57,478
$58,031and $12,002 respectively Aggregate amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years
related to other intangible assets held as of Septe2h@014is as follows: 204 - $56,767 2016 - $53,971 2017 -
$52,686 2018 - $52,326; and 2019 $51,303

7. Income Taxes

For federal income tax purposes, as well as for state income tax purposes in the majority of the states in which tt
Partnership operates, the earnings attributable to the Partnership and the Operating Parsnarshipibject to income

tax at the pdnership level. With the exception of those states that impose anleaétyncome tax on partnerships,

the taxable income or loss attributable to the Partnerahip to the Operating Partnership, which may vary
substantially from the income (loss) before income taxes reported by the Partnership in the consolidated statement
operations, are includable in the federal and state income tax returns @értiraon Uniholders The aggregate
difference in the basis of the Partnership’s net assets for financial and tax reporting purposes cannot be readily
determined as the Partnership does not have access t@amacion Unitholder’s basis in the Partnership.

As descriled in Note 1 and Note 2, the earnings of the Corporate Entities are subject to corporate level federal an
state income tax. However, based upon past performance, the Corporate Entities are currently reporting an incor
tax provision composed primarily afiinimum state income taxes. A full valuation allowance has been provided
against the deferred tax asdegsed upon an analysis of all available evidence, both negative and positive at the balance
sheet date, which, taken as a whole, indicates thatibiie likely than not that sufficient future taxable income will not

be available to utilize the assets. Management’s periodic reviews include, among other things, the nature and amount of

the taxable income and expense items, the expected timivitenassets will be used or liabilities will be required to be
reported and the reliability of historical profitability of businesses expected to provide future earnings. Furthermore
management considered fatanning strategies it could use to increaseikaithood that the deferradx assets will be
realized.
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The income tax provision of all the legal entities included in the Partnership’s consolidated statement of operations,
which is composed primarily of state income taxes in the few statesnihase taxes on partnerships and imum
state income taxes on the Corporate Entitiesgists of the following:

Year Ended
September 27,  September 28,  September 29,
2014 2013 2012
Current

Federal $ 10 % 26 3 18
State and local 757 581 119
767 607 137

Deferred - - -
$ 767 3% 607 $ 137

The provision for income taxes differs from income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory rate as a
result of the following:

Year Ended
September 27, September 28, September 29,
2014 2013 2012
Income tax provision at federal statutory tax rate $ 33,346 $ 27,792  $ 271
Impact of Partnership income not subject to
federal income taxes (38,919) (35,187) (4,564)
Permanent differences 86 71 244
Transfer of assets to Corporate Entities - - 8,181
Change in valuation allowance 5,458 9,771 (3,567)
State income taxes (60) (1,135) 339
Other 856 (705) (767)
Provision for income taxes - current $ 767 % 607 $ 137
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The components of net deferred taxes and the related valuation allowance usinty @maeted tax rates are as

follows:
As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 51,321 $ 46,356
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,371 878
Inventory 433 525
Intangible assets 122 577
Deferred revenue 1,524 2,188
Derivative instruments 71 109
AMT credit carryforward 1,086 1,086
Other accruals 2,060 2,062
Total deferred tax assets 57,988 53,781
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 6,124 7,375
Total deferred tax liabilities 6,124 7,375
Net deferred tax assets 51,864 46,406
Valuation allowance (51,864) (46,406)
Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -

After the Inergy Propan@cquisition, the Partnership contributed all of the Inergy Propane assets and liabilities to the
Operating Partnership which, in turn, contributed the fuel oil and refined fuels and service assets and liabilities to the
Corporate Entities.At the time ofthe transfer, the Corporate Entities recognized a deferred tax liability for the
difference between the book basis of the assets received and their taxTihasi®cognition of that deferred tax
liability was offset by the release of a portion of theuatibn allowance that previously existed on the net deferred

tax assetsThus, the transfer of these assets had no impact on net income for fiscal 2012.

8. Long-Term Borrowings

Longterm borrowings consist of the following:

As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
7.5% senior notes, due October 1, 2018, including
unamortized premium of $-0- and $28,614, respectively $ - $ 525,171
7.375% senior notes, due March 15, 2020, net of
unamortized discount of $1,183 and $1,400, respectively 248,817 248,600
7.375% senior notes, due August 1, 2021, including
unamortized premium of $22,688 and $25,286, respectively 368,868 371,466
5.5% senior notes, due June 1, 2024 525,000 -
Revolving Credit Facility, due January 5, 2017 100,000 100,000
$ 1,242,685 $ 1,245,237
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Senior Notes
2018Senior Notesnd 2021 Senior Notes

On August 1, 2012, the Partnership and its 1@0%ed subsidiary, Suburban Energy Finance Corp., issued $496,557
in aggrega¢ principal amount of unregistered 7.5% senior notes due October 1(t2©13018 Senior Notes”) and
$503,443 in aggregate principal amount of unregistered 7.375% senior notes due August 1, 2021 (the “2021 Senior
Notes”) in a private placement inonnection with the Inergy Propane Acquisition describedadte 3. Basedon
market rates for similar issuesha 2@8 Senior Notesand 2021 Senior Notewere valued at 106.875% and
108.1283%, respectivelyof the principal amounbn theAcquisition Dateas they were issued in exchange for Inergy’s
outstanding notes, not for cash.

On May 27, 2014, the Partnershiigpurchased and satisfied and discharged all of its 2018 Senior Notes with net
proceeds from the issuance of the 2024 Senior Notes, as defined below, and cash on hand pursuant to a tender o
and redemption during theitth quarter of fiscal 2014.In connection with thidender offer and redemptipthe
Partnership recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of $11,589 consisting of $31,633 for the redemptio
premium and related fees, as well as the vaiteof $5,230 and ($25,274) in unamortized debt origination costs and
unamortized premium, respectivelyThe 2.8 Senior Notegequiredsemiannual interest payments &pril and
October, and th202L Senior Notes require serannual interest payments kebruaryandAugust

The 2021 Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Partnership’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on orafter August
1, 2016, in each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, together with any accrued and unp:
interestto date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2006, .. 103.688%
2007 e 102.459%
2018, . 101.229%
2019 and thereafter...........ccccoveiiiinnn. 100.000%

On December 19, 2012, the Partnership completed an offer to exchahgedatstandinginregistered 7.5% senior

notes due 2018 and 7.375% senior notes due 2afkdtively, the “Old Notes”) for an equal principal amount of

7.5% senior notes due 2018 and 7.375% senior notes due 20Rdcfively, the “Exchange Notes™), respectively,

that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The terms of the Exchange Notes
identical in all material respects (including princiahount interest rate, maturity and redemption rights) to the Old
Notes for which they were exchanged, except that the Exchange Notes generally will not be subject to transfe
restrictions.

On August2, 2013, the Partnership repurchasedrsuant tcan optional redemption$133400 of its 2021 Senior

Notes using net proceeds frahe May 2013 public offering and net proceeds from the underwriters’ exercise of their
overallotment option to purchase addittdnCommon Units. In additiorpn August 6, 2013the Partnership
repurchased 28,863 0f 2021 Senior Notes in a private transaction using cash on hand. In connection with these
repurchases, which totaled $1863 in aggregate principal amount, thHartnershiprecognized a loss on the
extinguishment of debt &§2,144consisting of $1,759for the repurchase premium and related fees, as well as the
write-off of $2,064and (8.1,678)in unamortized debt origination costs and unamortized prennaspedvely.

2020 Senior Notes

On March 23, 2010, the Partnership andlii®%owned subsidiary, Suburban Energy Finance Cagmpleted a
public offering of $250,000 in aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior notes due March 15, 2020 (the “2020
Senior Ndes”). The 2020 Senior Notes were issued at 99.136% of the principal amount and require semannual
interest payments in March and September.

The 2020 Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Partnership’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on orafter March
15, 2015, in each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, together with any accrued and unp:
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interest to the date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2005, 103.688%
2016, .. 102.458%
2007 . 101.229%
2018 and thereafter...........c.ccooiiinnn. 100.000%

2024 Senior Notes

As previously discussed, day 27, 2014thePartnership and its 100%wned subsidiary, Suburban Energy Finance
Corp., conmpleted a public offering of $52800 in aggregate principal amount58% senior notes dudune 1, 2024
(the “2024 Senior Notes”). The 2024 Senior Notes were issued Hi(% of the principal amounandrequire semi
annual interest paymentsJaneandDecember, beginning in December 20T4e net proceeds from the issuance of
the 2024 Senior Notes, along with cash on hand, were used to repurchase and satisfy and dischdrge2@il&f
Senior Notes.

The 2024Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Partnership’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on orafterJune 1,
2019 in each case at the redemption prices described in the table below, together with any accrued and unpa
interest to the date of the redemption.

Year Percentage
2019, 102.750%
2020, . 101.833%
2020 100.917%
2022 and thereafter...........ccocooiiiinnnn. 100.000%

The Partnership’s obligations under the 2020 Senior Notes, 2021 Senior Noteand 2024 Senior Notggollectively,

the “Senior Notes”) are unsecured and rank senior in right of payment to any future subordinated indebtedness and

equally in right of payment with any future senior indebtedness. The Seniordletesucturally subordinated to,
which meas they rank effectively behind, any debt and other liabilities of the Operating Partnership. The Senior
Noteseachhave a change of control provision that would require the Partndosbiifer to repurchase the notes at
101% of the principal amount reiased, if a change of control, as defined in the indenture, occurs and is followed
by a rating decline (a decrease in the rating of the notes by either Moody’s Investors Service or Standard and Poor’s

Rating Group by oner more gradations) within 90 dayf the consummation of the change of control.

Credit Agreement

The Operating Partnership hasamended and restateckdit agreemergntered intaon January 5, 2012s amended

on August 1, 2012and May 9, 2014collectively, the “AmendedCredit Agreenent”) that provides for a five-year
$400,000 revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), of which $100,000 was outstandinas of
SeptembeR7, 2014and Septembe28, 2013 Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility may be used for
general corporate purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and acquisilibasOperating
Partnership has the right to prepay any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, in whole or in part, without
penalty at any time prior to raity.

During the second quarteof fiscal 2014 the Partnershigxperienced a significant increase in working capital
requirements as a result tife significant increase in wholesale panecosts. The increase in working capital
resulted in thenetborrowing of $55000 underthe Partnership’s Revolving Credit Facility in the second quarter of
fiscal 2014. Thee additionaborrowings were repaid in full in April 2014 with internally generated cash.

The amendmerdnd restatement a@he credit agreemat on January 5, 2012 amended the previous credit agreement

to, among other things, extend the maturity date from 26n2013 to Janua#y, 2017, reduce the borrowing rate and
commitment fees, and amend certain affirmative and negative covenants
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On August 1, 2012, the Operating Partnership executed an amendment to the Amended Credit Agreement to, amol
other things, provide for (i) a $250,000 senior securedCB84 Facility and (ii) an increase in our revolving credit
facility under the Amended Credigreement from $250,000 to $400,000. On the Acquisition Date, the Operating
Partnershipdrew $225,000 on the 3dZay Facility, whichwas used to fund a portion of the Inergy Propane
Acquisition, including costs and expenses related to the acquis®imn Partnership rejh the $225,000 of
borrowings under the 364ay Facility on August 14, 2012 with theet proceeds fronthe public issuance of
Common Units on August 14, 2012

The amendment to themended Credit Agreement on August 1, 2012 also amended certain restrictive and affirmative
covenants applicable the Operating Partnership atide Partnershipas well as certain financial covenants, including

(a) requiringthe Partnership’s consolidatd interest coverage ratio, as defined in the amendment, to be not less than 2.0
to 1.0 as of the end of any fiscal quarter; (b) prohibiting the total consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the
amendment, of the Partnership from being greater tharo 7lMtas of the end of any fiscal quartdrhe minimum
consolidated interest coverage ratio increases over time, and commencing \sébahdyjuarter of fiscal 2014, such
minimum ratiois 2.5 to 1.0. The maximum consolidated leverage ratio decreasegitme, as well as upon the
occurrence of certain events (such as the issuance of Common Units where the net proceeds from the issuance exc
certain thresholds). Commencing with the second quarter of fiscal 2013, such maximusvt@bao 1.0 (or ® to

1.0 during an acquisition period as defined in the amendment)

On May 9, 2014, the Operating Partnership executed a second amendment to the Amended Credit Agreement to me
certain technical amendments with respect to agreements relating to bhetrtaiaf).

The Partnership acts as a guarantor with respect to the obligations of the Operating Partnership Armeberdide:

Credit Agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth therein. The obligations uAdezrttiedCredit
Agreement aresecured by liens on substantially all of the personal property of the Partnership, the Operating
Partnership and their subsidiaries, as well as mortgages on certain real property.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilif the Amended Credidgreementear interest at prevailing interest
rates based upon, at the Operating Partnership’s option, LIBOR plus the applicable margin or the base rate, defined as

the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus %2 of 1%, the agent bank’s prime rate, or LIBOR plus 1%, plus in each case
the applicable margin. The applicable margin is dependent upon the Partnership’s ratio of total debt to EBITDA on a
consolidated basis, as defined in the Revolving Credit Facility. /Aepfembef7, 2014 the interest rate fdhe
Revolving Credit Facilitywas approximatel®.5%. Theinterest rate and the applicable margin will be reset at the
end of each calendar quarter.

In connection with the Amended Credit Agreemehg Operating Partnership entered into iaterest rateswap
agreement with aotional amount of $100,000, an effective datdwife 25, 2013 andtarminationdate of January

5, 2017. Under this interest rate swap agreentemOperating Partnership will pay a fixed interest rate of 1.63% to

the issuing leder on the notional principal amount outstanding, and the issuing lender witheayperating
Partnership a floating rate, namely LIBOR, on the same notional principal amount. The interest rate swap has bee
designated as a cash flow hedge

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 the Partnership had standby letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility in
the aggregate amount ofi4882which expire periodically throughpril 3, 2015 Therefore, as dbeptembel?,
2014the Partnership had avdile borrowing capacity of265,118under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Amended Credit Agreemerand the Senior Notes both contain various restrictive and affirmative covenants
applicable to the Operating Partnership and the Partnership, respectively, including (i) restrictions on the incurrenc
of additional indebtedness, and (ii) restrictions ortaie liens, investments, guarantees, loans, advances, payments,
mergers, consolidations, distributions, sales of assets and other transactions. UAdenthed Credit Agreement

and theindentura governing the Senior Notes, tRperatingPartnershiand the Partnership agenerally permitted

to make cash distributions equal to available cash, as defined, as of the end of the immediately preceding quarter,
no event of default exists or would exist upon making such distributionsyigncespect tohie indentures governing

the Senior Noteghe Partnership’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined, is greater than 1.75to 1. The
Partnership and th®@perating Partnership were in compliance with all covenants and terms of the Seniaaridotes
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the Amended Credit Agreemeasof SeptembeR7, 2014

Debt origination costs representing the costs incurred in connection with the placement of, and the subsequel
amendment to, lonterm borrowings are capitalized within other assets and amoudizedstraightine basis over

the term of the respective debgreements.During fiscal 2014 the Partnership recognized charges ®£230to

write-off unamortized debt origination costs associated thightender offer and redemption of its 2018 SeNiotes.

During fiscal2013 the Partnershiprecognized charges of $2,064llion to write-off unamortized debt origination

costs associated with the repurchase of its 2021 Senior.NDtherassets at Septemher, 2014and Septembel8,
2013include debt origination costs with a net carrying amou®a{023and$21,254 respectively.

The aggregate amounts of letegm debt maturities subsequent to Septen@FeR014 are as followsfiscal 2015
through fiscal 20&: $-0-; fiscal 2017: $10@00;fiscal 2018: $0-; fiscal 2019: $0-; and thereafter: 121,180

9. Unit-Based Compensation Arrangements

As described in Note 2, the Partnerst@pognizecompensation cost over the respective service period for employee
services received in exchange for an award of egquitgquitybased compensatipbased on the grant date fair value

of the award. The Partnership measures liability awards under ag-egsed payment arrangement based en re
measurement of the award’s fair value at the conclusion of each interim and annual reporting period until the date of
settlement, taking into consideration the probability that the performance conditions wilsbedsat

Restricted Unit Plans In fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2009, the Partnership adopted the Suburban Propane Partners, L.P
2000 Restricted Unit Plan and 2009 Restricted Unit Plan (collectively, the “Restricted Unit Plans”), respectively,

which authorizeghe issuance of Common Units to executives, managers and other employees and members of th
Board of Supervisors of the Partnership. The total number of Common Units authorized for issuance under th
Restricted UniPlans was 1,902,122 as$®éptembel7, 2014. In accordance with an August 6, 2013 amendment to
the Restricted Unit Plans, unless othervgiggulated by the Compensation Committee of the Partnership’s Board of
Supervisors on or before the grant date, all restricted unit awards grantatiexfiete of the amendment will vest
33.33% on each of the first three anniversaries of the award grant date. Prior to the August 6, 2013 amendmer
unless otherwise stipulated by the Compensation Committee of the Partnership’s Board of Supervisors on or before

the grant date, restricted units issued under the Restricted Unit Plans vest over time with 25% of the Common Unit
vesting at the end of each of the third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date and the remaining 50% of th
Common Units vestingtahe end of the fifth anniversary of the grant date. The Restricted Unit Plans participants are
not eligible to receive quarterly distributions on, or vote, their respective restricted units until vested. Restrcted unit
cannot be sold or transferredqr to vesting. The value of the restricted unit is established by the market price of the
Common Unit on the date of grant, net of estimated future distributions during the vesting period. Restricted units ar
subject to forfeiture in certain circumstas as defined in the Restricted Unit Plans. Compensation expense for the
unvested awards is recognized ratably over the vesting periods and is net of estimated forfeitures.

F-25



The following is a summary of activity in the Restricted URidns:

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Units Value Per Unit
Outstanding September 24, 2011 485,423 $32.71
Granted 108,674 32.60
Forfeited (12,225) (30.78)
Issued (139,021) (33.14)
Outstanding September 29, 2012 442,851 32.68
Granted 200,933 23.42
Forfeited (3,497) (32.15)
Issued (112,660) (32.01)
Outstanding September 28, 2013 527,627 29.30
Granted 256,273 37.43
Forfeited (3,119) (28.39)
Issued (85,854) (31.23)
Outstanding September 27, 2014 694,927 $32.07

As of SeptembeR7, 2014 unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted units awarded under the
Restricted Unit Plans amountéa $8,255 Compensation cost associated with the unvested awards is expeoged to
recognized over a weightedverage period of.4 years. Compensation expense for the Restricted Unit Plans for
fiscal 2014 2013and2012was$7,39Q $3,888and$4,059 respectively.

Long-Term Incentive Plans. The Partnership has a rgnalified, unfunded longerm incentive plan for officers

and key employees (the “LTIP”) which provides for payment, in the form of cash, of an award of equity-based
compensation at the end of a thymar performance period. For the fiscal 2013 and 2012 award$ewbleof
compensation earned under the LTIP is based on the market performance of the Partnership’s Common Units on the

basis of total return to Unitholders (“TRU”) compared to the TRU of a predetermined peer group consisting solely of

other master limiteghartnerships, approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Supervisors, over the
same thregrear performance period. On August 6, 2013, the Compensation Committee of the Partnership’s Board of
Supervisors adopted the 2014 Lehgrm Incentive Rn of the Partnership (“2014 LTIP”) as a replacement for the

existing LTIP. As a result, for the fiscal 2014 award, the level of compensation earned under the 2014 LTIP is base
on the average distribution coverage ratio over the 4yeae measuremenegod. The average distribution coverage

ratio is calculated as the Partnership’s average distributable cash flow, as defined in the 2014 LTIP, for each of the

three years in the measurement period, subject to certain adjustments as set forth in tH@R20di¢ided by the
amount of annualized cash distributions to be paid by the Partnership, based on the annualized cash distribution rate
the beginning of the measurement perio€ompensation expense, which includes adjustments to previously
recognizel compensation expense for current period changes in the fair value of unvested awards, Riylffiscal
2013and2012was$120, $1,439and ($340), respectively. The cash payouts in fis@ll4 2013and2012 which

related to the fisca2011, 2010and2009awards, wer&-0-, $-0- and$3,336 respectively.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plan. The Partnership has an employee Retirement Savings and Investment Plan (the “401(k)
Plan™) covering most employees. Employer matching contributions relating to the 401(k) Plan are a percentage of the
participating employees’ elective contributions. The percentage of the Partnership’s contributions are based on a sliding

scale depending on the Partnership’s achievement of annual performance targets. These contributions totéle848,
$1,915and$1,359for fiscal2014 2013and2012 respectively.
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Defined Pension and Retiree Health and Life Benefits Arrangements

Pension Benefits. The Partnership has a noncontributdefined benefit pension plan which was originally designed to
cover all eligible employees of the Partnership who met certain requisea®etd age and length of service. Effective
January 1, 1998, the Partnership amended its defined benefit pensido plawide benefits under a cash balance
formula as compared to a final average pay formula which was in effect prior to January 1, 1998. Effective January 1
2000, participation in the defined benefit pension plan was limited to eligible existingpaauticon that date with no

new participants eligible to participate in the plan. On September 20, 2002, the Board of Supervisoes approv
amendment to the defined benefit pension plan whereby, effective January 1, 2003, future service creditsdceased a
eligible employees receive interest credits only toward their ultimate retirement benefit.

Contributions, as needed, are made toist maintained by the Partnership. Contributions to the defined benefit pension
plan are made by the Partnership aea@dance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 minimum
funding standards plus additional amounts made at the discodtihe Partnership, which may be determined from time

to time. There were no minimum funding requirements for teinéd benefit pension plan for fisca014,2013 or

2012. During the last decade, cash balance plans came under increased scrutiny which resulted in litigation pertainin
to the cash balance feature ahd Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) issuedadditional regulations governing these
types of plans In fiscal 2010the IRScompleted its review of the Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan and

issued a favorable determination letter pertaining to the cash balance formula. However, theraccagsoirances

that future legislativelevelopments will not have an adverse effect on the Partnership’s results of operations or cash

flows.

Retiree Health and Life Benefits. The Partnership provides postretirement health care and life insurancéskienefi
certain retired employees. Partnership employees hired prior to July 1993 are eligible for postretirement life insuranc
benefits if they reach a specified retirement age while working for the Partnership. Partnership employees hired prior t
July 1993 and who retired prior to March 1998 are eligible for postretirement health care benefits if they reached &
specified retirement age while working for the Partnership. Effective January 1, 2000, the Partnership terminated it
postretirement health @benefit plan for all eligible employees retiring after March 1, 1998. All active employees who
were eligible to receive health care benefits under the postretirement plan subsequent to March 1, 1998, were provid
an increase to their accumulated besefider the cash balance pension plan. The Partnership’s postretirement health

care and life insurance benefit plans are unfunded. Effective January 1, 2006, the Partnership changed its postretirem
health care plan from a séffsured program to onédt is fully insured under which the Partnership pays a portion of
the insurance premium on behalf of the eligible participants.

The Partnership recognizes the funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans as an asset or liabi
on the balance sheet and recognizes changes in the funded stathey @omprehensive income (loss) in the year the
changes occur. The Partnership uses the date of its consolidated financial statements as the measurement date of
assets and obligations.

F-27



Projected Benefit Obligation, Fair Value of Plan Assets and Funded Statughe following tables provide a
reconciliation of the changes in the benefit obligations and the fair value of the plan adseis #114and2013and a
statement of the funded status for both years. Under the Partnership’s cash balanceefined benefit pension plan, the
accumulated benefit obligation and the projected benefit obligation are the same.

Retiree Health and Life

Pension Benefits Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013
Reconciliation of benefit obligations:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 148631 $ 165906 $ 17,754 $ 20,232
Service cost - - 5 8
Interest cost 5,774 5,229 640 586
Actuarial loss (gain) 8,459 (11,446) (278) (1,784)
Lump sum benefits paid (5,401) (3,155) - -
Ordinary benefits paid (7,627) (7,903) (1,167) (1,288)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 149,836 $ 148,631 $ 16,954 $ 17,754
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 120,776 $ 133873 $ - $
Actual return on plan assets 10,023 (2,039) - -
Employer contributions - - 1,167 1,288
Lump sum benefits paid (5,401) (3,155) - -
Ordinary benefits paid (7,627) (7,903) (1,167) (1,288)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 117,771 $ 120,776 $ - $ -
Funded status:
Funded status at end of year $ (32,065) $ (27,855) $ (16,954) $ (17,754)
Amounts recognized in consolidated balance

sheets consist of:

Net amount recognized at end of year $ (32,065) $ (27,855) $ (16,954) $ (17,754)
Less: Current portion - - 1,276 1,427
Non-current benefit liability $ (32,065) $ (27,855) $ (15,678) $ (16,327)

Amounts not yet recognized in net periodic benefit cost and
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Actuarial net (loss) gain $ (49,034) $ (49,986) $ 3,780 $ 3,683

Prior service credits - 889 1,379
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income $ (49,034) $ (49,986) $ 4669 $ 5,062

Amounts recognized inther comprehensive inconmecludednet actuarialosses(gains)arising during the periodf
$3,538and($4,126)for pension benefitbor fiscal 2014and2013 respectivelyandnet actuaria{gains)arising during

the periodof ($278 and($1,789 for otherpostretirement benefits for fisca14and2013 respectively The amounts

in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of Septe&2iib@014that are expected to be recognized as components
of net periodic benefit costs during fis@015are expengs of $4,522 and credits of$(686) for pension anather
postretirement benefits, respectively.

Plan Assets. The Partnership’s investment policies and strategies, as set forth in the Investment Management Policy
and Guidelines, are monitored by a Benefits Committee comprisgi@ mfembers of management.he Partnership
employs a liability driven investment sizgy, which seeks to increase the correlation of the plan’s assets and liabilities

to reduce the volatility of the plan’s funded status. This strategy has resulted in an asset allocation that is largely
comprised of investments in funds of fixed incomeus#ies The target asset mix is as follows: (i) fixed income
securities portion of the portfolio should rargeweer80% and $%; and (ii) equity securities portion of the portfolio
should range betwedi® and 2%.
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The following table presents tlaetual allocation of assets held in trastof

September September
27,2014 28, 2013
Fixed income securities 85% 85%
Equity securities 15% 15%
100% 100%

The Partnership’s valuations include the use of the fuhdsported net asset values fmmmingled fund investments.
Commingled funds are valued at the net asset value for their underlying sectitigeBartnershifurther corroborate
the above valuations with observable market data using level 2 inputs within the fair value franfédweacaksets of the
defined benft pension plan have no significant concentration of résid there are no restrictions on these
investments.

The following table describes the measurement of the Partnership’s pension plan assets by asset category as of

September 27, September 28,
2014 2013

Short term investmentg) $ 1,500 $ 1,516
Equity securities:(1) (2)

Domestic 6,370 11,780

International 10,916 5,959

Fixed income securitieql) (3) 98,985 101,521

$ 117,771 $ 120,776

(1) Includes funds which are not publicly traded and are valued at the net asset value of the units provided by th
fund issuer.

2 Includes funds which invest primarily in a diversified portfolio of publicly trade®l &hd NorU.S. common
stock.

3) Includes funds whiclnvest primarily inpublicly traded and nepublicly traded, investment grade corporate
bonds, U.Sgovernment bonds and asbatked securities.

Projected Contributions and Benefit Payments. There areno projected minimum funding requiremenisder the
Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan for fiscal 2015 Estimated dture benefit payments for both pension and
retiree health and life benefits are as follows:

Retiree

Health and
Pension Life

Fiscal Year Benefits Benefits
2015 $ 32,316 $ 1,276
2016 12,632 1,202
2017 11,194 1,122
2018 11,317 1,048
2019 10,244 972
2020 through 2024 45,032 3,599

Estimated future pension benefit payments assumes that age 65 or older activeaideetigible participants in the
pension plan that had not received a benefit payment prior to 28taivill elect to receive a benefit payment in fiscal
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2015 In addition, for all periods presented, estimated future pension benefit payments assumes that participants wi
elect a lump sum payment in the fiscal year that the participant becomes eligible to receive benefits.

Effect on Operations.The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs included in operating
expenses fdiiscal 2014,2013 and2012:

Pension Benefits Retiree Health and Life Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Service cost $ -8 - $ - $ 5 % 8 % 7
Interest cost 5,774 5,229 6,311 640 586 802
Expected return on plan assets (5,102) (5,281) (5,665) - - -
Amortization of prior service credit - - - (490) (490) (490)
Recognized net actuarial loss 4,492 5,285 5271 (181) - -
Net periodic benefit costs $ 5164 $ 5233 $ 5917 $ (26) $ 104 $ 319

Actuarial Assumptions. The assumptions used in the measurement of the Partnership’s benefit obligations as of
SeptembeR7, 2014and Septembe?8, 2013are shown in the following table:
Retiree Health and

Pension Benefits Life Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013
Weighted-average discount rate 3.875% 4.375% 3.500% 3.750%
Average rate of compensation increase n/a n/a n/a n/a
Health care cost trend n/a n/a 7.120% 7.330%

The assumptions used in the measurement of net periodic pbesiefit and postretirement benefit costs fiscal
2014,2013 and2012 are shown in the following table:

Pension Benefits Retiree Health and Life Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Weighted-average discount rate 4.375% 3.500% 4.375% 3.750% 3.000% 4.000%
Average rate of compensation
increase n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Weighted-average expected long-
term rate of return on plan assets  4.900% 4.500% 4.800% n/a n/a n/a
Health care cost trend n/a n/a n/a 7.330% 7.530% 7.740%

The discount rate assumption takes into consideration current market expectations relatetetonlarigrest rates

and the projected duration of the Partnership’s pension obligations based on a benchmark index with similar
characteristics as the expettash flow requirements of the Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan over the long-

term. The expected lortgrm rate of return on plan assets assumption reflects estimated future performance in the
Partnership’s pension asset portfolio considering the investment mix of the pension asset portfolio and historical asset
performance.The expected return on plan assets is determined based on the expeetedrigate of return on plan
assets and the marketlated value of plan assets. Tharketrelaied value of pension plan assets is the fair value of

the assetsUnrecognized actuarial gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligatio
and the marketelated value of plan assets are amortized over the expectedeanaraining service period of active
employees expected to receive benefits under the plan.

The 712% increase in health care costs assumed at Sept@mb2014is assumed to decrease gradually to 4.48% in
fiscal 2028 and to remain at that level thereafter. An increase or decrease of the assumed health care cost trend rate:
1.0% in each year would have no material impact to the Partnership’s benefit obligation as of Septembe&7, 2014nor

the aggregate of service and interest components of net periodic postretirement benefit expense2fuit&iscéle
Partnership has concluded that the prescription drug benefits within the retiree medical plan dcernbiedhsittnership
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to an available Medicare subsidy.

Multiemployer Pension Plans. As a result of thelnergy PropaneAcquisition, the Partnership contributes to
multiemployer pension plans (“MEPPS”) in accordance with variouscollective bargaining agreentsrcovering union
employees.As one of the many patrticipating employers in these MEPPs, the Partnership is responsible with the othe
participating employers for any plan underfundinBuring fiscal 2013,the Partnership established accrualof
$7,000for its estimated obligation to certain MEPPs due to the Partnership’s voluntary partial withdrawal fronone

such MEPPand full withdrawal fromfour MEPPs. As of September 27, 2014he accral was $6,880for its
estimated obligation to these MEPPBue to the uncertainty regarding future factors that could trigger withdrawal
liability, including the integration of Inergy Propane, the Partnership is unable to determine the amount and timing of
any future withdrawal liability, if any.

The Partarship’s contributions to a particular MEPP are established by the applicaddlective bargaining
agreements (“CBAS”); however the required contributions may increase based on the funded statud/&fRP and

legal requirements of the Pension Protection Act of62@e “PPA”), which requires substantially underfunded

MEPPs to implement a funding improvement plan (“FIP”) or a rehabilitation plan (“RP”) to improve their funded

status. Factors that could impact funded status of an MEPP include, without limitatiestiment performance,
changes in the participant demographics, decline in the number of contributing employers, changes in actuaric
assumptions and the utilization oftemded amortization provisions.

While no multiemployer pension plan that tRartnershipgcontributed to is individually significant to thartnership

the table below discloses thieréelargest MEPPs to which the Partnership contribut€le financial health of a
MEPP is indicated by the zone status, as defined byRR&, which represents the funded status of the plan as
certified by the plan's actuaryrlans in the red zone are less than 65% funded, the yellow zone are between 65% and
80% funded, and green zone are at least 80%ded. Total contributions made by tHartnershigo multiemployer
pension plansor the fiscal year ended SeptemB&r, 2014are shown belowand reflectcontributions madéom the

Inergy Propane Acquisition Date

Contributions
greater than 5%

EIN/Pension PPA Zone Status Contributions of Total Plan Expiration
Pension Fund Plan Number 2014 2013 FIP/RP Status 2014 2013 2012 Contributions date of CBA
New England
Teamsters &
Trucking Industry April 2016 -
Pension Fund 04-6372430 Red (a) Red (a) Implemented $ 616 $ 562 $ 30 No March 2017
Local 282
Pension Trust 11-6245313 Green (b) Green (b) n/a 336 284 66 No July 2019
Teamsters
Industrial
Employees
Pension Fund 22-6099363 Red (c) Red (c) Implemented 185 179 15 No June 2017
Other (d) 31 137 48 No n/a

$1,168 $1,162 $159

(a) Based on most recent available valuation information for plan years ended September 2013.
(b) Based on most recent available valuation information for plan years ended February 2014.
(c) Based on most recent available valuation information for plan years ended December 2013.
(d) Includes the MEPPs from which the Partnership withdrew in fiscal 2013.

Additionally, the Partnership contributes to certaiult-employer plans that provide health and welfare benefits and
defined annuity plans. Contributions to those plans we&9% $2,040and $30%or fiscal 2014 fiscal 2013and fiscal
2012 respectively.
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11. Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the skerin maturity of these instruments.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities The Partnership measgréhe fair value of itexchangeraded
commodityrelatedoptions and futuresontractsusing Level 1 inputsthe fair value of itcommaodityrelatedswap
contracts andnterest rate swapusing Level 2 inputand the fair value of its ovghe-countercommaodity-related
options contracts using Level 3 inputs. The Partnership’s over-the-counter options contracts are valued based on an
internal option model. The inputs utilized in the model are based on publicly available informsatiegil as broker
quotes.

The following summarizes the fair value of the Partnership’s derivative instruments and their location in the
consolidated balance sheas ofSeptembeR7, 2014and Septembez8, 2013 respectively:

As of September 27, 2014 As of September 28, 2013
Asset Derivatives Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments:
Commodity-related derivatives Other current assets $ 3,924  Other current assets $ 2,546
Other assets 62  Other assets 716
$ 3,986 $ 3,262
Liability Derivatives Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Interest rate swaps Other current liabilities $ 1,257 Other current liabilities $ 1,307
Other liabilities 283 Other liabilities 1,121
$ 1,540 $ 2,428
Derivatives not designated as - -
hedging instruments:
Commaodity-related derivatives Other current liabilities $ 1,527 Other current liabilities $ 430
Other liabilities 53 Other liabilities -
$ 1,580 $ 430

The followingsummarizes the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balanesseit antiabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs:

Fair Value Measurement Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Beginning balance of over-the-counter options $ 1,847 $ - $ 5,002 $ 1,209
Beginning balance realized during the period (1,166) - (4,400) (1,182)
Contracts purchased during the period 1,145 - 1,825 -
Change in the fair value of outstanding contracts (314) - (580) (27)
Ending balance of over-the-counter options $ 1512 $ - $ 1847 $ -

As of Septembe27, 2014and Septembe?8, 2013 the Partnership’s outstanding commodityrelated derivativebad
a weighted average maturity approximatelyfour andfive months respectively
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The effect of the Partnership’s derivative instruments on the consolidated statemens of operations foffiscal 2014,
2013 and2012 are as follows:

Amount of (Losses) Gains (Losses) Reclassified from
Gains Recognized in Accumulated OCI into Income
OCI (Effective (Effective Portion)
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships: Portion) Location Amount
Interest rate swaps:
Fiscal 2014 $ (518) Interest expense $  (1,406)
Fiscal 2013 $ 584 Interest expense $  (2,465)
Fiscal 2012 $ (3,561) Interest expense $ (2,680)
Amount of
Unrealized
Location of Gains Gains (Losses
(Losses) Recognized i Recognized in
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments: Income Income
Commodity-related derivatives:
Fiscal 2014 Cost of products sold $ 306
Fiscal 2013 Cost of products sold $ (4,318
Fiscal 2012 Cost of products sold $ 4,649

The following table presents the fair value of the Partnership’s recognized derivative assets and liabilities on a gross
basis and amounts offset on tbensolidated balance sheets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements:

As of September 27, 2014

Net amounts
presented in the

Gross amounts Effects of netting balance sheet

Asset Derivatives
Commodity-related derivatives $ 9,533 % (5,547) $ 3,986
Interest rate swap 2,139 (2,139) -

$ 11,672 % (7,686) $ 3,986
Liability Derivatives
Commodity-related derivatives $ 7,127 $ (5,547) $ 1,580
Interest rate swap 3,679 (2,139) 1,540

$ 10,806 % (7,686) $ 3,120

As of September 28, 2013

Net amounts
presented in the

Gross amounts Effects of netting balance sheet

Asset Derivatives
Commodity-related derivatives $ 3634 $ B72) $ 3,262
Interest rate swap 2,804 (2,804) -

$ 6,438 $ (3,176) $ 3,262
Liability Derivatives
Commodity-related derivatives $ 802 % B72) $ 430
Interest rate swap 5,232 (2,804) 2,428

$ 6,034 $ (3,176) $ 2,858
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The following tablepresents certain data by reportable segment and provides a reconciliation of total operating

segment information to the corresponding consolidated amounts for the periods presented:

Revenues:
Propane
Fuel oil and refined fuels
Natural gas and electricity
All other
Total revenues

Operating income:
Propane
Fuel oil and refined fuels
Natural gas and electricity
All other
Corporate
Total operating income

Reconciliation to net income:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest expense, net
Provision for income taxes

Net income

Depreciation and amortization:
Propane
Fuel oil and refined fuels
Natural gas and electricity
All other
Corporate

Total depreciation and amortization

Assets:
Propane
Fuel oil and refined fuels
Natural gas and electricity
All other
Corporate
Total assets

Year Ended
September 27, September 28, September 29,
2014 2013 2012
$ 1,606,840 $ 1,357,102 $ 843,648
194,684 208,957 114,288
87,093 79,432 67,419
49,640 58,115 38,103
$ 1,938,257 $ 1,703,606 $ 1,063,458
$ 295,916 $ 287,473 $ 142,548
2,473 (2,799) 890
10,818 11,565 6,991
(25,644) (26,483) (17,239)
(93,437) (92,780) (91,533)
190,126 176,976 41,657
11,589 2,144 2,249
83,261 95,427 38,633
767 607 137
$ 94,509 $ 78,798 $ 638
$ 106,491 $ 104,533 $ 34,826
5,429 4,634 3,652
46 198 464
699 638 345
23,734 20,381 7,747
$ 136,399 $ 130,384 $ 47,034
As of
September 27, September 28,
2014 2013
$ 2,365,320 $ 2,452,909
69,360 77,473
13,992 16,789
3,342 3,860
157,349 176,956
$ 2,609,363 $ 2,727,987
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